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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549
FORM 10-Q
(Mark One)
b QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2007
OR
0 TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to
COMMISSION FILE NUMBER: 001-32322
TOUSA, INC.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)
Delaware 76-0460831
(State or other jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification No.)
4000 Hollywood Blvd., Suite 500 N 33021
Hollywood, Florida (ZIP code)

(Address of principal executive offices)
(954) 364-4000
(Registrant s telephone number, including area code)
(Former name, former address and former fiscal year,
if changed since last report)
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes p No o
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated
filer. See definition of accelerated filer and large accelerated filer in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act (check one):
Large Accelerated Filer o Accelerated Filer p  Non-Accelerated Filer o
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes
oNop
APPLICABLE ONLY TO CORPORATE ISSUERS:
Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer s classes of common stock, as of the latest practicable
date: 59,604,169 shares of common stock as of November 9, 2007.
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TOUSA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
(Dollars in millions, except par value)

ASSETS
HOMEBUILDING:
Cash and cash equivalents:
Unrestricted
Restricted
Inventory:
Deposits
Homesites and land under development
Residences completed and under construction
Inventory not owned

Property and equipment, net

Investments in unconsolidated joint ventures

Receivables from unconsolidated joint ventures, net of allowance of $0
and $54.8 million at September 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006,
respectively

Other assets

Goodwill

Assets held for sale

FINANCIAL SERVICES:
Cash and cash equivalents:
Unrestricted

Restricted

Mortgage loans held for sale
Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
HOMEBUILDING:
Accounts payable and other liabilities
Customer deposits
Obligations for inventory not owned

Table of Contents

September 30,
2007
(Unaudited)

73.6
4.6

82.0
692.0
758.0

39.8

1,571.8
28.6
80.9

422
371.1
60.0
10.1

2,242.9

4.0
3.1
31.0
10.7

48.8

2,291.7

396.1
48.9
44.5

December 31,
2006

$ 474
3.8

216.6
725.6
835.7
300.6

2,078.5
28.5
129.0

27.2
236.6
100.9
124.8

2,776.7

6.8
4.2
41.9
12.6

65.5

$ 2,842.2

$ 554.2
62.6
300.6
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Notes payable
Bank borrowings
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale

FINANCIAL SERVICES:
Accounts payable and other liabilities
Bank borrowings

Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies

Stockholders equity:

Preferred stock  $0.01 par value; 3,000,000 shares authorized; 117,500
and none outstanding at September 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006,
respectively

Common stock  $0.01 par value; 975,000,000 and 97,000,000 shares
authorized and 59,604,169 and 59,590,519 shares issued and
outstanding at September 30, 2007, and December 31, 2006,
respectively

Additional paid-in capital

Retained earnings (accumulated deficit)

Total stockholders equity

Total liabilities and stockholders equity

$

1,574.1
150.3
2.5
2,2164
4.6
224
27.0

2,243.4

83.9

0.6
489.7
(525.9)

48.3

2,291.7

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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$

1,060.7
47.8
2,025.9
6.0
35.4
414

2,067.3

0.6
481.2
293.1
774.9

2,842.2
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(Unaudited)
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2007 2006 2007 2006

HOMEBUILDING:
Revenues:
Home sales $ 449.6 $ 563.0 $ 1,542.3 $ 1,724.8
Land sales 433 13.8 77.0 56.8

492.9 576.8 1,619.3 1,781.6
Cost of sales:
Home sales 370.1 434.9 1,250.0 1,294.7
Land sales 56.5 14.1 85.6 52.0
Inventory impairments and abandonment
costs 504.5 49.8 628.4 57.4
Other (0.8) (1.7) (5.0 (7.2)

930.3 497.1 1,959.0 1,396.9
Gross profit (loss) 437.4) 79.7 (339.7) 384.7
Selling, general and administrative expenses 86.0 80.8 262.4 274.1
(Income) loss from unconsolidated joint
ventures, net 9.2 (29.0) 8.8 94.7)
Impairments of investments in unconsolidated
joint ventures 23.4 148.4 28.9 148.4
Provision for settlement of loss contingency 40.7 151.6
Goodwill impairments 2.7 5.7 40.9 5.7
Interest expense 10.0 10.2
Other (income) expense, net 0.6 0.1 (1.5 4.3)
Homebuilding pretax income (loss) (610.0) (126.3) (841.0) 55.5
FINANCIAL SERVICES:
Revenues 8.3 15.8 31.3 48.4
Expenses 8.1 10.8 26.1 32.5
Financial Services pretax income 0.2 5.0 5.2 15.9
Income (loss) from continuing operations
before income taxes (609.8) (121.3) (835.8) 71.4
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 6.0 41.1) (35.7) 30.0

(615.8) (80.2) (800.1) 414
Table of Contents 6
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TOUSA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Dollars in millions, except per share amounts)
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Income (loss) from continuing operations, net
of taxes

Discontinued operations:

Income (loss) from discontinued operations 3.9 0.4 (11.8) 1.9
Loss from disposal of discontinued operations (13.6)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 0.2 (7.8) 0.7
Income (loss) from discontinued operations,
net of taxes 3.9 0.2 (17.6) 1.2
Net income (loss) (619.7) (80.0) (817.7) 42.6
Dividends and accretion of discount on
preferred stock 2.2 2.2
Net income (loss) available to common
stockholders $ (6219 % 80.0) $ (819.9) % 42.6
EARNINGS (LOSS) PER COMMON
SHARE, BASIC:
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations
(net of preferred stock dividends and
accretion of discount) $ (1036) % 135 % (13.46) % 0.70
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations (0.07) 0.01 (0.30) 0.02
Basic earnings (loss) per common share $ (10.43) $ (1.34) $ (13.76) $ 0.72
EARNINGS (LOSS) PER COMMON
SHARE, DILUTED:
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations
(net of preferred stock dividends and
accretion of discount) $ (1036) % 135 % (13.46) % 0.68
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations (0.07) 0.01 (0.30) 0.02
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share $ (10.43) $ (1.34) $ (13.76) $ 0.70
WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF
COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING:
Basic 59,604,169 59,590,519 59,601,119 59,580,062
Diluted 59,604,169 59,590,519 59,601,119 61,150,782
CASH DIVIDENDS PER COMMON
SHARE $ $ 0.015 $ $ 0.045

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Balance at January 1,
2007

Common stock
issued to directors
Transeastern
settlement

Stock option
compensation
expense

Adoption of FIN 48
Preferred stock
dividends

Accretion of
discount on preferred
stock

Net loss

Balance at
September 30, 2007
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TOUSA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
(Dollars in millions)

(Unaudited)
Retained
Additional Earnings Total
Preferred Stock Common Stock Paid-In  (Accumulated Stockholders
Shares  Amount Shares Amount  Capital Deficit) Equity
$ 59,590,519 $ 06 $ 481.2 $ 293.1 % 774.9
13,650 0.1 0.1
117,500 81.7 7.6 89.3
3.0 3.0
(1.3) (1.3)
1.6 (1.6)
0.6 (0.6)
(817.7) (817.7)

117,500 $ 839 59,604,169 $ 0.6 $ 489.7 $ (5259 § 48.3

5
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TOUSA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Dollars in millions)

(Unaudited)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss)
(Income) loss from discontinued operations

Income (loss) from continuing operations

Adjustments to reconcile income (loss) from continuing operations to net cash used in
operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization

Non-cash compensation expense

Non-cash interest expense

Loss on early termination of debt

Provision for settlement of loss contingency

Inventory impairments and abandonment costs

Goodwill impairments

Deferred income taxes

Equity in (earnings) losses from unconsolidated joint ventures
Distributions of earnings from unconsolidated joint ventures
Impairments of investments in unconsolidated joint ventures
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Restricted cash

Inventory

Receivables from unconsolidated joint ventures

Other assets

Mortgage loans held for sale

Accounts payable and other liabilities

Customer deposits

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Acquisitions, net of cash acquired

Earn-out consideration paid for acquisitions

Net additions to property and equipment

Loans to unconsolidated joint ventures

Investments in unconsolidated joint ventures

Capital distributions from unconsolidated joint ventures

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Table of Contents

Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2007 2006
$(@817.7) $ 426
17.6 (1.2)
(800.1) 41.4
11.2 10.2
3.0 7.8
8.0
2.4
151.6
628.4 57.5
40.9 5.7
(160.6) (69.5)
19.2 (5.3)
09 19.7
28.9 148.4
28.6 (0.1)
(72.1) (391.4)
(29.9) (1.9)
82.4 472
10.9 (5.3)
(26.7) (42.4)
(15.6) (8.5)
(88.6) (186.5)
(7.7)
(0.9)
(9.4) (12.8)
(11.3)
(29.2) (13.8)
12.4 32.3
(33.9) (6.5)
9
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Net borrowings from (repayments of) revolving credit facilities 150.3 (65.0)
Principal payments on notes payable 0.5)
Net proceeds from notes offering 248.8
Net proceeds from (repayments of) Financial Services bank borrowings (13.0) 7.4
Payments for deferred financing costs (32.1) (3.2)
Payments for issuance of convertible preferred stock and warrants 2.9
Excess income tax benefit from exercise of stock options 0.1
Proceeds from stock option exercises 0.2
Dividends paid 2.7
Net cash provided by financing activities 101.8 185.6
Net cash provided by (used in) continuing operations (20.7) (7.4)
Cash flows from discontinued operations:
Net cash used in operating activities (12.4) 6.0
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 56.5 (0.6)
Net cash provided by discontinued operations 44.1 54
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 23.4 (2.0)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 54.2 32.3
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 776 $ 303
6
Table of Contents 10
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TOUSA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(Dollars in millions)

(Unaudited)
Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2007 2006
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash financing activities:
Increase (decrease) in obligations for inventory not owned $ 445 $170.8
Increase (decrease) in inventory not owned $ 39.8 $170.8

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash activities:

Refer to Note 3 for the consolidation of other variable interest entities in accordance with
FIN 46(R)
Refer to Note 4 for the settlement of the Transeastern joint venture and related
acquisition of assets
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
7
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TOUSA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30, 2007
1. Business and Organization
Business

TOUSA, Inc. ( TOUSA orthe Company ) is a homebuilder with a geographically diversified national presence.
We operate in various metropolitan markets in ten states, located in four major geographic regions: Florida, the
Mid-Atlantic, Texas, and the West. We design, build, and market detached single-family residences, town homes and
condominiums. We also provide title insurance and mortgage brokerage services to our homebuyers and others.
Generally, we do not retain or service the mortgages that we originate but, rather, sell the mortgages and related
servicing rights.

Organization

Technical Olympic S.A. owns approximately 67% of our outstanding common stock. Technical Olympic S.A. is
a publicly-traded Greek company whose shares are traded on the Athens Stock Exchange. Our ownership could
change if the holders of our convertible preferred stock exercise their conversion rights. See Note 12.

Liquidity

Due to the continuing significant deterioration in the housing market, we have taken, and are continuing to take,
actions to maximize cash receipts and minimize cash expenditures. As part of these initiatives, we continue to take
steps to reduce our general and administrative expenses and operations to increase efficiencies by reducing costs and
streamlining our activities including further reductions in workforce of all levels and elimination of certain consulting
arrangements and indirect costs. However, some of our efforts on reducing general and administrative expenses are
being offset by professional and consulting fees associated with the settlement of our Transeastern joint venture (the

Transeastern JV ) and our current restructuring efforts. In addition, we are working with our suppliers and seeking new
suppliers, through competitive bid processes, to reduce construction material and labor costs. We are analyzing each
community based on profit and sales absorption goals that include current market factors in the homebuilding industry
such as the oversupply of homes available for sale in most of our markets, less demand, decreased consumer
confidence, tighter mortgage loan underwriting criteria and higher foreclosures. We continue to review the size,
geographic allocations and components of our inventory to better align these assets with estimated future deliveries.
We have established inventory targets based on current market conditions, existing inventory levels and our historical
and projected results. If our inventory exceeds these targeted levels, which is currently the case, we are and will
continue to take necessary actions to reduce our inventory level to these targeted levels. These actions include, to the
extent possible: limiting new arrangements to acquire land; engaging in bulk sales of land and unsold homes; reducing
the number of homes under construction and limiting development activities; re-negotiating terms or abandoning our
rights under option contracts; considering other asset dispositions including the possible sale of underperforming
assets, communities, divisions, and joint venture interests; further reducing inventory target levels; and other
initiatives designed to monetize our assets including our deferred tax assets.

As a result of worsening market conditions since late July and our liquidity constraints, during the three months
ended September 30, 2007, we abandoned our rights under certain option agreements which resulted in a 9,400 unit
decline in our controlled homesites. Abandonment decisions were made following in depth community by community
analyses of all option contracts based on projected returns, amount and timing of incremental cash flow, and owned
homesites. In connection with the abandonment of our rights under these option contracts, we forfeited cash deposits
of $166.9 million and had letters of credit of $91.2 million drawn, subsequent to September 30, 3007, which increased
our outstanding borrowings. We have entered into development contracts associated with our option contracts (which
development contracts include obligations of ours to develop property even if we abandon the option contract). As of
September 30, 2007 we recorded a $22.7 million loss accrual with respect thereto. See note 3 to our financial
statements included herein. As challenging market conditions continue, we expect to continue to reduce inventory in
an attempt to further align our inventory levels to housing demand in those markets we serve, reduce our cost of sales
relating to construction and labor costs for the homes we build, and reduce our selling, general and administrative
costs to levels consistent with fewer home deliveries to operate within our liquidity constraints. These or future

Table of Contents 12
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actions may not be sufficient to allow us to continue our operations.

The additional borrowings arising from the settlement of the Transeastern JV disputes and the continuing
deterioration of the housing market, including the worsening since late July 2007 due to the mortgage and credit
market crisis, has had, and will continue to have for an unknown period of time, a negative impact on our liquidity and
our ability to comply with financial and other covenants under our bank loans and indentures, including interest
coverage, total leverage, and tangible net worth covenants. All of these factors, and others which may arise in the

future, will adversely impact our financial condition and results of operations.
8
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The reduction in our staff, combined with the challenges of implementing these initiatives, has placed increased
burdens on our remaining associates. We have retained consultants and are in the process of developing and then
implementing a structure to retain and incentivize the associates who will be integral to our ability to successfully
restructure our balance sheet.

Our financial statements are presented on a going concern basis, which contemplates the realization of assets
and satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. We have $1.7 billion in borrowings, have experienced
significant losses for the year ended December 31, 2006, and the nine months ended September 30, 2007, and
continue to generate negative cash flows from continuing operations. For the nine months ended September 30, 2007,
we incurred a net loss of $817.7 million and had stockholders equity of $48.3 million at September 30, 2007, which
was a significant decrease when compared to $774.9 million at December 31, 2006. This raises substantial doubt
about our ability to continue as a going concern. Our ability to continue as a going concern will depend upon our
ability to restructure our capital structure including our attempt to exchange a large portion of our outstanding
indebtedness for equity. We have asked our bondholders to organize as a group in order to discuss such restructuring
and reorganization alternatives. Failure to restructure our capital structure would result in, among other things,
depleting our available funds and not being able to pay our obligations when they become due, as well as possible
defaults under our debt obligations. The accompanying consolidated financial statements do not include any
adjustments to reflect the possible future effects on the recoverability and classification of assets.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation and Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include our accounts and those of our subsidiaries. All significant
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.

On July 31, 2007, we consummated transactions to settle the disputes regarding the Transeastern Joint Venture
(the Transeastern JV ) with the lenders to the Transeastern JV, its land bankers and TOUSA s joint venture partner in
the Transeastern JV. Pursuant to the settlement, among other things, the Transeastern JV became a wholly owned
subsidiary of ours by merger into one of our subsidiaries. The acquisition of the Transeastern JV (the TE Acquisition )
is being accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. The results of operations of the Transeastern JV have
been included in the consolidated results of TOUSA beginning on July 31, 2007. See Note 4 for a full description of
the TE Acquisition.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Those estimates and assumptions which, in the opinion of management, are both significant to the underlying
amounts included in the financial statements and as to which future events or information could change those
estimates include:

Impairment assessments of investments in unconsolidated joint ventures, long-lived assets, including our
inventory, and goodwill;

Loss exposures associated with the abandonment of our rights under option contracts and the relinquishment
of our rights under certain joint ventures;

Realization of amounts due from unconsolidated joint ventures;
Insurance and litigation related contingencies;
Realization of deferred income tax assets and liability for unrecognized tax benefits; and

Estimated costs associated with construction and development activities, including warranty reserves, in
connection with our homebuilding operations.

Table of Contents 14
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Due to our normal operating cycle being in excess of one year, we present unclassified consolidated statements
of financial condition.

Certain amounts in the consolidated financial statements of prior periods have been reclassified to conform to
current year classifications. Certain operations have been classified as discontinued. Associated results of operations
and financial position are separately reported for all periods presented. For additional information, refer to Note 14.
Information in these Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements, unless otherwise noted, does not include
the accounts of discontinued operations.

9
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Interim Presentation

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements reflect all adjustments, consisting primarily of
normal recurring items that, in the opinion of management, are considered necessary for a fair presentation of the
financial position, results from operations, and cash flows for the periods presented. Results of operations achieved
through September 30, 2007 are not necessarily indicative of those that may be achieved for the year ending
December 31, 2007. The consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2006 was derived from audited financial
statements included in our 2006 Annual Report on Form 10-K but does not include all disclosures required by
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. These consolidated financial statements should be read
in conjunction with our December 31, 2006 audited financial statements in our 2006 Annual Report on Form 10-K
and the notes to the consolidated financial statements included therein.

For the three months ended September 30, 2007 and 2006, we have eliminated inter-segment Financial Services
revenues of $3.6 million and $1.4 million, respectively. For the nine months ended September 30, 2007 and 2006, we
have eliminated inter-segment Financial Services revenues of $10.7 million and $3.6 million, respectively.

Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Basic earnings (loss) per share is computed by dividing income (loss) available to common stockholders by the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings (loss) per share is computed
based on the weighted average number of shares of common stock and dilutive securities outstanding during the
period. Dilutive securities are options or other common stock equivalents that are freely exercisable into common
stock at less than market prices or otherwise dilute earnings if converted. Dilutive securities are not included in the
weighted average number of shares when inclusion would increase the earnings per share or decrease the loss per
share.

The following table represents a reconciliation of the weighted average shares outstanding:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2007 2006 2007 2006
Basic weighted average shares
outstanding 59,604,169 59,590,519 59,601,119 59,580,062
Net effect of common stock
equivalents assumed to be exercised 1,570,720
Diluted weighted average shares
outstanding 59,604,169 59,590,519 59,601,119 61,150,782

The convertible preferred stock has not been included in dilutive earnings per share as the effect is anti-dilutive.
See Note 12.
Revenue Recognition
In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ( SFAS ) No. 66, Accounting for the Sales of
Real Estate ( SFAS 66 ), at September 30, 2007 and 2006, we deferred approximately $1.0 million and $2.2 million,
respectively, in profit related to certain homes that were delivered for which our mortgage subsidiary originated
interest-only loans or loans with high loan-to-value ratios which did not meet the initial and continuing investment
requirements under SFAS 66, and the loans were still held for sale at the respective balance sheet dates. This profit
will be recognized upon the sale of the loans to a third party, with non-recourse provisions, which generally occurs
within 30 days from the date the loan is originated.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In March 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ( FASB ) issued SFAS No. 156, Accounting for
Servicing of Financial Assets ( SFAS 156 ), which provides an approach to simplify efforts to obtain hedge-like
(offset) accounting. This new statement amends SFAS No. 140, Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial
Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities, with respect to the accounting for separately recognized servicing assets and

Table of Contents 16
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servicing liabilities. SFAS 156 is effective for all separately recognized servicing assets and liabilities as of the
beginning of an entity s fiscal year that begins after September 15, 2006, with earlier adoption permitted in certain
circumstances. We adopted SFAS 156 effective January 1, 2007. Due to the short period of time our servicing rights
are held, the adoption did not have a significant impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes-an
interpretation of SFAS 109, ( FIN 48 ). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for income taxes, by prescribing a minimum
recognition threshold a tax position is required to meet before it is recognized in the financial statements. FIN 48 also
provides guidance on derecognition, measurement, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods,
disclosure and transition. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. We adopted FIN 48
effective January 1, 2007, and recognized a $1.3 million increase in the liability for unrecognized tax benefits, which
was accounted for as a reduction to the retained earnings balance at January 1, 2007.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements, ( SFAS 157 ). SFAS 157 defines
fair value,

10
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establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles and expands disclosures
about fair value measurements. SFAS 157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007 (our fiscal year beginning January 1, 2008), and interim periods within those fiscal years. We are
currently reviewing the effect of this statement on our consolidated financial statements.

In November 2006, the FASB issued Emerging Issues Task Force Issue ( EITF ) No. 06-8, Applicability of the
Assessment of a Buyers Continuing Investment under FASB Statement No. 66, Accounting for Sales of Real Estate, for
Sales of Condominiums, ( EITF 06-8 ). EITF 06-8 establishes that a company should evaluate the adequacy of the
buyer s continuing investment in determining whether to recognize profit under the percentage-of-completion method.
EITF 06-8 is effective for the first annual reporting period beginning after March 15, 2007 (January 1, 2008 for us).
The effect of EITF 06-8 is not expected to be material to our consolidated financial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities, ( SFAS 159 ). SFAS 159 permits companies to measure many financial instruments and certain other items
at fair value. This statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 (January 1, 2008 for us).
The adoption of SFAS 159 is not expected to be material to our consolidated financial statements.

EITF Topic D-109, Determining the Nature of a Host Contract Related to a Hybrid Financial Instrument Issued in
the Form of a Share under FASB Statement No. 133, addresses the determination of whether the characteristics of a
host contract related to a hybrid financial instrument issued in the form of a share are more akin to a debt instrument
or more akin to an equity instrument. EITF D-109 indicates that the determination of the nature of the host contract for
a hybrid financial instrument issued in the form of a share (that is, whether the nature of the host contract is more akin
to a debt instrument or more akin to an equity instrument) should be based on a consideration of economic
characteristics and risks of the host contract including all of the stated or implied substantive terms and features of the
hybrid financial instrument. Although the consideration of an individual term or feature may be weighted more
heavily in the evaluation, judgment is required based upon an evaluation of all the relevant terms and features. The
application of this guidance was considered and evaluated in light of the Preferred Stock issued by us on July 31, 2007
(refer to Note 12) but did not have a material effect on our consolidated financial statements as of September 30,

2007.
3. Inventory
A summary of homebuilding interest capitalized in inventory is as follows (dollars in millions):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2007 2006 2007 2006

Interest capitalized, beginning of period $ 81.6 $ 56.1 $ 68.7 $ 442
Interest incurred* 41.8 26.0 98.6 72.5
Less interest included in:
Cost of sales (23.8) (17.9) (67.3) (52.4)
Interest expense (10.0) (10.2)
Other adjustments 0.1 (0.3) (0.3) 0.9)
Interest capitalized, end of period $ 89.5 $ 639 $ 89.5 $ 639

*  Included in
interest incurred
is the
amortization of
deferred finance
costs which
amounted to
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$3.5 million and
$0.9 million for
the three months
ended
September 30,
2007 and
September 30,
2006,
respectively,
and $6.2 million
and $2.7 million
for the nine
months ended
September 30,
2007 and
September 30,
2006,
respectively.

In the ordinary course of business, we enter into option contracts to purchase homesites and land held for
development. At September 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006, we had refundable and non-refundable cash deposits
aggregating $82.0 million and $216.6 million, respectively, included in inventory in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial condition. Under these option contracts, we have the right to buy homesites at predetermined
prices on a predetermined takedown schedule anticipated to be commensurate with home starts. Option contracts
generally require the payment of a cash deposit and / or the posting of a letter of credit, which is typically less than
20% of the underlying purchase price, and may require monthly maintenance payments. These option contracts are
either with land sellers or third party financial entities who have acquired the land to enter into the option contract
with us. Homesite option contracts are generally non-recourse, thereby limiting our financial exposure for
non-performance to our cash deposits and/or letters of credit. In certain instances, we have entered into development
agreements in connection with option contracts which require us to complete the development of the land, at a fixed
reimbursable amount, even if we choose not to exercise our option and forfeit our deposit and even if our costs exceed
the reimbursable amount. As of September 30, 2007, we have abandoned our rights under option contracts that require
us to complete the development of land for a fixed reimbursable amount. At September 30, 2007, we recorded a loss
accrual of $22.7 million, in connection with the abandonment of these option contracts, for our estimated obligations
under the development agreements. This accrual is included in accounts payable and other liabilities in the
accompanying consolidated statement of financial condition at September 30, 2007.

In addition, certain of these option contracts give the other party the right to require us to purchase homesites or
guarantee certain minimum returns. As of September 30, 2007, we have abandoned our rights under option contracts
that give the other party the right to require us to purchase the homesites. On some of these option contracts, we have
received notices in which the other party is exercising their right to require us to purchase the homesites under this
provision of the option contracts. We do not have the ability to comply with these notices due to liquidity constraints.
These option contracts were previously consolidated and the inventory was

11
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included in inventory not owned and the corresponding liability was included in obligations for inventory not owned.
As we do not have the intent or the ability to comply with the requirement to purchase the property, we have
deconsolidated these option contracts at September 30, 2007. Capitalized pre-acquisition costs associated with these
option contracts are impaired and $14.0 million was written off during the three months ended September 30, 2007. In
addition, at September 30, 2007, we recorded a loss accrual of $12.6 million, in connection with the abandonment of
these option contracts, for our estimated obligations under these option contracts and $19.3 million for letters of credit
which we anticipated would be drawn due to nonperformace under such contracts. This accrual is included in accounts
payable and other liabilities in the accompanying consolidated statement of financial condition at September 30, 2007.
As of September 30, 2007, the total required purchase price under these option contracts was $52.3 million.

Some of these option contracts for the purchase of land or homesites are with land sellers and third party
financial entities, which qualify as variable interest entities ( VIEs ) under FASB Interpretation No. 46 (Revised),
Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities ( FIN 46 (R) ). FIN 46(R) addresses consolidation by business enterprises of
VIEs in which an entity absorbs a majority of the expected losses, receives a majority of the entity s expected residual
returns, or both, as a result of ownership, contractual or other financial interests in the entity. Obligations for inventory
not owned in our consolidated statements of financial condition represent liabilities associated with our land banking
and similar activities, including obligations in VIEs which have been consolidated by us and in which we have a less
than 50% ownership interest, and the creditors have no recourse against us. As a result, the obligations have been
specifically excluded from the calculation of leverage ratios pursuant to the terms of our revolving credit facility.

In applying FIN 46(R) to our homesite option contracts and other transactions with VIEs, we make estimates
regarding cash flows and other assumptions. We believe that our critical assumptions underlying these estimates are
reasonable based on historical evidence and industry practice. Based on our analysis of transactions entered into with
VIEs, we determined that we are the primary beneficiary of certain of these homesite option contracts. Consequently,
FIN 46(R) requires us to consolidate the assets (homesites) at their fair value, although (1) we have no legal title to the
assets, (2) our maximum exposure to loss is generally limited to the deposits or letters of credit placed with these
entities, and (3) creditors, if any, of these entities have no recourse against us. The effect of FIN 46(R) at
September 30, 2007 was to increase inventory by $16.5 million (net of $2.2 million in impairments), excluding cash
deposits of $4.4 million, which had been previously recorded, with a corresponding increase to obligations for
inventory not owned of $18.7 million in the accompanying consolidated statement of financial condition.
Additionally, we have entered into arrangements with VIEs to acquire homesites in which our variable interest is
insignificant and, therefore, we have determined that we are not the primary beneficiary and are not required to
consolidate the assets of such VIEs. Our potential exposure to loss in VIEs where we are not the primary beneficiary
would primarily be the forfeiture of our deposit and/or letters of credit placed on land purchase and option contracts.
At September 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006, our cash deposits placed on land purchase and option contracts
amounted to $82.0 million and $216.6 million, respectively, and our letters of credit placed on land purchase and
option contracts amounted to $146.7 million and $257.8 million, respectively.

From time to time, we transfer title to certain parcels of land to unrelated third parties and enter into options
with the purchasers to acquire fully developed homesites. As we have retained a continuing involvement in these
properties, in accordance with SFAS 66, we have accounted for these transactions as financing arrangements. At
September 30, 2007, $23.3 million (net of $2.6 million in impairments) of inventory not owned and $25.9 million of
obligations for inventory not owned relates to sales where we have retained a continuing involvement.

As of September 30, 2007, additional equity contributions in the form of gap loans had been made to two
unconsolidated joint ventures, which are VIEs. The additional equity contributions constitute reconsideration events
under FIN 46(R). Based on FIN 46(R) analyses, we will absorb the majority of expected losses and is the primary
beneficiary of each of these entities. Therefore, in accordance with FIN 46(R), we consolidated these entities as of
September 30, 2007, resulting are additional assets and liabilities of $9.0 million in our consolidated statement of
financial condition.

In accordance with SFAS No.144, we carry long-lived assets held for sale at the lower of the carrying amount or
fair value. For active communities, we evaluate an asset for impairment when events and circumstances indicate that
they may be impaired. Impairment is evaluated by estimating future undiscounted cash flows expected to result from
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the use of the asset and its eventual disposition. If the sum of the expected undiscounted future cash flows is less than
the carrying amount of the assets, an impairment loss is recognized. Fair value, for purposes of calculating
impairment, is measured based on estimated future cash flows, discounted at a market rate of interest. During the three
and nine months ended September 30, 2007, we recorded an impairment loss of $63.3 million and $112.7 million,
respectively, on active communities which is included in cost of sales inventory impairments and abandonment costs
in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations, compared to $29.8 million and $35.3 million,

respectively, for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2006. Included in the impairment charges on active
communities for both the three and nine months ended September 30, 2007 is $63.3 million and $112.7 million,
respectively, of inventory impairments recognized on assets consolidated under FIN 46(R) or SFAS 66 for which we
do not have title to the underlying asset.

During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2007, we also recorded a charge of $441.2 million and
$515.7 million, respectively, in write-offs of deposits and abandonment costs which is included in cost of sales
inventory impairments and abandonment costs in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations, related to
land compared to $20.0 million and $22.1 million, respectively, for the three and nine months ended September 30,
2006. The following table summarizes information related to impairment charges on active communities and
write-offs of deposits and abandonment costs by region (dollars in millions):

12
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Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2007 2006 2007 2006
Impairment charges on active communities:
Florida $ 157 $ 45 $ 444 $ 52
Mid-Atlantic 4.4 10.4 11.0 13.5
Texas 0.5 0.6 0.5
West 43.2 14.4 56.7 16.1
63.3 29.8 112.7 353
Write-offs of deposits, land impairments and
abandonment costs:
Florida 274.5 0.2 287.3 1.3
Mid-Atlantic 33.9 7.5 47.8 8.0
Texas 0.3 0.1
West 132.8 12.3 180.3 12.7
441.2 20.0 515.7 22.1
Inventory impairments and abandonment costs $ 504.5 $ 4938 $628.4 $ 574

4. Transeastern Joint Venture Settlement and Acquisition

We acquired our 50% interest in the Transeastern JV on August 1, 2005, when the Transeastern JV acquired
substantially all of the homebuilding assets and operations of Transeastern Properties including work in process,
finished lots and certain land option rights. The Transeastern JV paid approximately $826.2 million for these assets
and operations (which included the assumption of $127.1 million of liabilities and certain transaction costs, net of
$30.1 million of cash). The other member of the joint venture was an entity controlled by the former majority owners
of Transeastern Properties, Inc. We continued to function as the managing member of the Transeastern JV through our
wholly-owned subsidiary, TOUSA Homes L.P.

When the Transeastern JV was initially formed, it had more than 3,000 homes in backlog and projected 2006
deliveries of approximately 3,500 homes. While management of the Transeastern JV began to curtail sales in its
communities at the end of 2005, these actions were taken not in anticipation of a declining home sales market but
rather in an attempt to address the Transeastern JV s backlog until there was a balance among sales, construction and
deliveries. Both our management and the management of the Transeastern JV anticipated increased sales by the close
of the summer of 2006.

After experiencing several months of continuous declines in deliveries as compared to forecasted amounts due
to higher than expected cancellations and lower than expected gross sales, in early September 2006, management of
the Transeastern JV finalized and distributed to its members six-year financial projections based on the build-out and
sale of its current controlled land positions. These revised projections from the Transeastern JV indicated that the joint
venture would report a loss in the fourth quarter and would not have the liquidity to meet its debt obligations under the
capital structure that was in place at that time. As a result of these and other factors, in September 2006, we evaluated
the recoverability of our investment in the joint venture under Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 18, The
Equity Method of Accounting for Investments in Common Stock ( APB 18 ), and determined our investment to be fully
impaired. As of September 30, 2006, we wrote off $143.6 million related to our investment in the Transeastern JV,
which included $35.0 million of our member loans receivable and $16.2 million of receivables for management fees,
advances and interest due to us from the joint venture.
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On October 31, 2006 and November 1, 2006, we received demand letters from the administrative agent for the
lenders to the Transeastern JV demanding payment under certain guarantees. The demand letters allege that potential
defaults and events of default had occurred under the credit agreements and that such potential defaults or events of
default had triggered our obligations under the guarantees. The lenders claimed that our guarantee obligations equaled
or exceeded all of the outstanding obligations under each of the credit agreements and that we were liable for default
interest, costs and expenses.

On July 31, 2007, we consummated transactions to settle the disputes regarding the Transeastern Joint Venture
(the Transeastern JV ) with the lenders to the Transeastern JV, its land bankers and our joint venture partner in the
Transeastern JV. Pursuant to the settlement, among other things, (i) the Transeastern JV became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of ours by merger into one of our subsidiaries and became a guarantor on our credit facilities and note
indentures, (ii) the senior secured lenders of the Transeastern JV were repaid in full, including accrued interest, and
(iii) the junior and senior mezzanine lenders received securities of the Company in satisfaction of the obligations of
the Transeastern JV. In connection with the settlement, we entered into Settlement and Release

13
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Agreements with the senior mezzanine lenders (the Senior Mezzanine Lenders ) and the junior mezzanine lenders (the

Junior Mezzanine Lenders ) to the Transeastern JV (collectively, the Mezz Settlement Agreements ) which released us
from our potential obligations to them. The TE Acquisition is being accounted for using the purchase method of
accounting.

In accordance with SFAS No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies ( SFAS 5 ) and other authoritative guidance,
through June 30, 2007 we accrued $385.9 million for settlement of loss contingency (determined by computing the
difference between the estimated fair market value of the consideration paid in connection with the global settlement
less the estimated fair market value of the business we acquired) of which, $275.0 million was accrued at
December 31, 2006 and $110.9 million was accrued during the six months ended June 30, 2007 based on the final
settlement terms. During the three months ended September 30, 2007 we recorded an additional $40.7 million upon
completion of the purchase price allocation based on the estimated fair market of the consideration paid and the net
assets acquired. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2007, the provision for settlement of loss
contingency of $40.7 million and $151.6 million, respectively, is presented as a separate line item in our consolidated
statements of operations. The accrual of $275.0 million is included in accounts payable and other liabilities in our
consolidated statement of financial condition as of December 31, 2006.

Settlement with Mezzanine Lenders

The Mezz Settlement Agreements released us from our potential obligations to the Transeastern JV s mezzanine
lenders. Pursuant to the Mezz Settlement Agreements, we issued to the Senior Mezzanine Lenders the following
securities: (i) $20.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 14.75% Senior Subordinated PIK Election Notes due
2015 (the Notes ); and (ii) $117.5 million in initial aggregate liquidation preference of 8% Series A Convertible
Preferred PIK Preferred Stock (the Preferred Stock ). We issued to the Junior Mezzanine Lenders, warrants to purchase
shares of our common stock. The warrants had an estimated fair value of $8.0 million at issuance (based on the
Black-Scholes option pricing model and before issuance costs). Additional descriptions of the Notes, Preferred Stock
and the warrants are provided in Notes 9 and 12.

Settlement with JV Partner

Pursuant to the settlement and mutual release agreement with Falcone/Ritchie LLC and certain of its affiliates
(the Falcone Entities ) concerning the Transeastern JV, one of which owned 50% of the equity interests in the
Transeastern JV, we become the sole owner of the Transeastern JV and have, among other things, released the
Falcone Entities from claims under the asset purchase agreement pursuant to which we acquired our interest in the
Transeastern JV. The Transeastern JV and we remain obligated on certain indemnification obligations, including,
without limitation, related to certain land bank arrangements. At closing, we agreed to purchase $50.2 million in
inventory that was controlled by the Transeastern JV through existing land bank arrangements with an affiliate of our
former JV partner.

TE Acquisition

To effect the TE Acquisition, on July 31, 2007, we entered into a (i) new $200.0 million aggregate principal
amount first lien term loan facility (the First Lien Term Loan Facility ) and (ii) a new $300.0 million aggregate
principal amount second lien term loan facility (the Second Lien Term Loan Facility ), (First and Second Lien Term
Loan Facilities taken together, the Facilities ) with Citicorp North America, Inc. as Administrative Agent, Sole Lead
Arranger and Book Running Manager. The proceeds from the credit facilities were used to satisfy claims of the senior
lenders against the Transeastern JV. Our existing $800.0 million revolving loan facility (the Revolving Loan Facility )
was amended and restated to (i) reduce the revolving commitments thereunder by $100.0 million and (ii) permit the
incurrence of the Facilities (and make other conforming changes relating to the Facilities). Collectively, these
transactions are referred to as the Financing. Net proceeds from the Financing at closing were $470.6 million which is
net of a 1% discount and transaction costs. See note 9 for additional discussion on the Facilities.

14
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The consideration paid by us in connection with the TE Acquisition approximated $584.7 million, at the time of

settlement on July 31, 2007, which included (in millions):
Purchase price:

Cash consideration paid to Senior Lenders of the Transeastern JV

Fair value of convertible preferred stock issued

Fair value of senior subordinated notes issued

Fair value of common stock warrants issued

Payment to purchase land under existing land bank arrangements
Transaction costs including accrued interest paid to the Senior Lenders

Total estimated purchase price

Allocation of purchase consideration:

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash

Inventory (a)

Property and equipment

Accounts payable and other liabilities
Customer deposits

Previously accrued loss contingency (b)
Additional loss on TE Acquisition (c)

(a) The fair value of
the inventory
was determined
by estimating
future cash
flows expected
to result from
the use of the
asset and its
eventual
disposition,
discounted at a
market rate of
interest.

(b) In accordance
with Statement
of Financial
Accounting
Standards No. 5,
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$400.0
84.0
9.1

8.0
50.2
334

$584.7

$ 103
28.4
149.8
1.0
(29.5)
(1.9)
385.9
40.7

$584.7
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Accounting for
Contingencies
( SFAS5 )and
other
authoritative
guidance, as of
June 30, 2007,
the Company
accrued
$385.9 million
for settlement of
aloss
contingency
(determined by
computing the
difference
between the
estimated fair
market value of
the
consideration
paid in
connection with
the global
settlement less
the estimated
fair market
value of the
business
acquired).

(c) There were no
identifiable
intangible assets
or goodwill
associated with
the TE
Acquisition.

The following unaudited pro forma consolidated results of operations assume that the acquisition of Transeastern was

completed as of January 1 for each of the periods shown below (in millions):

Three Months Ended
September 30,
2007 2006

Homebuilding revenues $ 507.0 $757.4
Income (loss) from continuing operations (631.7) 21.1
Net income (loss) available to common stockholders (634.3) 18.7
EARNINGS (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE,
DILUTED:
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations (net of
preferred stock dividends) (10.64) 0.31
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Nine Months Ended
September 30,

2007 2006
$1,763.1 $2,286.2

(879.4) 148.7

(886.8) 141.6

(14.88) 2.38
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Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations (0.07) 0.01 (0.30) 0.02
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share $(10.71) $ 0.32 $ (15.18) $ 240
Pro forma data may not be indicative of the results that would have been obtained had these events actually occurred

at the beginning of the periods presented, nor does it intend to be a projection of future results.
15
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5. Investments in Unconsolidated Joint Ventures
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Summarized in the tables below is condensed combined financial information of unconsolidated entities in which
we have investments that are accounted for by the equity method (dollars in millions). The results of the Transeastern
JV are excluded in the tables below as our investment was written-off in September 2006 and no equity in earnings

have been recognized in any period presented.

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Inventories

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and equity:

Accounts payable and other liabilities
Notes payable

Equity of:

TOUSA, Inc.

Others

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Inventories

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and equity:

Accounts payable and other liabilities
Notes payable

Equity of:

TOUSA, Inc.

Others

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity
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September 30, 2007
Engle/Sunbelt  Others
$ 22 $ 103
180.2 390.9
3.6 55
$186.0 $ 406.7
$ 452 $ 757
88.3 188.0
44.6 65.5
7.9 77.5
52.5 143.0
$186.0 $ 406.7

December 31, 2006
Engle/Sunbelt  Others
$ 225 $ 135
246.6 450.8
29 9.5
$272.0 $473.8
$ 449 $ 89.3
161.3 195.7
56.6 81.8
9.2 107.0
65.8 188.8
$272.0 $473.8

Total
$ 125
571.1
9.1

$592.7

$120.9
276.3

110.1
854

195.5

$592.7

Total
$ 36.0
697.4
12.4

$745.8

$1342
357.0

138.4
116.2

254.6

$745.8
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Three Months Ended Three Months Ended
September 30, 2007 September 30, 2006
Engle/Sunbelt  Others Total Engle/Sunbelt Others Total
Revenues $ 29.0 $ 35.8 $ 64.8 $120.6 $ 242 $144.8
Cost and expenses 33.5 42.0 75.5 106.4 233 129.7
Net earnings (losses) of
unconsolidated joint ventures $ “4.5) $ 6.2 $ (10.7) $ 142 $ 09 $ 15.1
Our share of net earnings
(losses) $ 3.9 $ (5.8) $ 9.7 $ 119 $ 20 $ 139
Management fees earned 0.5 0.3 0.8 3.1 4.3 7.4
Income (loss) from
unconsolidated joint ventures $ (3.4 $ 55 $ 8.9 $ 15.0 $ 63 $ 213
Nine Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2007 September 30, 2006
Engle/Sunbelt  Others Total Engle/Sunbelt Others Total
Revenues $205.1 $ 132.0 $337.1 $421.0 $107.3 $528.3
Cost and expenses 219.1 138.0 357.1 359.6 96.2 455.8
Net earnings (losses) of
unconsolidated joint ventures $ (14.0) $ (6.0 $ (20.0) $ 614 $ 11.1 $ 725
Our share of net earnings
(losses) $ (12.0) $ (7.2 $ (19.2) $ 52.1 $ 43 $ 564
Management fees earned 8.5 0.5 9.0 10.7 16.1 26.8
Income (loss) from
unconsolidated joint ventures $ (3.5 $ 6.7 $ (10.2) $ 628 $ 204 $ 83.2

We have entered into strategic joint ventures to acquire, to develop and to sell land and/or homesites, as well as to
construct and sell homes, in which we have a voting ownership interest of 50% or less and do not have a controlling
interest. Our partners generally are unrelated homebuilders, land sellers, third party financial entities or other real
estate entities. Certain of these joint ventures have third party debt that is secured by the assets of the joint venture;
however, we may be responsible for certain indemnity and completion obligations in the event the joint venture fails
to fulfill certain of its obligations and may be obligated to repay the entire indebtedness upon certain bankruptcy
events. At September 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006, we had receivables of $42.2 million and $27.2 million,
respectively, from these joint ventures, of which $6.6 million and $1.0 million represent notes receivable, respectively.

In many instances, we are appointed as the day-to-day manager of the unconsolidated entities and receive
management fees for performing this function. We earned management fees from these unconsolidated entities of
$0.8 million and $7.4 million for the three months ended September 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively, and $9.0 million
and $26.8 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively. These fees are included in
income (loss) from unconsolidated joint ventures in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. In the
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aggregate, these joint ventures delivered 830 and 1,458 homes for the nine months ended September 30, 2007 and
2006, respectively.

We evaluated the recoverability of our investments in and receivables from unconsolidated joint ventures located
in Florida, Las Vegas, Nevada and Baltimore, Maryland, under APB 18, and recorded total impairments of
$23.4 million and $28.9 million for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2007, respectively.

Engle/Sunbelt Joint Venture

In December 2004, we entered into a joint venture agreement with Suntous Investors, LLC ( Suntous ) to form
Engle/Sunbelt Holdings, LLC ( Engle/Sunbelt ). Engle/Sunbelt was formed to develop finished homesites and deliver
homes in the Phoenix, Arizona market, and upon its inception, the partnership acquired eight of our existing
communities in Phoenix, Arizona. We and Suntous contributed capital of approximately $28.0 million and
$3.2 million, respectively, to Engle/Sunbelt and the joint venture itself

17
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obtained financing arrangements with an aggregate borrowing capacity of $180.0 million, of which $150.0 million
related to a term loan and $30.0 million related to a revolving mezzanine financing instrument.

In July 2005, we contributed assets to Engle/Sunbelt resulting in a net capital contribution by us of $5.4 million. At
that time, Engle/Sunbelt amended its financing arrangements to increase the aggregate borrowing capacity to
$280.0 million, of which $250.0 million related to a term loan and $30.0 million related to a revolving mezzanine
financing instrument. On April 30, 2007, Engle/Sunbelt amended its $250.0 million term loan. The amendment
reduced the aggregate commitment of the lenders from $250.0 million to $200.0 million and extended the maturity
date of the facility to March 17, 2008. In addition, the amendment increased the minimum adjusted tangible net worth
covenant and reduced the minimum interest coverage ratio covenant. The borrowings by Engle/Sunbelt are
non-recourse to us; however, through our subsidiary Engle Homes Residential, LLC, we have agreed to complete any
property development commitments in the event Engle/Sunbelt defaults. Additionally, we agreed to indemnify the
lenders for potential losses resulting from fraud, misappropriation and similar acts by Engle/Sunbelt.

Engle/Sunbelt is unable to borrow under its credit facilities due to certain events with respect to us which are
treated as a material adverse change. The joint venture is currently engaged in negotiations with its lenders to obtain a
waiver. As a result, we are likely to fund critical cash needs to the extent permitted under our credit agreements, and
anticipate being repaid when the joint venture is again able to borrow.

In connection with the July 2005 contribution of assets to Engle/Sunbelt, we realized a gain of $42.6 million for the
year ended December 31, 2005. Due to our continuing involvement with these assets through our investment, for the
year ended December 31, 2005 we deferred $36.3 million of this gain. In March 2006, we assigned to Engle/Sunbelt
our rights under a contract to purchase approximately 539 acres of raw land. We received $18.7 million for the
assignment of the purchase contract and realized a gain of $15.8 million. Due to our continuing involvement with this
contract through our investment in the joint venture, we deferred $13.5 million of this gain. For the nine months ended
September 30, 2007, we deferred an additional $5.1 million related to the assignment of an option to purchase land.
These deferrals are being recognized in the consolidated statement of operations as homes are delivered by the joint
venture.

At September 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006, $23.2 million and $22.8 million, respectively, continued to be
deferred as a result of the contributed assets and contract assignments to Engle/Sunbelt, and is included in accounts
payable and other liabilities in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. For the three and
nine months ended September 30, 2007, $0.8 million and $4.9 million, respectively, of the deferred gain was
recognized and included in cost of sales-other in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations as compared
to $1.7 million and $7.1 million, respectively, for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2006.

TOUSA / Kolter Joint Venture

In January 2005, we entered into a joint venture with Kolter Real Estate Group LLC to form TOUSA/Kolter
Holdings, LLC ( TOUSA/Kolter ) for the purpose of acquiring, developing and selling approximately 1,900 homesites
and commercial property in a master planned community in South Florida. The joint venture obtained senior and
senior subordinated term loans (the term loans ) of which $47.0 million and $7.0 million, respectively, were
outstanding as of September 30, 2007. We entered into a Performance and Completion Agreement in favor of the
lenders under which we agreed, among other things, to construct and complete the horizontal development of the lots
and commercial property and related infrastructure in accordance with certain agreed plans. The term loans required,
among other things, TOUSA/Kolter to have completed the development of certain lots by January 7, 2007. Due to
unforeseen and unanticipated delays in the entitlement process and additional development requests by the county and
water management district, TOUSA/Kolter was unable to complete the development of these certain lots by the
required deadline. On June 21, 2007, and in response to missing the development deadline, TOUSA/Kolter amended
the existing term loan agreements and we amended the Performance and Completion Agreement which remedied the
situation by extending the Performance and Completion Agreement development deadline to May 31, 2008. The
amendment to the term loan agreements increased the interest rate on the senior term loan by 100 basis points to
LIBOR plus 3.25% and by 50 basis points to LIBOR plus 8.5% for the senior subordinated term loan. As a condition
to the amendment, we have agreed to be responsible for the additional 150 basis points; accordingly, this will be paid
by us and will be a cost of the lots we acquire from TOUSA/Kolter. The amendment also required us to increase the
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existing letter of credit by an additional $1.8 million for a total letter of credit deposit of $12.1 million and place an
additional $3.0 million cash deposit on the remaining lots under option which was used by TOUSA/Kolter to pay
down a portion of the senior term loan.

We evaluated the recoverability of our investment in and receivables from TOUSA/Kolter at September 30, 2007
for impairment under APB 18, and recorded an impairment of $16.9 million, which was offset by a deferred gain of
$12.8 million, resulting in a net charge to earnings of $4.1 million.
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Centex/ TOUSA at Wellington, LLC

In December 2005, we entered into a joint venture with Centex Corporation to form Centex/TOUSA at Wellington,
LLC ( Centex/TOUSA at Wellington ) for the purpose of acquiring, developing and selling approximately 264
homesites in a community in South Florida. The joint venture obtained a term loan of which $30.1 million was
outstanding as of September 30, 2007. The credit agreement requires the joint venture to construct and complete the
horizontal development of the lots and related infrastructure in accordance with certain agreed plans. On August 31,
2007, Centex/TOUSA at Wellington received a notice requiring the joint venture partners to contribute approximately
$10.0 million to the joint venture to paydown the term loan in order to be in compliance with the 60% loan-to-value
ratio covenant. Neither us nor our joint venture partner have made the required equity contribution; however,
discussions with the lenders, joint venture partners and potential buyers are ongoing.

We evaluated the recoverability of our investment in and receivables from Centex/TOUSA at Wellington at
September 30, 2007 for impairment under APB 18, and recorded an impairment of $11.6 million based on our current
negotiations with our joint venture partner, lenders and potential third party buyers that would allow us to assign our
equity ownership in return for a release of all of our obligations. Additionally, as part of the negotiations, we have
agreed to relinquish title to certain homesites previously acquired in the amount of $14.7 million. Accordingly, we
have recorded an impairment of such amount at September 30, 2007 that is included in inventory impairments and
abandonment costs in the accompanying statement of operations for the three and nine months ended September 30,
2007.

Layton Lakes Joint Venture

In connection with our joint venture with Lennar Corporation to develop, construct and sell single family homes,
townhome properties and commercial property in Arizona, we entered into a Completion and Limited Indemnity
Agreement for the benefit of the lender to the joint venture. The agreement required us to maintain a tangible net
worth of $400.0 million. As a result of the decrease in our tangible net worth, this covenant has been breached and the
outstanding $60.0 million loan to the joint venture is in default. If the default is not cured within thirty days of notice,
the lender, in its discretion, may accelerate the loan, foreclose on its liens, and exercise all other contractual remedies,
including our completion guaranty. In addition, the operating agreement of the joint venture states that a breach by a
member of any covenant of such member contained in any loan agreement entered into in connection with the
financing of the property is an event of default. Under the operating agreement, a defaulting member does not have the
right to vote or otherwise participate in the management of the joint venture until the default is cured. A defaulting
member can not take down any lots from the joint venture. At September 30, 2007, our investment in the Layton
Lakes joint venture is $25.3 million.

6. Other Assets
Other assets consist of the following (dollars in millions):

September December
30, 31,
2007 2006

Homebuilding:

Deferred income taxes, net $ $ 160.6
Income taxes receivable 234.6 12.9
Accounts receivable 70.1 37.0
Deferred finance costs, net 49.9 16.1
Prepaid expenses 14.7 7.4
Other assets 1.8 2.6
Total other assets $ 371.1 $ 236.6
7. Goodwill
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Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price of our acquisitions over the fair value of the net assets
acquired. Additional consideration paid in subsequent periods under the terms of purchase agreements is included as

acquisition costs.

The change in goodwill for the nine months ended September 30, 2007 and 2006 is as follows (dollars in millions):

Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2007 2006
Balance at January 1 $100.9 $108.8
Earn-out consideration paid on acquisitions 0.9
Impairments (40.9) (5.7)
Balance at September 30 $ 60.0 $104.0
19
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In accordance with SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, we test goodwill for impairment
annually or more frequently if certain impairment indicators are present. For purposes of the impairment test, we
consider each homebuilding division a reporting unit. During the second and third quarters, we determined that the
challenging housing market and the asset impairments taken in certain of our homebuilding divisions were indicators
of impairment. We performed interim goodwill impairment tests as of June 30, 2007 and determined that the goodwill
recorded in our Virginia ($6.5 million), Mid-Atlantic ($21.2 million), and Las Vegas ($10.5 million) divisions was
impaired. We performed interim impairment tests as of September 30, 2007 and determined that the goodwill
recorded in our Southwest Florida ($2.7 million) division was impaired. Accordingly, we recognized goodwill
impairment charges of $40.9 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2007.

8. Accounts Payable and Other Liabilities
Accounts payable and other liabilities consist of the following (dollars in millions):

September December
30, 31,
2007 2006
Homebuilding:
Accrual for settlement of loss contingency (Note 4) $ $ 275.0
Accounts payable 58.6 70.2
Interest 27.0 37.8
Compensation 21.1 27.8
Taxes, including income and real estate 16.4 10.4
Accrual for unpaid invoices on delivered homes 42.5 23.6
Accrued expenses 192.8 51.3
Warranty costs 5.4 7.4
Deferred revenue 32.3 50.7
Total accounts payable and other liabilities $ 396.1 $ 554.2
9. Homebuilding and Financial Services Borrowings
Homebuilding Borrowings
Homebuilding borrowings consisted of the following (dollars in millions):
September December
30, 31,
2007 2006
Revolving Loan Facility $ 150.3 $
First Lien Term Loan Facility due 2012 199.5
Discount on First Lien Term Loan Facility (1.9
Second Lien Term Loan Facility due 2013 306.8
Discount on Second Lien Term Loan Facility (2.9)
Senior notes due 2010, at 9% 300.0 300.0
Senior notes due 2011, at 8-1/4% 250.0 250.0
Discount on senior notes (2.8) 3.5
Senior subordinated notes due 2012, at 10-3/8% 185.0 185.0
Senior subordinated notes due 2011, at 7-1/2% 125.0 125.0
Senior subordinated notes due 2015, at 7-1/2% 200.0 200.0
Premium on senior subordinated notes 3.8 4.2
Senior Subordinated PIK Note due 2015, at 14-3/4% 20.5
Discount on Senior Subordinated PIK Note (8.9)
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$ 1,724.4 $ 1,060.7

To effect the TE Acquisition, on July 31, 2007, we entered into the (i) $200.0 million aggregate principal amount
first lien term loan facility (the First Lien Term Loan Facility ) and (ii) $300.0 million aggregate principal amount
second lien term loan facility (the Second Lien Term Loan Facility ), (First and Second Lien Term Loan Facilities
taken together, the Facilities ) with Citicorp North America, Inc. as Administrative Agent. The proceeds from the
credit facilities were used to satisfy claims of the senior lenders against the Transeastern JV. Our existing $800.0
million revolving loan facility (the Revolving Loan Facility ) was amended and
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restated to (i) reduce the revolving commitments thereunder by $100.0 million and (ii) permit the incurrence of the
Facilities (and make other conforming changes relating to the Facilities). Collectively, these transactions are referred

to as the Financing. Net proceeds from the Financing at closing were $470.6 million which is net of a 1% discount and
transaction costs. The Revolving Loan Facility expires on March 9, 2010. The First Lien Term Loan Facility expires

on July 31, 2012 and the Second Lien Term Loan Facility expires on July 31, 2013.

On October 25, 2007, our Revolving Loan Facility was amended by Amendment No. 1 to the Second Amended
and Restated Revolving Credit Agreement. Among other things, the existing agreement was amended with respect to
(1) the pricing of loans, (ii) limiting the amounts which may be borrowed prior to December 31, 2007 to
$130.0 million, including draws under outstanding letters of credit, (iii) modifying the definition of a Material
Adverse Effect, (iv) waiving compliance with certain representations and financial covenants, (v) establishing
minimum operating cash flow requirements, (vi) requiring compliance with weekly budgets, (vii) inclusion of a five
week operating cash flow covenant at the end of November, (viii) requiring the payment of certain fees, and
(ix) reducing the Lenders commitments by $50,000,000.

On October 25, 2007, the First Lien Term Loan Credit Agreement was also amended by Amendment No. 1 to the
First Lien Term Loan Credit Agreement to amend certain terms including (i) the pricing of loans, (ii) the definition of

Material Adverse Effect, and (iii) waiving compliance with certain financial covenants.

The interest rates on the Facilities and the Revolving Loan Facility are based on LIBOR plus a margin or an
alternate base rate plus a margin, at our option. For the Revolving Loan Facility, the LIBOR rates are increased by
between 2.50% and 5.25% depending on our leverage ratio (as defined in the Agreement) and credit ratings. Loans
bearing interest at the base rate (the rate announced by Citibank as its base rate or 0.50% above the Federal Funds
Rate) increase between 1.00% and 4.25% in accordance with the same criteria. Based on our current leverage ratio
and credit ratings, our LIBOR loans bear interest at LIBOR plus 5.25% and our base rate loans bear interest at the
Federal Funds Rate plus 4.25%. For the First Lien Term Loan Facility, the interest rate is LIBOR plus 5.00% or base
rate plus 4.00%. For the Second Lien Term Loan Facility, the interest rate is LIBOR plus 7.25% or base rate plus
6.25%. The Second Lien Term Loan Facility allows us to pay interest, at our option, (i) in cash, (ii) entirely by
increasing the principal amount of the Second Lien Term Loan Facility, or (iii) a combination thereof. The Facilities
and the New Revolving Loan Facility are guaranteed by substantially all of our domestic subsidiaries (the

Guarantors ). The obligations are secured by substantially all of our assets, including those of our Guarantors. Our
mortgage and title subsidiaries are not Guarantors. The loans under the Facilities may be prepaid at certain times (the
Second Lien Term Loan Facility may not be prepaid prior to its first anniversary), subject to certain premiums upon
repayment. The Facilities and the Revolving Loan Facility impose certain limitations on us, including with respect to:
(1) dividends on, redemptions and repurchases of, equity interests; (ii) prepayments of junior indebtedness,
redemptions and repurchases of debt; (iii) the incurrence of liens and sale-leaseback transactions; (iv) loans and
investments including joint ventures; and (v) incurrence of debt. The Facilities and Revolving Loan Facility also
contain events of default and have financial covenants, including but not limited to the following covenants:

(1) minimum adjusted consolidated tangible net worth; (ii) maximum ratio of debt to adjusted consolidated tangible
net worth; (iii) minimum ratio of EBITDA to interest capitalized; (iv) maximum ratio of units owned to units closed;
(v) maximum ratio of land to adjusted consolidated tangible net worth; and (vi) maximum ratio of unsold units to units
closed. As noted above, on October 25, 2007, the Revolving Loan Facility and the First Lien Term Loan Facility were
amended to waive the financial covenants through December 31, 2007. The Revolving Loan Facility is subject to a
borrowing base, which includes a reserve for amounts outstanding under the Facilities. The Second Lien Term Loan
Facility contains a limitation on amounts outstanding under the Revolving Loan Facility and the Facilities based on a
percentage of inventory.

Interest on the PIK Notes is payable semi-annually. The PIK Notes are unsecured senior subordinated obligations
of ours, and are guaranteed on an unsecured senior subordinated basis by each of our existing and future subsidiaries
that guarantee our 7.5% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2015 (the Existing Notes ). We are required to pay 1% of the
interest in cash and the remaining 13.75%, at our option, (i) in cash, (ii) entirely by increasing the principal amount of
the Notes or issuing new notes, or (iii) a combination thereof. The Notes will mature on July 1, 2015. The indenture
governing the Notes contains the same covenants as contained in the indenture governing the Existing Notes and is
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subject, in most cases, to any change to such covenants made to the indenture governing the Existing Notes. The
Notes are redeemable by us at redemption prices greater than their principal amount. The PIK Notes contain an
optional redemption feature that allows us to redeem up to a maximum of 35% of the aggregate principal amount of
the PIK Notes using the proceeds of subsequent sales of its equity interest at 114.75% of the aggregate principal
amount of the PIK Notes then outstanding, plus accrued and unpaid interest. Additionally, after July 1, 2012, subject
to certain terms of our other debt agreements, we may redeem the PIK Notes at a premium to the principal amount as
follows: 2012-107.375%; 2013-103.688%; 2014 and thereafter-100.000%. The call options exercisable at anytime
after July 1, 2012 at a premium do not require bifurcation under SFAS 133 because they are only exercisable by us
and they are not contingently exercisable. The redemption option conditionally exercisable based on the proceeds
raised from an equity offering at 114.75% of up to 35% of the aggregate outstanding PIK Note principal represents an
embedded call option that must be bifurcated from the PIK Notes; however, the fair value of this call option is not
material and has not been bifurcated from the host instrument at September 30, 2007.

The PIK Notes provide for registration rights for the holders whereby the interest rate shall increase by 0.25% per
annum for the first 90 days of a registration default, as defined, which amount shall increase by an additional 0.25%
every 90 days a registration default is continuing, not to exceed 1.0% in the aggregate, from and including the date of
the registration default to and excluding the date on which the registration default is cured. Registration default
payments shall be paid, at our option, in (i) cash, (ii) additional Notes, or (iii) a combination thereof. For the three and
nine months ended September 30, 2007, we have not incurred additional interest expense as a result of such default.

We have been notified by the New York Stock Exchange that our stock is below the minimum average trading
price required for continued listing. We may receive additional notices of non-compliance with certain other standards
including market capitalization shortly. If our shares are delisted from the NYSE, this will constitute a change of
control under our credit agreements, which is an event of default. The lenders may terminate our right to borrow and
declare the loans to be due and payable. We are currently in discussions with our lenders to obtain a waiver for this
event of default. No assurances can be made that a waiver will be obtained.

While the amendments provide us with temporary relief from certain credit agreement covenants, we face many
challenges including, among other things, our current level of indebtedness, which challenge has become much further
intensified based on
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market conditions that have become materially worse for all homebuilders since late July 2007. In connection
therewith, and as noted above, we are pursuing a number of initiatives including asset sales, the wind down of
divisions, abandoning our rights under option contracts that no longer provide acceptable returns based on changing
conditions, further reductions in selling, general and administrative expenses and are considering all available
restructuring and reorganization alternatives and processes including, among other things, restructuring our capital
structure including attempting to exchange some or all of our outstanding indebtedness for equity. We may not be
successful in achieving these alternatives and the alternatives, if achieved, may not be successful. See further
discussion in Note 1.

Our indentures also limit our ability to incur new indebtedness. Any new borrowings (other than certain
refinancing indebtedness) are limited to $415.7 million.

As of September 30, 2007, we had $150.3 million outstanding under the Revolving Loan Facility, had issued
letters of credit totaling $213.9 million and had $130.0 million in availability, all of which we could have borrowed
without violating any of our debt covenants considering the amendment to these covenants made on October 25, 2007.
In order to fund our future operations we may have to draw additional amounts under our Revolving Loan Facility.
Such amounts may not be available to us if we are unable to satisfy our covenants and may be further restricted based
on the fact that our October 25, 2007 amendments extend only to December 31, 2007. Therefore, if we are not able to
successfully renegotiate new acceptable terms or refinance our current borrowings, we will be in default.

On April 12, 2006, we issued $250.0 million of the 8-1/4% senior notes due 2011 for net proceeds of
$248.8 million. In connection with the issuance of the 8 1/4 % senior notes, we filed within 90 days of the issuance a
registration statement with the SEC covering a registered offer to exchange the notes for exchange notes of ours
having terms substantially identical in all material respects to the notes (except that the exchange notes will not
contain terms with respect to special interest or transfer restrictions). The registration statement has not been declared
effective within the required 180 days of issuance and, as a result, on October 9, 2006, in accordance with their terms,
the notes became subject to special interest which accrues at a rate of 0.25% per annum during the 90-day period
immediately following the occurrence of such default, and shall increase by 0.25% per annum at the end of each
90-day period, up to a maximum of 1.0% per annum. For the nine months ended September 30, 2007, we incurred
$1.8 million of additional interest expense as a result of such default.

Our outstanding senior notes are guaranteed, on a joint and several basis, by the Guarantor Subsidiaries, which are
all of our material domestic subsidiaries, other than our mortgage and title subsidiaries (the Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries). Our outstanding senior subordinated notes are guaranteed on a senior subordinated basis by all of the
Guarantor Subsidiaries. The senior notes rank pari passu in right of payment with all of our existing and future
unsecured senior debt and senior in right of payment to our senior subordinated notes and any future subordinated
debt. The senior subordinated notes rank pari passu in right of payment with all of our existing and future unsecured
senior subordinated debt. The indentures governing the senior notes and senior subordinated notes generally require us
to maintain a minimum consolidated net worth and place certain restrictions on our ability, among other things, to
incur additional debt, pay or declare dividends or other restricted payments, sell assets, enter into transactions with
affiliates, invest in joint ventures above specified amounts, and merge or consolidate with other entities. Interest on
our outstanding senior notes and senior subordinated notes is payable semi-annually.

Financial Services Borrowings

Our mortgage subsidiary has two warehouse lines of credit in place to fund the origination of residential mortgage
loans. The primary revolving warehouse line of credit (the Primary Warehouse Line of Credit ), which was amended
on December 9, 2006, provides for revolving loans of up to $100.0 million. The Primary Warehouse Line of Credit, as
amended, expires on December 8, 2007. The Primary Warehouse Line of Credit, as amended, bears interest at the
30 day LIBOR rate plus a margin of 1.0% to 3.0%, except for certain specialty mortgage loans, determined based
upon the type of mortgage loans being financed. The Primary Warehouse Line of Credit, as amended, also places
certain restrictions on, among other things, our mortgage subsidiary s ability to incur additional debt, create liens, pay
or declare dividends or other restricted payments, make equity investments, enter into transactions with affiliates, and
merge or consolidate with other entities.
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On August 7, 2007, we amended our mortgage subsidiary s other $50.0 million warehouse line of credit to reduce
the size of the facility to $35.0 million (the Secondary Warehouse Line of Credit ). The Secondary Warehouse Line of
Credit is comprised of (1) a credit facility providing for revolving loans of up to $20.0 million, subject to meeting
borrowing base requirements based on the value of collateral provided, and (2) a mortgage loan purchase and sale
agreement which provides for the purchase by the lender of up to $15.0 million in mortgage loans generated by our
mortgage subsidiary. On September 18, 2007 the purchase and sale agreement was expanded from $15.0 million to
$30.0 million. At no time may the amount outstanding under this Secondary Warehouse Line of Credit, plus the
amount of purchased loans pursuant to the purchase and sale agreement exceed $50.0 million. The Secondary
Warehouse Line of Credit bears interest at the 30 day LIBOR rate plus a margin of 1.125%. The Secondary
Warehouse Line of Credit expires on August 8, 2008.
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As a result of the Company breaching certain covenants in its Second Amended and Restated Revolving Credit
Agreement and First Lien Term Loan Credit Agreement as of September 30, 2007, an event of default occurred under
the $20.0 million credit facility within the Secondary Warehouse Line of Credit. Although an amendment dated
October 25, 2007 waived the default, the lender has no obligation to make any loans through the waiver period which
ends December 31, 2007.

Both lines of credit are secured by funded mortgages, which are pledged as collateral, and require our mortgage
subsidiary to maintain certain financial ratios and minimums. At September 30, 2007, we had $13.1 million in
borrowings under our Primary Warehouse Line of Credit, with the capacity to borrow an additional $86.9 million,
subject to satisfying the relevant borrowing conditions. At September 30, 2007, we had $9.3 million in borrowings
under our Secondary Warehouse Line of Credit. In accordance with the waiver obtained, we currently have no
borrowings outstanding under the Secondary Warehouse Line of Credit.

10. Income Taxes

We account for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes ( SFAS 109 ) as
interpreted by FIN 48. Under SFAS 109, income taxes are accounted for using the asset and liability method. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognized based on the anticipated future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax basis.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the
years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets
and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. FIN 48,
which became effective for us on January 1, 2007, prescribed the minimum threshold a tax position is required to meet
before being recognized in the financial statements and provided guidance on derecognition, measurement,
classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, and transition. FIN 48 also requires expanded
disclosure with respect to uncertainty in income taxes.

As a result of the implementation of FIN 48, we recognized a $1.3 million increase in our liability for unrecognized
tax benefits, which was accounted for as a reduction of retained earnings at January 1, 2007. After giving effect to the
adjustment above, we recorded a $5.1 million liability for unrecognized tax benefits as of January 1, 2007, which
includes interest and penalties of $0.4 million. The liability for unrecognized tax benefits is included as an offset to the
income taxes receivable which is included in other assets in the accompanying statement of financial condition as of
September 30, 2007. We recognize interest and penalties accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in our provision
for tax expense. Total unrecognized tax benefits that, if recognized, would affect the effective tax rate is $5.6 million,
including interest and penalties at September 30, 2007.

Our policy for interest and penalties under FIN 48 related to income tax exposures was not impacted as a result of
the adoption and measurement provisions of FIN 48. We continue to recognize interest and penalties as capitalized
within the provision for income taxes in our consolidated statements of operations. We have recorded a liability of
$0.9 million and $0.4 million for interest and penalties, which is included as a component of the liabilities for
unrecognized tax benefits at September 30, 2007 and January 1, 2007, respectively. To the extent interest and
penalties are not assessed with respect to uncertain tax positions, amounts accrued will be reduced and reflected as a
reduction of the overall income tax provision.

We are subject to U.S. federal income tax as well as to income tax in multiple state jurisdictions. We have
effectively closed all U.S. federal income tax matters for years through 2002. The Internal Revenue Service is
currently examining our consolidated tax return for fiscal year 2004. Management believes that the tax liabilities
recorded are adequate. However, a significant assessment in excess of liabilities recorded against us
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could have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

As of September 30, 2007, we have gross deferred tax assets of $320.1 million, resulting primarily from deductible
temporary differences. At September 30, 2007, we have provided for a valuation allowance on our deferred tax assets
of $320.1 million as compared to $42.1 million at December 31, 2006. The valuation allowance has been established
and maintained for deferred tax assets on a more likely than not threshold. We have considered the following possible
sources of taxable income when assessing the realization of the deferred tax assets: (i) future reversals of existing
taxable temporary differences; (ii) taxable income in prior carryback years; (iii) tax planning strategies; and (iv) future
taxable income exclusive of reversing temporary differences and carryforwards.

Since all of the taxable income in the prior carryback years is anticipated to be offset by 2007 operating losses, the
first source of taxable income listed above is not available to support the recognition of our deferred tax assets.
Additionally, due to our cumulative losses in recent years, we have not relied upon future taxable income exclusive of
reversing temporary differences and carryforwards for the realization of any of our deferred tax assets. Reliance on
future taxable income as a source is difficult when there is negative evidence such as in our situation where we have
cumulative losses. Cumulative losses weigh heavily in our overall assessment. We determine cumulative losses on a
rolling twelve-quarter basis. Income forecasts were considered in conjunction with other positive and negative
evidence, including our current financial performance, the financial impact of the Transeastern JV settlement, our
market environment and other factors. As a result, the conclusion was made that there was not sufficient positive
evidence to enable us to conclude that it was more likely than not that our deferred tax assets would be realized.
Therefore, we have provided a valuation allowance on the entire amount of our net deferred tax assets. This
assessment will continue to be undertaken in the future.

Our results of operations may be impacted in the future by our inability to realize a tax benefit for future tax losses
or for items that will generate additional deferred tax assets. Our results of operations might be favorably impacted in
the future by reversals of valuation allowances if we are able to demonstrate sufficient positive evidence that our
deferred tax assets will be realized. However, there could be restrictions on the amount of the carryforwards that can
be utilized if certain changes in our ownership should occur which likely would significantly limit potential future
benefit, even if we could demonstrate sufficient positive evidence that our deferred taxes could otherwise be realized.

Primarily as a result of the change in our valuation allowance during the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2007, the effective tax rate applied to our losses for the three and nine months ended September 30,
2007 is significantly below the federal statutory rate of 35%.

We anticipate receiving refunds of previously paid income taxes for 2005 and 2006 through the carryback of its
taxable loss. From 2007, refunds of both federal and state income taxes as the result of recently filed returns for 2006
and refunds of 2007 estimated taxes totaling approximately $240.2 million. This amount, offset by the $5.6 million
liability for unrecognized tax benefits discussed above is reflected in other assets in the accompanying statement of
financial condition at September 30, 2007.

11. Commitments and Contingencies

We are involved in various claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business. In the opinion of
management, the ultimate disposition of these matters are not expected to have a material adverse effect on our
consolidated financial position or results of operations.

Warranty

We provide homebuyers with a limited warranty of workmanship and materials from the date of sale for up to two
years. We generally have recourse against our subcontractors for claims relating to workmanship and materials. We
also provide up to a ten-year homeowner s warranty which covers major structural and design defects related to homes
sold by us during the policy period, subject to a significant self-insured retention per occurrence. Estimated warranty
costs are recorded at the time of sale based on historical experience and current factor. Warranty costs are included in
accounts payable and other liabilities in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2007 and 2006, the activity in our warranty cost accrual consisted of
the following (dollars in millions):

Nine Months Ended
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September 30,
2007 2006
Accrued warranty costs at January 1 $ 74 $ 6.6
Liability recorded for warranties issued during the period 4.4 6.8
Warranty work performed 4.4) (5.9
Adjustments (2.0) 0.3
Accrued warranty costs at September 30 $ 54 $ 78

Letters of Credit and Performance Bonds

We are subject to the normal obligations associated with entering into contracts for the purchase, development and
sale of real estate in the routine conduct of our business. We are committed under various letters of credit and
performance bonds which are required for certain development activities, deposits on land and deposits on homesite
purchase contracts. Under these arrangements, we had total outstanding letters of credit of $213.9 million. As a result
of abandoning our rights under option contracts, as of September 30, 2007, we accrued $99.7 million for letters of
credits which we anticipated would be drawn due to nonperformance under such contracts. Of this amount,
$91.2 million of letters of credit have been drawn and have increased our borrowings outstanding under our Revolving
Loan Facility.

At September 30, 2007, we have total outstanding performance / surety bonds of $233.5 million and have
estimated our exposure on our outstanding surety bonds to be $151.5 million based on development remaining to be
completed. We have been experiencing a reduction in availability of security bond capacity. In addition to increasing

cost of surety bond premiums there have been, and may continue to be, some cases
24
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where we have to obtain a letter of credit or provide other collateral to secure necessary surety bonds. If we are unable
to secure such bonds, we may elect to post alternative forms of collateral with government entities or escrow agents.

Exposure on Abandoned Homesite Option Contracts

As of September 30, 2007, we have abandoned our rights under option contracts that require us to complete the
development of land for a fixed reimbursable amount. At September 30, 2007, we recorded a loss accrual of
$22.7 million, in connection with the abandonment of these option contracts, for our estimated obligations under the
development agreements. This accrual is included in accounts payable and other liabilities in the accompanying
consolidated statement of financial condition at September 30, 2007.

In addition, certain of these option contracts give the other party the right to require us to purchase homesites or
guarantee certain minimum returns. As of September 30, 2007, we have abandoned our rights under option contracts
that give the other party the right to require us to purchase the homesites. On some of these option contracts, we have
received notices in which the other party is exercising their right to require us to purchase the homesites under this
provision of the option contracts. We do not have the ability to comply with these notices due to liquidity constraints.
These option contracts were previously consolidated and the inventory was included in inventory not owned and the
corresponding liability was included in obligations for inventory not owned. As we do not have the intent or the
ability to comply with the requirement to purchase the property, we have deconsolidated these option contracts at
September 30, 2007. Capitalized pre-acquisition costs associated with these option contracts are impaired and
$33.3 million was written off during the three months ended September 30, 2007. In addition, at September 30, 2007,
we recorded a loss accrual of $12.6 million, in connection with the abandonment of these option contracts, for our
estimated obligations under these option contracts and $19.3 million for letters of credit which we anticipated would
be drawn due to nonperformance under such contracts.

Class Action Lawsuit

Beginning In December 2006, various stockholder plaintiffs brought lawsuits seeking class action status in the U.S.
District Court for the Southern District of Florida. At a hearing held March 29, 2007, the Court consolidated the
actions and heard arguments on the appointment of lead plaintiff and counsel. On September 7, 2007, the Court
appointed Diamondback Capital Management, L.L.C. as the lead plaintiff and approved Diamondback s selection of
counsel. Pursuant to a scheduling order, the lead plaintiff filed a Consolidated Complaint on November 2, 2007. The
Consolidated Complaint names us, all of our directors, David Keller, Randy Kotler, Beatriz Koltis, Lonnie Fedrick,
Technical Olympic, S.A., UBS Securities LLC, Citigroup Global Markets Inc., Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. and
JMP Securities LLC as defendants. The alleged class period is August 1, 2005 to March 19, 2007. The plaintiffs allege
that our public filings and other public statements that described the financing for the Transeastern Joint Venture as
non-recourse to us were false and misleading. Plaintiffs also allege that certain public filings and statements were
misleading or suffered from material omissions in failing to fully disclose or describe the Completion and Carve-Out
Guaranties that we executed in support of the Transeastern JV financing. Plaintiffs assert claims under Section 11 of
the Securities Act against all defendants other than Ms. Koltis for strict liability and negligence regarding the
registration statements and prospectus associated with the September 2005 offering of 4 million shares of stock. As
explained above, plaintiffs contend that the registration statements and prospectus contained material
misrepresentations and suffered from material omissions in the description of the Transeastern JV financing and our
related obligations. Plaintiffs assert related claims against Technical Olympic, S.A. and Messrs. K. Stengos, Mon,
Keller and McAden as controlling persons responsible for the statements in the registration statements and prospectus.
Plaintiffs also allege claims under Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act for fraud with respect to various public
statements about the non-recourse nature of the Transeastern debt and alleged omissions in disclosing or describing
the Guaranties. These claims are alleged against us, Messrs. Mon, McAden, Keller and Kotler and Ms. Koltis. Finally,
plaintiffs assert related claims against Messrs. Mon, Keller, Kotler and McAden as controlling persons responsible for
the various alleged false disclosures. Plaintiffs seek compensatory damages, plus fees and costs, on behalf of
themselves and the putative class of purchasers of our common stock and purchasers and sellers of options on our
common stock. Our response to the Consolidated Complaint is due on January 2, 2008. No trial date has been set in
these consolidated actions.

Bondholders
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On October 26, 2007, our Board of Directors received a letter from counsel to a group of holders of our senior and
subordinated notes (the Noteholder Group ). The Noteholder Group claimed that we had transferred approximately
$422.9 million to lenders to the Transeastern JV on July 31, 2007. The Noteholder Group argued that the transfer may
be avoidable under section 547 of the Bankruptcy Code if we filed for bankruptcy protection on or before October 29,
2007. The Noteholder Group urged that our Board of Directors take all steps necessary to preserve the section 547
claim, including directing that we file for bankruptcy on or before October 29, 2007. The Noteholder Group reserved
its rights to file claims for breach of fiduciary duty and aiding breach of fiduciary duty if we did not file for
bankruptcy in time to preserve the Section 547 claim. We did not file for bankruptcy protection as requested by the
Noteholder Group.

12. Stockholders Equity and Stock-Based Compensation

Under the TOUSA, Inc. Annual and Long-Term Incentive Plan (the Plan ) employees, consultants and directors of
ours, our subsidiaries and affiliated entities, (as defined in the Plan), are eligible to receive options to purchase shares
of common stock. Each stock option expires on a date determined when the options are granted, but not more than ten
years after the date of grant. Stock options granted have a vesting period ranging from immediate vesting to a graded
vesting over five years. Under the Plan, subject to adjustment as defined, the maximum number of shares with respect
to which awards may be granted is 8,250,000. At September 30, 2007, there were 169,359 shares available for grant.

Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted the provisions of the 2004-revised SFAS No. 123, Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation ( SFAS 123 ), Share-Based Payment ( SFAS 123R ), using the
modified-prospective-transition method. Under this transition method, compensation expense recognized during the
nine months ended September 30, 2006 included: (a) compensation
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expense for all share-based awards granted prior to, but not yet vested as of January 1, 2006, based on the grant date
fair value estimated in accordance with the original provisions of SFAS 123, and (b) compensation expense for all
share-based awards granted subsequent to January 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance
with the provisions of SFAS 123R. Additionally, in connection with the adoption of SFAS 123R we recognized a
cumulative change in accounting principle of $2.0 million, net of tax, related to certain common stock purchase rights
that were accounted for under the variable accounting method. The cumulative effect of the change in accounting
principle of $3.2 million, gross of tax, was not material and therefore was included in selling, general and
administrative expenses with the related tax effect of $1.2 million included in the provision for income taxes rather
than displayed separately as a cumulative change in accounting principle in the consolidated statement of operations.
The adoption of SFAS 123R resulted in a charge of $10.7 million and $6.8 million to income from continuing
operations before income taxes and net income, respectively, for the nine months ended September 30, 2006. The
impact of adopting SFAS 123R on both basic and diluted earnings was $0.11 per share for the nine months ended
September 30, 2006.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2007 and 2006, we recognized compensation expense related to stock
options of $3.0 million and $2.9 million, respectively.

Activity under the Plan for the nine months ended September 30, 2007 was as follows:

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Options Price
Options outstanding at December 31, 2006 7,712,574 $13.04
Granted 189,552 $ 945
Exercised $
Forfeited (45,000) $17.61
Options outstanding at September 30, 2007 7,857,126 $12.93

As of September 30, 2007, there was $3.6 million of total unrecognized compensation expense related to unvested
stock option awards.

Convertible PIK Preferred Stock

The Preferred Stock ranks senior to all of our capital stock with respect to liquidation, dividends and has an initial
aggregate liquidation preference of $117.5 million and accrues dividends semi-annually at 8% per annum as follows:
(1) 1% payable in cash; (ii) the remaining 7% payable, at our option, in cash, additional Preferred Stock, or a
combination thereof at our option. The Preferred Stock is mandatorily redeemable on July 1, 2015 in, at our option,
cash, Common Stock or a combination thereof. The Preferred Stock is convertible into our Common Stock, at a
conversion price which initially equals the 20-trading day average Common Stock closing price commencing 60 days
immediately after the closing of the settlement (the Measurement Period ) multiplied by 1.40. The Measurement Period
has ended and the resulting conversion price is $1.61 per share. As a result, if all of the holders of the Preferred Stock
exercised the conversion feature, the Company would have to issue approximately 73.0 million shares of its Common
Stock. The conversion price of the Preferred Stock will be adjusted for certain anti-dilution events including below
market price or below the conversion price issuances by us of our Common Stock, subject to certain exceptions. We
believe the Preferred Stock conversion feature is substantive.

Since the redemption of the Preferred Stock is contingently or optionally redeemable and therefore not certain to
occur and the conversion feature is substantive, the Preferred Stock is not required to be classified as a liability under
SFAS 150. The Preferred Stock is redeemable in cash solely at the Company s option, except in normal liquidation.
Holders can not require the Company to settle the instrument, including accrued and unpaid dividends, in cash. As
there are no situations whereby this option is outside of the Company s control, the Preferred Stock meets the
requirements of permanent equity classification pursuant to ASR 268. While the Preferred Stock is redeemable for
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cash, redemption is not (1) at a fixed or determinable price on a fixed or determinable date, (2) at the option of the
holder, or (3) upon the occurrence of an event that is not solely within our control. We believe that cash would only be
required to be paid to the Preferred Stock in a liquidation event and, therefore, the criteria for permanent equity
classification pursuant to EITF Topic D-98 have been met. In addition, based on analyses of the requirements of
paragraphs 12 through 32 of EITF 00-19, the settlement of the conversion and redemption features in shares are within
the Company s control. Therefore, the Preferred Stock has been classified as a component of stockholders equity.
Further, no other embedded derivatives require bifurcation from the Preferred Stock under SFAS 133 and EITF 00-19.

As of September 30, 2007, the Preferred Stock redemption amount includes amounts representing dividends not
currently declared or paid but which will be payable under the redemption features. The Preferred Stock is currently
redeemable because redemption of the instrument, absent the existence of the share settled conversion option, is
certain to occur at maturity. As of
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September 30, 2007, $0.6 million of the redemption amount was accreted to the Preferred Stock and recognized as a
reduction to additional paid in capital, consistent with EITF Topic D-98.

The Preferred Stock contains a contingent dividend feature, which provides for an increase in the dividend rate of
0.25% during the period in which the Company fails to register the underlying common stock. This increase in the
dividend rate becomes effective after 270 days. The contingent dividend feature constitutes an obligation to make
future payments or otherwise transfer consideration under a registration payment arrangement. In accordance with
FSP EITF 00-19-2, the contingent dividend feature should be separately recognized and measured in accordance with
SFAS 5. As of September 30, 2007, there was no amount accrued for the Company s obligation under the registration
payment arrangement.

In accordance with EITF 98-5, the intrinsic value of the beneficial conversion feature required measurement at the
commitment date by comparing the Company s stock price at date of closing to the conversion price, as defined, which
is determinable at the end of the 20 trading days commencing 60 calendar days after closing. In accordance with EITF
00-27, $84.0 million, representing the intrinsic value of the beneficial conversion feature (which is limited to the fair
value of the instrument), is amortized from additional-paid in capital to Preferred Stock from October 26, 2007 to
July 1, 2015. The value attributable to the beneficial conversion feature will be recognized and measured by allocating
a portion of the proceeds to additional paid-in-capital and a discount to the Preferred Stock.

Dividends of and amortization of the discount on the Preferred Stock are recorded as charges to retained earnings
or additional paid in capital, if no retained earnings, and reduce net income in the determination of income available to
shareholders for the purposes of computing basic and diluted earnings per share.

Also, because the Preferred Stock allows the Company to chose whether dividends are paid in kind or in cash,
consitent with EITF 00-27, we will determine and, if required, measure a beneficial conversion feature based on the
fair value of its stock price on the date dividends are declared on the Convertible Preferred shares and will be
recognized as a reduction to retained earnings and the convertible preferred shares newly issued if the fair value of the
stock on the declaration date is below the contractual conversion price. The discount on the Convertible Preferred
shares issued as PIK dividends will then be accreted through the contractual maturity of the instrument.

The Preferred Stock is not a participating security, as defined in SFAS 128 and EITF 03-6, and, therefore, does not
require the two-class method of calculating EPS. The Preferred Stock provides for the adjustment to the conversion
price for common stock dividends declared. The Preferred Stock have not been included in diluted EPS at September
30, 2007 as their effect is anti-dilutive.

Warrants

The Warrants are exercisable for a term of five years from the date of issuance. The warrants had an estimated fair
value of $16.3 million at issuance (based on the Black-Scholes option pricing model and certain agreed upon inputs).
The warrants were issued in two tranches with exercise prices based on the Measurement Period multiplied by 1.25 or
1.50, respectively. The Measurement Period has ended. As a result, the warrants are exercisable as follows
(1) 5,045,662 shares of Common Stock can be purchased at $5.31 per share, and (ii) 5,045,662 shares of Common
Stock can be purchased at $6.38 per share. The exercise prices of the Warrants will be adjusted for certain
anti-dilution events including below market price or below the conversion price issuances by the Company of its
Common Stock, subject to certain exceptions. Upon exercise of the warrants by the holders thereof, we may, in our
sole discretion, satisfy our obligations under any warrant being exercised by: (i) paying the holder the value of the
Common Stock to be delivered in cash less the exercise price; (ii) paying such amount in Common Stock rather than
cash; (iii) delivering shares of Common Stock upon receiving the cash exercise price therefore; or (iv) any
combination of the foregoing.

The Charter Amendment

In connection with the closing of the Transeastern JV settlement, we increased the authorized shares of Common
Stock in our Certificate of Incorporation to 975,000,000 to provide sufficient shares for, among other things, the
maximum amount of shares of Common Stock to be delivered upon full exercise of the warrants and full conversion
of shares of the Preferred Stock. We currently have approximately 60 million shares of Common Stock outstanding.
We made the amendment pursuant to the written consent of our controlling stockholder, which was effective on
July 30, 2007.
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13. Operating and Reportable Segments

Our operating segments are aggregated into reportable segments in accordance with SFAS No. 131, Disclosures
About Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information, based primarily upon similar economic characteristics,
product type, geographic areas, and information used by the chief operating decision maker to allocate resources and
assess performance. Our reportable segments consist of our four major Homebuilding geographic regions (Florida,
Mid-Atlantic, Texas and the West) and our Financial Services operations.

Through our four homebuilding regions, we design, build and market detached single-family residences, town
homes and condominiums in various metropolitan markets in ten states, located as follows:
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Florida: Central Florida, Jacksonville, Southeast Florida, Southwest Florida, Tampa/St. Petersburg
Mid-Atlantic: Baltimore/Southern Pennsylvania, Delaware, Nashville, Northern Virginia
Texas: Austin, Houston, San Antonio
West: Colorado, Las Vegas, Phoenix

Evaluation of segment performance is based on the segment s results of operations without consideration of income
taxes. Results of operations for our four homebuilding segments consist of revenues generated from the sales of
homes and land, equity in earnings from unconsolidated joint ventures, and other income/expense less the cost of
homes and land sold and selling, general and administrative expenses. The results of operations for our Financial
Services segment consists of revenues generated from mortgage financing, title insurance and other ancillary services
less the cost of such services and certain selling, general and administrative expenses.
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The operational results of each of our segments are not necessarily indicative of the results that would have

occurred had each segment been an independent, stand-alone entity during the periods presented. Financial
information relating to our operations, presented by segment, was as follows (dollars in millions):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2007 2006 2007 2006

Revenues:
Homebuilding:
Florida $ 195.6 $ 218.1 $ 671.1 $ 7729
Mid-Atlantic 81.4 70.2 196.1 211.4
Texas* 149.0 156.7 469.0 438.5
West 66.9 131.8 283.1 358.8
Total Homebuilding 492.9 576.8 1,619.3 1,781.6
Financial Services 8.3 15.8 31.3 48.4
Total revenues $ 501.2 $ 592.6 $1,650.6 $1,830.0
(Income) loss from unconsolidated joint ventures:
Florida $ 02 $ (3.3 $ 2.1 $ (72
Mid-Atlantic 4.1) (2.2) (7.3)
Texas (0.3) 0.3)
West 9.3 (21.6) 9.2 (80.2)

$ 92 $ (29.0) $ 8.8 $ (94.7)
Impairments on unconsolidated joint ventures:

Florida $ 164 $ 1484 $ 204 $ 1484
Mid-Atlantic 1.5

Texas

West 7.0 7.0

$ 234 $ 1484 $ 289 $ 1484

Loss from unconsolidated joint ventures after
impairments $ 3206 $ 1194 $ 377 $ 537

Results of Operations:

Homebuilding:

Florida $(299.4) $(116.0) $ (290.3) $ (55
Mid-Atlantic (52.0) 9.9) (97.7) 2.3
Texas* 14.6 15.1 433 432
West (199.4) 3.4 (276.2) 72.9
Total Homebuilding (536.2) (114.2) (620.9) 112.9
Financial Services 0.2 5.0 5.2 15.9
Corporate and unallocated (73.8) (12.1) (220.1) (57.4)
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Total income (loss) from continuing operations before
income taxes $ 609.8 $(121.3)

29

$ (835.8)

$

71.4
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September December
30, 31,
2007 2006
Assets:
Homebuilding:
Florida $ 825.0 $ 892.9
Mid-Atlantic 123.1 230.4
Texas* 249.9 210.6
West 567.8 721.4
Assets held for sale* 10.1 124.8
Financial Services 48.8 65.5
Corporate and unallocated 467.0 596.6
Total assets $ 2,291.7 $ 2,842.2
Investments in Unconsolidated Joint Ventures:
Florida $ $ 29.4
Mid-Atlantic 0.9 5.3
Texas 7.2 6.8
West 72.8 87.5
Total Investments in Unconsolidated Joint Ventures $ 80.9 $ 129.0

*  The Texas
region excludes
the Dallas
division, which
is classified as a
discontinued
operation.
14. Discontinued Operations

On June 6, 2007, we sold substantially all of our Dallas division to Wall Homes Texas LLC for $56.5 million and
realized a pre-tax loss on disposal of $13.6 million. Certain communities were not part of the sale. We are actively
marketing these communities for sale and it is our intention to exit these communities within a year.

During the three months ended March 31, 2007, we determined that the pending sale of our Dallas division at a
price below the carrying value was an indicator of impairment. We performed an interim goodwill impairment test as
of March 31, 2007 and, at that time, determined that the goodwill recorded in our Dallas division was impaired;
accordingly, we wrote off $3.1 million of goodwill which is included in loss from discontinued operations for the nine
months ended September 30, 2007.

In accordance with SFAS 144, results of our Dallas division have been classified as discontinued operations, and
prior periods have been restated to be consistent with the September 30, 2007, presentation. Discontinued operations
include Dallas division revenues of $1.1 million and $34.9 million for the three months ended September 30, 2007 and
2006, respectively, and $44.7 million and $104.0 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. The Dallas division had a net loss of $3.9 million for the three months ended September 30, 2007 as
compared to net income of $0.2 million for the three months ended September 30, 2006. For the nine months ended
September 30, 2007, the Dallas division had a net loss of $17.6 million (including an $8.6 million after-tax loss on
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disposal) as compared to net income of $1.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2006.
Included in the net loss of the Dallas division for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2007 are
$2.8 million and $5.7 million, respectively, of inventory impairments.
Assets held for sale, as shown on the consolidated statements of financial condition, consist primarily of
$10.1 million and $124.8 million of inventory at September 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006, respectively.
30
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15. Summarized Financial Information

Our outstanding senior notes and senior subordinated notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed, on a joint and
several basis, by the Guarantor Subsidiaries, which are all of the Company s material direct and indirect subsidiaries,
other than our mortgage and title operations subsidiaries (the Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries). Each of the Guarantor
Subsidiaries is directly or indirectly 100% owned by the Company. In lieu of providing separate audited financial
statements for the Guarantor Subsidiaries, consolidated condensed financial statements are presented below. Separate

financial statements and other disclosures concerning the Guarantor Subsidiaries are not presented because
management has determined that they are not material to investors.
Consolidating Statement of Financial Condition
September 30, 2007

Non-
TOUSA, Guarantor Guarantor  Intercompany
Inc. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries  Eliminations
(Dollars in millions)
ASSETS
HOMEBUILDING:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 915 $ 133 3 $
Inventory 1,571.8
Property and equipment, net 4.8 23.8
Investments in unconsolidated joint
ventures 80.9
Receivables from unconsolidated
joint ventures, net 42.2
Investments in/ advances to
consolidated subsidiaries 1,439.4 (338.7) 0.7 (1,101.4)
Other assets 298.1 73.0
Goodwill 60.0
Assets held for sale 10.1
1,833.8 1,509.8 0.7 (1,101.4)
FINANCIAL SERVICES:
Cash and cash equivalents 7.1
Mortgage loans held for sale 31.0
Other assets 10.7
48.8
Total assets $1,833.8 $ 1,509.8 $ 49.5 $  (1,101.4)
LIABILITIES AND
STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
HOMEBUILDING:
Accounts payable and other liabilities ~ $  61.1 $ 335.0 $ $
Customer deposits 48.9
Obligations for inventory not owned 44.5
Notes payable 1,574.1
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Total

$ 782
1,571.8
28.6
80.9
42.2
371.1
60.0
10.1
2,242.9
7.1
31.0
10.7
48.8

$2,291.7

$ 396.1
48.9
44.5

1,574.1
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Bank borrowings
Liabilities associated with assets held
for sale

FINANCIAL SERVICES:
Accounts payable and other liabilities
Bank borrowings

Total liabilities
Total stockholders equity

Total liabilities and stockholders
equity
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150.3

1,785.5

1,785.5

48.3

$1,833.8

25

430.9

(0.6)

(0.6)
430.3

1,079.5

$ 1,509.8

31

52
224

27.6

27.6

21.9

49.5

$

(1,101.4)

(1,101.4)

150.3
2.5
2,216.4
4.6
224
27.0
2,243.4

48.3

$2,291.7
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Consolidating Statement of Financial Condition
December 31, 2006

Non-
TOUSA, Guarantor Guarantor  Intercompany
Inc. Subsidiaries = Subsidiaries  Eliminations
(Dollars in millions)
ASSETS
HOMEBUILDING:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 536 $ 24 $ $
Inventory 2,078.5
Property and equipment, net 6.5 22.0
Investments in unconsolidated joint
ventures 129.0
Receivables from unconsolidated
joint ventures, net 27.2
Investments in/ advances to
consolidated subsidiaries 1,933.4 (188.9) 8.2 (1,752.7)
Other assets 190.1 46.5
Goodwill 100.9
Assets held for sale 124.8
2,183.6 2,337.6 8.2 (1,752.7)
FINANCIAL SERVICES:
Cash and cash equivalents 11.0
Mortgage loans held for sale 41.9
Other assets 12.6
65.5
Total assets $2,183.6 $ 2,337.6 $ 73.7 $  (1,752.7)
LIABILITIES AND
STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
HOMEBUILDING:
Accounts payable and other liabilities ~ $ 348.0 $ 206.2 $ $
Customer deposits 62.6
Obligations for inventory not owned 300.6
Notes payable 1,060.7
Bank borrowings
Liabilities associated with assets held
for sale 47.8
1,408.7 617.2
FINANCIAL SERVICES:
Accounts payable and other liabilities 6.0
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Total

$ 512
2,078.5
28.5
129.0
27.2
236.6
100.9
124.8
2,776.7
11.0
41.9
12.6
65.5

$2,842.2

$ 5542
62.6
300.6
1,060.7

47.8

2,025.9

6.0
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Bank borrowings

Total liabilities
Total stockholders equity

Total liabilities and stockholders
equity
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1,408.7

774.9

$2,183.6

617.2

1,720.4

$ 23376

32

354

41.4

414

323

73.7

$

354
414
2,067.3

(1,752.7) 774.9

(1,752.7) $2,842.2
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Consolidating Statement of Operations
Three Months Ended September 30, 2007

Non-
TOUSA, Guarantor Guarantor  Intercompany
Inc. Subsidiaries  Subsidiaries  Eliminations Total
(Dollars in millions)
HOMEBUILDING:
Revenues $ $ 492.9 $ $ $ 4929
Cost of sales 930.3 930.3
Gross profit (loss) 437.4) 437.4)
Selling, general and administrative
expenses 23.3 66.3 (3.6) 86.0
Loss from unconsolidated joint
ventures, net 9.2 9.2
Impairments on investments in
unconsolidated joint ventures 23.4 234
Provision for settlement of loss
contingency 40.7 40.7
Goodwill impairment 2.7 2.7
Interest expense 10.0 10.0
Other (income) expenses, net 547.5 30.2 (577.1) 0.6
Homebuilding pretax income (loss) (621.5) (569.2) 580.7 (610.0)
FINANCIAL SERVICES:
Revenues 11.9 (3.6) 8.3
Expenses 8.2 0.1 8.1
Financial Services pretax income 3.7 3.5 0.2

Income (loss) from continuing
operations before income taxes (621.5) (569.2) 3.7 577.2 (609.8)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes (1.8) 6.0 1.8 6.0

Income (loss) from continuing
operations (619.7) (575.2) 1.9 577.2 (615.8)

Discontinued operations:
Loss from discontinued operations 3.9 3.9

Loss from discontinued operations, net
of taxes 3.9 3.9

Net income (loss) $(619.7) $ (579.1) $ 1.9 $ 577.2 $(619.7)
2.2
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Dividends and accretion of discount
on preferred stock

Net income (loss) available to
common stockholders $(621.9) $ (5757 $ 1.9 $ 573.8 $(621.9)
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Consolidating Statement of Operations
Three Months Ended September 30, 2006

Non-
TOUSA, Guarantor Guarantor  Intercompany
Inc. Subsidiaries = Subsidiaries Eliminations
(Dollars in millions)

HOMEBUILDING:
Revenues $ $ 576.8 $ $
Cost of sales $ 497.1 $ $
Gross profit 79.7
Selling, general and administrative
expenses 12.3 69.9 (1.4)
(Income) from unconsolidated joint
ventures, net (29.0)
Impairments on unconsolidated joint
ventures 148.4
Provision for settlement of loss
contingency
Goodwill impairment 5.7
Other (income) expenses, net 66.4 4.8 (71.1)
Homebuilding pretax income (loss) (78.7) (120.1) 72.5
FINANCIAL SERVICES:
Revenues 17.2 (1.4)
Expenses 13.0 2.2)
Financial Services pretax income 4.2 0.8
Income (loss) from continuing
operations before income taxes (78.7) (120.1) 4.2 73.3
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 1.3 (44.2) 1.8
Income (loss) from continuing
operations (80.0) (75.9) 2.4 73.3
Discontinued operations:
Income (loss) from discontinued
operations 0.4
Provision for income taxes 0.2
Income (loss) from discontinued
operations, net of taxes 0.2
Net income (loss) $ (80.0) $ (75.7) $ 2.4 $ 73.3
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Total

$ 576.8
497.1
79.7
80.8
(29.0)
148.4
5.7

0.1
(126.3)
15.8
10.8

5.0

(121.3)
(41.1)

(80.2)

04
0.2

0.2

$ (80.0)
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HOMEBUILDING:
Revenues
Cost of sales

Gross profit (loss)

Selling, general and administrative
expenses

Loss from unconsolidated joint
ventures, net

Impairments on investments in
unconsolidated joint ventures
Provision for settlement of loss
contingency

Goodwill impairment

Interest expense

Other (income) expenses, net

Homebuilding pretax income (loss)
FINANCIAL SERVICES:
Revenues

Expenses

Financial Services pretax income

Income (loss) from continuing
operations before income taxes

Provision (benefit) for income taxes

Income (loss) from continuing
operations

Discontinued operations:
Income (loss) from discontinued
operations

Income (loss) from disposal of
discontinued operations
Provision for income taxes

Income (loss) from discontinued
operations, net of taxes
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Consolidating Statement of Operations
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2007

TOUSA,
Inc.

63.1

151.6

10.0
605.4

(830.1)

(830.1)
(12.4)

(817.7)

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

$ 1,6193
1,959.0
(339.7)
210.1

8.8

28.9

40.9

0.2

40.5

(669.1)

(669.1)
(28.7)

(640.4)

(11.8)

(13.6)

(7.8)

(17.6)

Non-
Guarantor  Intercompany
Subsidiaries  Eliminations

(Dollars in millions)

$ $

(10.8)
(647.4)
658.2
42.0 (10.7)
30.0 (3.9
12.0 (6.8)
12.0 651.4

54
6.6 651.4

Total
$1,619.3
1,959.0
(339.7)
262.4
8.8
28.9
151.6
40.9
10.2
(1.5)
(841.0)
31.3

26.1

52

(835.8)
(35.7)

(800.1)

(11.8)

(13.6)

(7.8)

(17.6)
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Net income (loss) $(817.7) $ (658.0) $ 6.6 $ 651.4 $ (817.7)

Dividends and accretion of discount

on preferred stock 2.2 2.2

Net income (loss) available to

common stockholders $(819.9) $ (658.0) $ 6.6 $ 651.4 $ (819.9)
35
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HOMEBUILDING:
Revenues
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Selling, general and administrative
expenses

(Income) from unconsolidated joint
ventures, net

Impairments on unconsolidated joint
ventures

Provision for settlement of loss
contingency

Goodwill impairment

Other (income) expenses, net

Homebuilding pretax income (loss)

FINANCIAL SERVICES:
Revenues
Expenses

Financial Services pretax income
Income (loss) from continuing
operations before income taxes

Provision (benefit) for income taxes

Income (loss) from continuing
operations

Discontinued operations:
Income (loss) from discontinued
operations

Provision for income taxes
Income (loss) from discontinued

operations, net of taxes

Net income (loss)
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Consolidating Statement of Operations
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2006

TOUSA,
Inc.

58.6

(96.3)

37.7

37.7
4.9)

42.6

$ 426

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

$ 1,781.6
1,396.9
384.7

219.1
(94.7)

148.4

5.7

26.9

79.3

79.3
294

49.9

1.9
0.7

1.2

Non-
Guarantor  Intercompany
Subsidiaries  Eliminations

(Dollars in millions)

$ $
(3.6)
65.1
(61.5)
52.0 (3.6)
39.2 (6.7)
12.8 3.1
12.8 (58.4)

55

7.3 (58.4)
$ 7.3 $ (58.4)

Total
$1,781.6
1,396.9
384.7
274.1
(94.7)
148.4
5.7
4.3)
55.5
48.4
32.5

15.9

71.4
30.0

414

1.9
0.7

1.2

$ 426
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Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2007

Non-
TOUSA, Guarantor Guarantor Intercompany
Inc. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Total

(Dollars in millions)
Net cash provided by (used in)

operating activities $(569.4) $ (1739 $ 34 $ 651.3 $ (88.6)
Cash flows from investing

activities:

Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (7.7) (7.7)
Net additions to property and

equipment (0.8) (7.9) 0.7) 9.4)
Investments in unconsolidated joint

ventures (29.2) (29.2)
Capital distributions from

unconsolidated joint ventures 12.4 12.4
Net cash used in investing activities (0.8) (32.4) 0.7) (33.9)

Cash flows from financing

activities:

Net borrowings from (repayments of)

revolving credit facilities 150.3 150.3

Principal payments on notes payable 0.5) 0.5)

Net (repayments of) proceeds from

Financial Services bank borrowings (13.0) (13.0)

Payments for deferred financing costs (32.1) (32.1)

Payments for issuance of convertible

preferred stock and warrants 2.9 (2.9

Increase (decrease) in intercompany

transactions 494.0 149.8 7.5 (651.3)

Net cash provided by (used in)

financing activities 608.8 149.8 (5.5 (651.3) 101.8

Net cash provided by (used in)

continuing operations 38.6 (56.5) (2.8) (20.7)

Net cash provided by discontinued

operations 44.1 44.1

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash

equivalents 38.6 (12.4) (2.8) 23.4

Cash and cash equivalents at

beginning of period 50.6 (3.2) 6.8 54.2
$ 89.2 $ (15.6) $ 4.0 $ $ 77.6
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Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities

Cash flows from investing
activities:

Earn-out consideration paid for
acquisitions

Net additions to property and
equipment

Loans to unconsolidated joint
ventures

Investments in unconsolidated joint
ventures

Capital distributions from
unconsolidated joint ventures

Net cash provided by (used in)
investing activities

Cash flows from financing
activities:

Net borrowings from (repayments of)
revolving credit facilities

Net proceeds from notes offering
Net (repayments of) proceeds from
Financial Services bank borrowings
Payments for deferred financing
costs

Excess income tax benefit from
exercise of stock options

Proceeds from stock option exercises
Dividends paid

Increase (decrease) in intercompany
transactions

Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities

Net cash provided by (used in)
continuing operations

Net cash provided by (used in)
discontinued operations
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Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
Nine Months Ended September 30, 2006

TOUSA,
Inc.

$ (112.4)

(1.9)

(1.9)

(65.0)
248.8

(3.2)
0.1
0.2

2.7)

(70.3)
107.9

(6.4)

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

$ (18.8)

0.9)
9.6)
(11.3)
(13.8)

323

(3.3)

23.1

23.1

1.0

54

Non-

Guarantor
Subsidiaries
(Dollars in millions)

$

3.1

(1.3)

(1.3)

7.4

(11.2)

(3.8)

(2.0)

Intercompany
Eliminations Total

$ (58.4) $ (186.5)

(0.9)
(12.8)
(11.3)
(13.8)

323

(6.5)

(65.0)
248.8

7.4
(3.2)
0.1
0.2
(2.7)

58.4
58.4 185.6

(7.4)

54
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Increase (decrease) in cash and cash

equivalents (6.4) 6.4 2.0) (2.0)

Cash and cash equivalents at

beginning of period 20.2 34 8.7 323

Cash and cash equivalents at end of

period $ 138 $ 9.8 6.7 30.3
38
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in
conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this report.

As used in this Form 10-Q, consolidated information refers only to information relating to our continuing
operations which are consolidated in our financial statements and exclude the results of our Dallas division which we
have classified as a discontinued operation; and combined information includes consolidated information and
information relating to our unconsolidated joint ventures. Unless otherwise noted, the information contained herein is
shown on a consolidated basis.

On July 31, 2007, we consummated transactions to settle the disputes regarding the Transeastern Joint Venture (the

Transeastern JV ) with the lenders to the Transeastern JV, its land bankers and our joint venture partner in the
Transeastern JV. Pursuant to the settlement, among other things, the Transeastern JV became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of ours by merger into one of our subsidiaries. The acquisition of the Transeastern JV (the TE Acquisition )
is being accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. The results of operations of the Transeastern JV have
been included in our consolidated results beginning on July 31, 2007. See Recent Developments for a full description
of the TE Acquisition.

Executive Summary

We generate revenues from our homebuilding operations ( Homebuilding ) and financial services operations
( Financial Services ), which comprise our two principal business segments. Through our Homebuilding operations, we
design, build and market high-quality, detached single-family residences, town homes and condominiums in various
metropolitan markets in ten states located in four major geographic regions which are also our reportable segments:
Florida, Mid-Atlantic, Texas and the West.

Florida Mid-Atlantic Texas West

Central Florida Delaware Austin Las Vegas

Jacksonville Baltimore/Southern Pennsylvania Houston Colorado

Southeast Florida Nashville San Phoenix
Antonio

Southwest Florida Northern Virginia

Tampa /St. Petersburg

We conduct our Homebuilding operations through our consolidated subsidiaries and through various
unconsolidated joint ventures that additionally build and market homes.

Our results of operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2007 were adversely affected due to
worsening market conditions impacting the new home industry. Conditions in all of our markets weakened due to a
number of factors including: recent severe liquidity challenges in the credit and mortgage markets, diminished
consumer confidence, increased home inventories and foreclosures, and downward pressure on home prices. For the
three months ended September 30, 2007, we had a net loss of $619.7 million compared to a net loss of $80.0 million
for the three months ended September 30, 2006. For the nine months ended September 30, 2007, we had a net loss of
$817.7 million compared to net income of $42.6 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2006.

In response to the worsening market conditions in the third quarter, we exercised our right to abandon a number of
homesite option contracts. Additionally, we reviewed our inventories, goodwill, investments in joint ventures and
other assets for possible impairment charges. Included in the net loss for the three months ended September 30, 2007
and 2006, respectively, are $571.6 million and $203.9 million of inventory impairments, abandonment costs, joint
venture impairments, goodwill impairments and the provision for settlement of loss contingency. Included in the net
loss for the nine months ended September 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively, are $854.4 million and $211.5 million of
inventory impairments, abandonment costs, joint venture impairments, goodwill impairments and the provision for
settlement of loss contingency.

For the three months ended September 30, 2007, Homebuilding deliveries decreased 18%, Homebuilding revenues
decreased 15%, and net sales orders decreased 33% as compared to the three months ended September 30, 2006. For
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the nine months ended September 30, 2007, Homebuilding deliveries decreased 10%, Homebuilding revenues
decreased 9%, and net sales orders decreased 17% as compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2006. For the
three months ended September 30, 2007, our unconsolidated joint ventures had a decrease in deliveries of 73% and a
decrease in net sales orders of 22% as compared to the three months ended September 30, 2006. For the nine months
ended September 30, 2007, our unconsolidated joint ventures had a decrease in deliveries of 49% and a decrease in net
sales orders of 14% as compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2006. Our joint ventures experienced a
more significant decline in deliveries and net sales orders than our consolidated operations as our largest
homebuilding joint ventures are located in Las Vegas and Phoenix which have experienced significant market
deterioration.

39
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Our Homebuilding results reflect the continued significant deterioration of conditions in most of our markets
characterized by record levels of new and existing homes available for sale, reduced affordability of housing, tighter
mortgage loan underwriting criteria, the significant disruption experienced by the mortgage markets which led to
reduced investor demand for mortgage loans. Potential buyers have exhibited both a reduction in confidence as to the
economy in general and a willingness to delay purchase decisions based on a perception that prices will continue to
decline. Prospective homebuyers continue to be concerned about interest rates and their inability to sell their current
homes or to obtain appraisals at sufficient amounts to secure mortgage financing as a result of the recent disruption in
the mortgage markets and the tightening of credit standards.

The deterioration in the housing market has led to increased sales incentives, higher cancellation rates, increased
advertising expenditures and broker commissions, and increased pressure on margins resulting from the oversupply of
homes available for sale and competition among homebuilders. We expect our gross margin on home sales to continue
to be negatively impacted due to pricing pressures, competition, increased sales incentives and a product mix shift to
markets with historically lower margins.

We are responding to this situation by taking actions to maximize cash receipts and minimize cash expenditures
with the understanding that certain of these actions may make us less able to take advantage of future improvements in
the homebuilding market. As part of these initiatives, we continue to take steps to reduce our general and
administrative costs and operations to increase efficiencies by reducing costs and streamlining our activities including
further reductions in workforce at all levels and elimination of certain consulting arrangements and indirect costs.
However, some of our efforts on reducing general and administrative expenses are being offset by professional and
consulting fees associated with the settlement of the Transeastern JV and our current restructuring efforts. In addition,
we are working with our suppliers and seeking new suppliers, through competitive bid processes, to reduce
construction material and labor costs. We are analyzing each community based on profit and sales absorption goals
that include current market factors in the homebuilding industry such as the oversupply of homes available for sale in
most of our markets, less demand, decreased consumer confidence, tighter mortgage loan underwriting criteria and
higher foreclosures. We continue to review the size, geographic allocations and components of our inventory to better
align these assets with estimated future deliveries. We have established inventory targets based on current market
conditions, existing inventory levels and our historical and projected results. If our inventory exceeds these targeted
levels, which is currently the case, we are and will continue to take necessary actions to reduce our inventory level to
these targeted levels. These actions include, to the extent possible:

limiting new arrangements to acquire land;

engaging in bulk sales of land and unsold homes;
reducing the number of homes under construction and limiting development activities;
re-negotiating terms or abandoning our rights under option contracts;
considering other asset dispositions including the possible sale of underperforming assets, communities,
divisions and joint venture interests (see Recent Developments regarding the June 2007 sale of our Dallas
division and the September 2007 bulk sale of homesites in our Mid-Atlantic and Virginia divisions);
further reducing inventory target levels; and
other initiatives designed to monetize our assets, including our deferred tax assets.
As a result of worsening market conditions since late July and our liquidity constraints since late September, during
the three months ended September 30, 2007, we have abandoned our rights under certain option agreements which
have resulted in a 9,400 unit decline in our controlled homesites. In connection with the abandonment of our rights

under these option contracts, we forfeited cash deposits of $166.9 million and had letters of credit of $91.2 million
drawn, subsequent to September 30, 3007, which increased our outstanding borrowings. As challenging market
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conditions continue, we expect to continue to reduce inventory in an attempt to align our inventory levels to housing
demand and operate within our liquidity constraints. We cannot assure you these actions or future actions will be
sufficient to allow us to become profitable or continue our operations.

Our selling, general and administrative expenses, excluding costs of professionals retained in connection with the
development of a long term business plan and evaluation of restructuring options, have decreased 9.6% as compared
to the quarter ended June 30, 2007. This reduction has been driven principally by a reduction in the number of our
associates from 2,420 as of December 31, 2006 to 2,097 at June 30, 2007 and 1,763 at September 30, 2007. The
difficult home market has resulted in a need to carefully review marketing expenses as the need to attract buyers must
be balanced with the goal of reducing expenditures. However, our expenses in this area have decreased by 10.1% for
the current quarter as compared to the quarter ended June 30, 2007. We expect that our professional and consulting
fees will increase in the fourth quarter of 2007 as a result of the professionals retained in connection with the
evaluation of our restructuring options.

The additional borrowings arising from the settlement of the Transeastern JV disputes and the continuing
deterioration of the housing market has had, and is likely to continue to have for an extended period of time, a
negative impact on our liquidity and our

40
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ability to comply with financial and other covenants under our bank loans and indentures. We are also considering a
number of alternatives including whether a restructuring needs to be completed under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy
code. All of these factors, and others which may arise in the future, may adversely impact our financial condition.
Refer to our discussion under Liquidity and Capital Resources for further information concerning our borrowings and
covenant compliance.

The reduction in our staff, combined with the challenges of implementing these initiatives, has placed increased
burdens on our remaining associates. We have retained consultants and are in the process of developing and then
implementing a structure to retain and incentivize the associates who will be integral to our ability to successfully
restructure our balance sheet.

Our financial statements are presented on a going concern basis, which contemplates the realization of assets and
satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. We have $1.7 billion in borrowings, have experienced
significant losses for the year ended December 31, 2006, and the nine months ended September 30, 2007, and
continue to generate negative cash flows from operations. For the nine months ended September 30, 2007, we
incurred a net loss of $817.7 million and had stockholders equity of $48.3 million, which was a significant decrease
when compared to $774.9 million at December 31, 2006. This raises substantial doubt about our ability to continue as
a going concern. Our ability to continue as a going concern will depend upon our ability to restructure our capital
structure including our attempt to exchange a large portion of our outstanding indebtedness for equity. Failure to
restructure our capital structure would result in, among other things, depleting our available funds and not being able
to pay our obligations when they become due, as well as possible defaults under our debt obligations. The
accompanying consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments to reflect the possible future effects
on the recoverability and classification of assets.

We have asked our bondholders to organize as a group in order to discuss such restructuring and reorganization
alternatives. On October 26, 2007, our Board of Directors received a letter from counsel to this group (the Noteholder
Group ). The Noteholder Group claimed that we had transferred approximately $422.9 million to lenders to the
Transeastern JV on July 31, 2007. The Noteholder Group argued that the transfer may be avoidable under section 547
of the Bankruptcy Code if we filed for bankruptcy protection on or before October 29, 2007. The Noteholder Group
urged that our Board of Directors take all steps necessary to preserve the section 547 claim, including directing that
we file for bankruptcy on or before October 29, 2007. The Noteholder Group reserved its rights to file claims for
breach of fiduciary duty and aiding breach of fiduciary duty if we did not file for bankruptcy in time to preserve the
Section 547 claim. We did not file for bankruptcy protection as requested by the Noteholder Group.

Recent Developments
Transeastern JV Settlement

On July 31, 2007, we consummated transactions to settle the disputes regarding the Transeastern JV with the
lenders to the joint venture, its land bankers and our joint venture partner in the Transeastern JV. Pursuant to the
settlement, among other things, (i) the Transeastern JV became a wholly owned subsidiary of ours by merger into one
of our subsidiaries and became a guarantor on our credit facilities and note indentures, (ii) the senior secured lenders
of the Transeastern JV were repaid in full, including accrued interest, and (iii) the junior and senior mezzanine lenders
received our securities in satisfaction of the obligations of the Transeastern JV. In connection with the settlement, we
entered into Settlement and Release Agreements with the senior mezzanine lenders (the Senior Mezzanine Lenders )
and the junior mezzanine lenders (the Junior Mezzanine Lenders ) to the Transeastern JV (collectively, the Mezz
Settlement Agreements ) which released us from potential obligations to them. The TE Acquisition is being accounted
for using the purchase method of accounting.

To effect the TE Acquisition, on July 31, 2007, we entered into a (i) new $200.0 million aggregate principal
amount first lien term loan facility (the First Lien Term Loan Facility ) and (ii) a new $300.0 million aggregate
principal amount second lien term loan facility (the Second Lien Term Loan Facility ), (First and Second Lien Term
Loan Facilities taken together, the Facilities ) with Citicorp North America, Inc. as Administrative Agent. The
proceeds from the credit facilities were used to satisfy claims of the senior lenders against the Transeastern JV. Our
existing $800.0 million revolving loan facility (the Revolving Loan Facility ) was amended and restated to (i) reduce
the revolving commitments thereunder by $100.0 million and (ii) permit the incurrence of the Facilities (and make
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other conforming changes relating to the Facilities). Collectively, these transactions are referred to as the Financing.
Net proceeds from the Financing at closing were $470.6 million which is net of a 1% discount and transaction costs.

The consideration paid by us in connection with the TE Acquisition approximated $637.5 million which included:
(1) $400.0 million in cash to the secured lenders to the Transeastern JV; (2) $117.5 million in convertible preferred
stock and $20.0 million in senior subordinated notes to the Senior Mezzanine Lenders to the Transeastern JV; (3)
$16.3 million in common stock warrants to the Junior Mezzanine Lenders to the Transeastern JV; (4) $50.2 million in
cash to purchase land under existing land bank arrangements with the former JV partner; and (5) $33.5 million in
interest and expenses.

Additionally, we entered into the Mezz Settlement Agreements which released us from our potential obligations to
the Transeastern JV s mezzanine lenders. Pursuant to the Mezz Settlement Agreements, we issued to the Senior
Mezzanine Lenders the following securities: (i) $20.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 14.75% Senior
Subordinated PIK Election Notes due 2015 (the Notes ), and (ii) $117.5 million in initial aggregate liquidation
preference of 8% Series A Convertible Preferred PIK Preferred Stock (the Preferred Stock ). We issued to the Junior
Mezzanine Lenders, warrants to purchase shares of our common stock (the Common Stock ). The warrants had an
estimated fair value of $16.3 million at issuance (based on the Black-Scholes option pricing model and certain agreed
upon inputs).

Refer to the section entitled Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements for a detailed description of the settlement.

Sale of Dallas Operations
41
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On June 6, 2007, we sold substantially all of our Dallas division to Wall Homes Texas LLC for $56.5 million and
realized a pre-tax loss on disposal of $13.6 million. In accordance with SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment
or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets ( SFAS 144 ), results of our Dallas operations have been classified as discontinued
operations and prior periods have been restated to be consistent with the September 30, 2007 presentation.

Bulk Sale of Homesites in the Mid-Atlantic and Virginia Divisions

As part of our asset management initiatives, on September 25, 2007, we sold 317 homesites to an unrelated
homebuilder for a total purchase price of $26.1 million and realized a pre-tax loss of $11.6 million.

Additionally, as part of the transaction, the buyer agreed to purchase an option interest to acquire 250 homesites as
well as 34 owned homesites from us once certain obligations associated with such property are met. The total
purchase price for these additional homesites and the assignment of the option interest is $10.6 million. The
transaction will close once we fulfill our continuing obligations on these properties.

SEC Inquiry

We have been contacted by the Miami Regional Office of the SEC requesting the voluntary provision of
documents and other information from us relating primarily to corporate and financial information and
communications related to the Transeastern JV. The SEC has advised us that this inquiry should not be construed as
an indication that any violations of law have occurred, nor should it be considered a reflection upon any person, entity,
or security. We are cooperating with the inquiry.

Total Controlled Homesites by our Homebuilding Operations (Including Joint Ventures

We use option contracts in addition to land joint ventures in order to acquire land whenever feasible. Option
contracts allow us to control large homesite positions with minimal capital investment. At September 30, 2007, we
controlled approximately 39,500 homesites. Of this amount, we owned approximately 23,500 homesites and had
option contracts on approximately 16,000 homesites. In addition, our discontinued operations controlled
approximately 400 homesites and our unconsolidated joint ventures controlled approximately 3,700 homesites.

As part of our land acquisition strategy, we have used our capital to control, acquire and develop larger land parcels
that could yield homesites exceeding the requirements of our homebuilding activities. These large land transactions
are characterized by low costs per homesite where development will not begin for 3 to 5 years. These additional
homesites are typically sold to other homebuilders. We have confined these activities to selected land-constrained
markets where we believe land supplies will remain constrained and opportunities for land sale profits may exist. Of
the 16,000 homesites controlled through option contracts, 4,700 homesites are also part of this strategy. At
September 30, 2007, the number of homesites controlled by our consolidated operations, including our discontinued
operations, has decreased by 24,800 or 38% as compared to December 31, 2006. At September 30, 2007, of the
23,500 owned homesites, 6,300 homesites are part of this strategy. At September 30, 2007, deposits controlling
homesites under option approximated $14.7 million. We plan to, and are reducing, our positions in these large land
transactions in the future in connection with our asset management activities.

Controlled homesites represent homesites either owned or under option by our consolidated subsidiaries or by our
unconsolidated joint ventures that build and market homes. We do not include as controlled homesites those homesites
which are included in land development joint ventures where we do not intend to build homes. These joint ventures
will acquire and develop land to be sold to us for use in our homebuilding operations or sold to others. As of
September 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006, these joint ventures owned 3,000 and 2,900 homesites, respectively. Of
these amounts, we had options to acquire 700 and 500 homesites, respectively, which are included in our consolidated
homesites under option. Any profits generated from the purchase of homesites from these joint ventures are deferred
until the ultimate sale to an unrelated third party.

Due to worsening market conditions impacting the new home industry, we have applied increasingly conservative
standards to our land retention and option exercise decisions. We have analyzed each of our communities to determine
if they are aligned with our immediate and mid term goals which are focused on our ability to monetize assets within a
relatively short period of time. As part of the analysis we have reviewed our construction processes including our bid
procedures, bid templates and engineering designs in an attempt to reduce costs from home construction.
Preacquisition costs, development costs and the number of home starts and speculative homes have also been reduced
in light of the new challenges facing the market.
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In connection with our asset management efforts, as well as in part to our liquidity constraints, during the three
months ended September 30, 2007, we abandoned our rights under certain option contracts which resulted in a
reduction of 9,400 optioned homesites. In addition, the sale of our Dallas division and the bulk sale of homesites in the
Mid-Atlantic and Virginia divisions
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reduced the number of controlled homesites by approximately 3,700 homesites. When compared with the number of
controlled homesites at December 31, 2006, the number of homesites controlled by our consolidated operations,
including our discontinued operations, has decreased by 24,800 or 38%. The decrease in controlled homesites is a
result of our asset management initiatives including the sale of our Dallas division, the bulk sale of homesites in the
Mid-Atlantic and Virginia divisions, other land sales and the abandonment of rights under certain option contracts.
This decrease, however, was partially offset by an increase in the number of homesites acquired as part of the TE
Acquisition as reflected in the table below. In connection with the abandonment of our rights under these option
contracts, we forfeited cash deposits of $166.9 million and had letters of credit of $91.2 million drawn, subsequent to
September 30, 3007, which increased our outstanding borrowings. The number of homesites controlled by our
unconsolidated joint ventures, decreased by 17,000 homesites, or 82%, from December 31, 2006, primarily due to the
settlement and purchase of the Transeastern JV. The table below summarizes our controlled homesite supply as of
September 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006.

September 30, 2007 December 31, 2006
Total Total
Owned Optioned Controlled Owned Optioned Controlled

Continuing operations* 23,500 16,000 39,500 21,200 39,400 60,600
Discontinued operations 200 200 400 1,000 3,100 4,100
Total 23,700 16,200 39,900 22,200 42,500 64,700
Unconsolidated joint

ventures 2,500 1,200 3,700 2,900 2,100 5,000
Transeastern joint

venture 2,200 13,500 15,700
Combined total 26,200 17,400 43,600 27,300 58,100 85,400

* For September 30, 2007 includes 3,900 owned and 800 optioned homesites acquired as part of the TE acquisition
and 200 owned homesites from joint ventures that met the consolidation criteria at September 30, 2007. The
homesites for these joint ventures were included in unconsolidated joint ventures at December 31, 2006.

Owned and Optioned Land Summary for our Consolidated Operations
The following is a summary of our consolidated controlled homesites:

September 30, 2007 December 31, 2006

Total Total
Region: Owned Optioned Controlled Owned Optioned Controlled
Florida (a) 9,400 3,800 13,200 6,900 11,000 17,900
Mid-Atlantic 600 1,000 1,600 800 2,700 3,500
Texas (b) 2,700 4,700 7,400 2,700 7,800 10,500
West (c) 10,800 6,500 17,300 10,800 17,900 28,700
Continuing operations 23,500 16,000 39,500 21,200 39,400 60,600
Discontinued operations
(b) 200 200 400 1,000 3,100 4,100
Total 23,700 16,200 39,900 22,200 42,500 64,700
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The following is a summary breakdown of our owned homesites:

Residences Homesites Finished
Completed or or Raw Land Held for
Under Under Future

Construction Construction Development Total
Region 9/30/07 12/31/06 9/30/07 12/31/06 9/30/07 12/31/06  9/30/07 12/31/06
Florida (a) 1,900 1,700 7,000 3,500 500 1,700 9,400 6,900
Mid-Atlantic 200 300 300 500 100 600 800
Texas (b) 1,000 1,000 1,300 1,100 400 600 2,700 2,700
West (c) 600 800 2,800 2,200 7,400 7,800 10,800 10,800
Continuing operations 3,700 3,800 11,400 7,300 8,400 10,100 23,500 21,200
Discontinued operations (b) 200 100 300 100 500 200 1,000
Total 3,700 4,000 11,500 7,600 8,500 10,600 23,700 22,200

(a) For
September 30,
2007, the
Florida region
includes 3,900
owned
homesites
acquired as part
of the TE
acquisition.

(b) The Texas
region excludes
the Dallas
division, which
is now classified
asa
discontinued
operation.

(c) The West region
includes 200
homesites from
joint ventures
that met the
consolidation
criteria at
September 30,
2007. The
homesites for
these joint
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Homebuilding Operations

Compared to September 30, 2006, consolidated sales value in backlog at September 30, 2007 decreased 32% to
$1.1 billion. Our unconsolidated joint ventures had an additional $37.0 million in sales value in backlog at
September 30, 2007. Our sales orders cancellation rate was approximately 47% for the three months ended
September 30, 2007 as compared to 33%, 29% and 49% for the three months ended June 30, 2007, March 31, 2007
and December 31, 2006, respectively. Cancellation rates continue to be affected by worsening market conditions.

We build homes for inventory (speculative homes) and on a pre-sold basis. At September 30, 2007, we had 3,700
homes completed or under construction compared to 3,800 homes at December 31, 2006. Approximately 35% of these
homes were unsold at September 30, 2007, an increase from 27% at June 30, 2007. At September 30, 2007, we had
452 completed unsold homes in our inventory, up 142% from 187 homes at June 30, 2007. Approximately 52% of our
completed, unsold homes at September 30, 2007 had been completed for more than 90 days. As part of our asset
management strategy, we are focusing our efforts on diligently managing the number and geographic allocation of our
speculative homes, addressing our inventory levels and timing our construction starts, together with other actions, to
strengthen our balance sheet.

Once a sales contract with a buyer has been approved, we classify the transaction as a new sales order and include
the home in backlog. Such sales orders are usually subject to certain contingencies such as the buyer s ability to qualify
for financing. At closing, title passes to the buyer and a home is considered to be delivered and is removed from
backlog. Revenues, which are net of buyer incentives, and cost of sales are recognized upon the delivery of the home,
land or homesite when title is transferred to the buyer. We estimate that the average period between the execution of a
sales contract for a home and closing is approximately four months to over a year for pre-sold homes; however, this
varies by market. The principal expenses of our Homebuilding operations are (i) cost of sales and (ii) selling, general
and administrative ( SG&A ) expenses. Costs of home sales include land and land development costs, home
construction costs, previously capitalized indirect costs, capitalized interest and estimated warranty costs. SG&A
expenses for our Homebuilding operations include administrative costs, advertising expenses, on-site marketing
expenses, sales commission costs, and closing costs. Sales commissions are included in selling, general and
administrative costs when the related revenue is recognized. As used herein, Homebuilding includes results of home
and land sales. Home sales includes results related only to the sale of homes.

Financial Services Operations

To provide homebuyers with a seamless home purchasing experience, we have a complementary financial services
business which provides mortgage financing and settlement services and offers title, homeowners and other insurance
products to our homebuyers and others. Our mortgage financing operation derives most of its revenues from buyers of
our homes, although it also offers its services to existing homeowners refinancing their mortgages. Our title and
settlement services and our insurance agency operations are used by our homebuyers and a broad range of other
clients purchasing or refinancing residential or commercial real estate. Our mortgage financing operations revenues
consist primarily of origination and premium fee income, interest income, and the gain on the sale of the mortgages
which is recognized when the loans and related servicing rights are sold to third party investors. Our title operations
revenues consist primarily of fees and premiums from title insurance and settlement services. The principle
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expenses of our Financial Services operations are SG&A expenses, which consist primarily of compensation and
interest expense on our warehouse lines of credit.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2007, approximately 3% to 5% of the homebuyers, including those in
our unconsolidated joint ventures, that utilized our mortgage subsidiary obtained sub-prime loans. We define a
sub-prime loan as one where the buyer s FICO score is below 620 and is not an FHA or VA loan. As of September 30,
2007, approximately 6% of our backlog that utilized our mortgage subsidiary included homebuyers seeking sub-prime
financing. During the third quarter of 2007, the mortgage markets experienced a significant disruption, which
commenced with increasing rates of default on sub-prime loans and declines in the market value of those loans. These
events led to an unprecedented combination of reduced investor demand for mortgage loans and mortgage-backed
securities, tighter credit underwriting standards, reduced mortgage loan liquidity and increased credit risk premiums,
all of which affected the availability of nonconforming mortgage products. The tightening of credit standards in the
sub-prime market had an impact on the Alt-A and prime loans and further negatively impacted current homebuilding
market conditions.

Critical Accounting Policies
Income Taxes

We calculate a provision for income taxes using the asset and liability method, under which deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognized by identifying the temporary differences arising from the different treatment of items for tax
and accounting purposes. We assess the realization of our deferred tax assets to determine whether an income tax
valuation allowance is required. Based on all available evidence, both positive and negative, and the weight of that
evidence to the extent such evidence can be objectively verified, we determine whether it is more likely than not that
all or a portion of the deferred tax assets will be realized. In determining the future tax consequences of events that
have been recognized in our financial statements or tax returns, judgment is required. Differences between the
anticipated and actual outcomes of these future tax consequences could have a material impact on our consolidated
results of operations or financial position.

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes an
interpretation of SFAS 109, ( FIN 48 ). FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for income taxes, by prescribing a minimum
recognition threshold a tax position is required to meet before it is recognized in the financial statements. FIN 48 also
provides guidance on derecognition, measurement, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods,
disclosure and transition. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006. We adopted FIN 48
effective January 1, 2007, and recognized a $1.3 million increase in the liability for unrecognized tax benefits, which
was accounted for as a reduction to the retained earnings balance at January 1, 2007. In accordance with the transition
requirements of FIN 48, results of prior periods have not been restated.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Housing communities and land/homesites under development are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable
value. Property and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. We assess these assets for impairment
in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.
SFAS No. 144 requires that long-lived assets be reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets is
measured by comparing the carrying amount of an asset to future undiscounted net cash flows expected to be
generated by the asset. These evaluations for impairment are significantly impacted by estimates of future revenues,
costs and expenses and other factors involving some amount of uncertainty. If an asset is considered to be impaired,
the impairment loss to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds
the fair value of the asset.
Goodwill

Goodwill is accounted for in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets. Pursuant to SFAS No. 142, goodwill is not subject to amortization. Goodwill is subject to at least an annual
assessment for impairment by applying a fair-value based test. For purposes of the impairment test, we consider each
division a reporting unit. Our impairment test is based on discounted cash flows derived from internal projections.
This process requires us to make assumptions on future revenues, costs, and timing of expected cash flows. Due to the
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degree of judgment required and uncertainties surrounding such estimates, actual results could differ from such
estimates. To the extent additional information arises or our strategies change, it is
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possible that our conclusion regarding goodwill impairment could change, which could have a material effect on our
financial position and results of operations. For these reasons, we consider the accounting estimate related to goodwill
impairment to be a critical accounting estimate.
Results of Operations Consolidated

Three Months Ended September 30, 2007 Compared to Three Months Ended September 30, 2006

Total revenues from continuing operations decreased 15% to $501.2 million for the three months ended

September 30, 2007, from $592.6 million for the three months ended September 30, 2006. This decrease is
attributable to a decrease in Homebuilding revenues of 15%, and a decrease in Financial Services revenues of 48%.

For the three months ended September 30, 2007, we had a loss from continuing operations before benefit for
income taxes of $609.8 million as compared to a loss from continuing operations before benefit for income taxes of
$121.3 million for the three months ended September 30, 2006. This decrease is due primarily to (1) $504.5 million in
inventory impairments and write-offs of land deposits and related abandonment costs, (2) $23.4 million in
impairments related to our unconsolidated joint ventures, (3) a $40.7 million increase in the estimated loss
contingency related to the settlement of the Transeastern JV litigation, and (4) goodwill impairments totaling
$2.7 million.

Our effective tax rate was -1.0% and 33.9% for the three months ended September 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
The 2007 effective tax rate was impacted primarily due to the recording of a valuation allowance on our deferred tax
asset.

For the three months ended September 30, 2007, we had a net loss of $619.7 million (or a loss of $10.42 per
diluted share) compared to a net loss of $80.0 million (or a loss of $1.34 per diluted share) for the three months ended
September 30, 2006. For the three months ended September 30, 2007, we had a loss from continuing operations, net
of taxes, of $615.8 million (or a loss of $10.35 per diluted share) compared to a loss from continuing operations, net of
taxes, of $80.2 million (or a loss of $1.35 per diluted share) for the three months ended September 30, 2006.
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Homebuilding

Homebuilding revenues decreased 15% to $492.9 million for the three months ended September 30, 2007, from
$576.8 million for the three months ended September 30, 2006. This decrease is due to a decrease in revenue from
home sales to $449.6 million for the three months ended September 30, 2007 from $563.0 million for the three months
ended September 30, 2006, partially offset by an increase in revenue from land sales to $43.3 million for the three
months ended September 30, 2007, from $13.8 million for the comparable period in 2006. The decrease in revenue
from home sales, which is net of buyer incentives, was due to an 18% decrease in the number of deliveries to 1,459
from 1,769 for the three months ended September 30, 2006. The average price of homes delivered fell slightly,
decreasing to $308,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2007, from $318,000 for the three months ended
September 30, 2006. We expect our home sales revenues to continue to decrease in 2007 as the number of home
deliveries declines and the average price of homes delivered continues to be impacted by increased incentives as a
result of worsening market conditions for the new home industry combined with diminished consumer confidence, the
oversupply of new and existing homes available for sale, increased foreclosures and downward pressure on home
prices.

For the three months ended September 30, 2007, we had a homebuilding gross loss of $437.4 million as compared
to a gross profit of $79.7 million for the three months ended September 30, 2006. This decrease is primarily due to an
increase in inventory impairments and abandonment costs to $504.5 million for the three months ended September 30,
2007 in addition to the decrease in the number of deliveries. Excluding impairment charges, our gross profit margin
on revenues from homes sales decreased to 17.7% for the three months ended September 30, 2007 from 22.8% for the
three months ended September 30, 2006. The decrease was primarily due to higher incentives on homes delivered in
response to challenging homebuilding market conditions. For the three months ended September 30, 2007, our
incentives increased to $45,300 per home delivered from $23,700 per home delivered for the three months ended
September 30, 2006. We expect gross margins, excluding impairment and related charges, to continue to decline in
2007 due to our expected continued use of higher incentives to drive our sales rates and downward pressure on home
prices due to challenging market conditions. Excluding impairment charges, we had a gross loss on land sales of $13.2
million for the three months ended September 30, 2007.

SG&A expenses increased to $86.0 million for the three months ended September 30, 2007, from $80.8 million for
the three months ended September 30, 2006. The increase in SG&A expenses is due to the following: (1) an increase
of $4.7 million in compensation costs; and (2) $4.5 million in and professional and consultant fees related to the
Transeastern JV and the evaluation of our restructuring options. The increase in expenses has been partially offset by a
reduction in direct selling and advertising expenses as deliveries have declined quarter over quarter; reductions in
overhead and related expenses, as we continue to improve our operating efficiencies, reduce costs, and streamline our
operations. Excluding the costs of professionals retained in connection with the development of a long term business
plan and evaluation of restructuring options, our SG&A expenses were $81.6 million for the three months ended
September 30, 2007, compared to $80.6 million for the three months ended September 30, 2006.

SG&A expenses as a percentage of revenues from home sales for the three months ended September 30, 2007
increased to 19.2%, as compared to 14.4% for the three months ended September 30, 2006. The 4.8% increase in
SG&A expenses as a percentage of home sales revenues is due to the factors discussed above. We expect our selling
expenses as a percentage of our revenue from home sales to continue to increase in 2007 due to the competition for
homebuyers. Our ratio of SG&A expenses as a percentage of revenues from home sales is also affected by the fact
that our consolidated revenues from home sales do not include revenues recognized by our unconsolidated joint
ventures; however, the compensation and other expenses capitalized by us in connection with certain of these joint
ventures are included in our consolidated SG&A expenses.

For the three months ended September 30, 2007, we had a loss from unconsolidated joint ventures of $9.2 million
compared to income from unconsolidated joint ventures of $29.0 million for the three months ended September 30,
2006. The decrease in our earnings from unconsolidated joint ventures is primarily due to reduced earnings in the joint
ventures as our joint ventures are experiencing similar challenging market conditions as our consolidated operations.
In addition, during the three months ended September 30, 2007 and 2006, we recorded impairment losses of
$23.4 million and $148.4 million, respectively. For the three months ended September 30, 2007, our unconsolidated
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joint ventures delivered 274 homes as compared to 1,020 homes delivered during the comparable period in the prior
year.

Net Sales Orders and Homes in Backlog (Consolidated)
For the three months ended September 30, 2007, net sales orders decreased by 33% as compared to the three

months ended September 30, 2006. The decrease in net sales orders is due to decreased demand for new homes and

higher cancellation rates. We expect these factors to continue to negatively impact our net sales orders until the
markets normalize.

47

Table of Contents 88



Edgar Filing: TOUSA INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents

Our cancellation rate increased to 46% for the three months ended September 30, 2007 from 33% for the three
months ended September 30, 2006. Except for our West region, all of our regions experienced increases in
cancellation rates for the three months ended September 30, 2007 when compared with the same period in 2006. Our
Mid-Atlantic region had the largest increase in cancellation rate to 59% for the three months ended September 30,
2007 from 24% for the three months ended September 30, 2006. Our Texas region also experienced a large increase in
cancellation rate to 43% for the three months ended September 30, 2007 from 23% for the three months ended
September 30, 2006. The cancellation rate for our Florida region was 56% for the three months ended September 30,
2007, which represents an 18% increase over the comparative period in the prior year. The cancellation rate for our
West region was 35% for the three months ended September 30, 2007, which represents a 14% decrease over the
comparative period in the prior year.

We had 3,485 homes in backlog as of September 30, 2007, as compared to 4,684 homes in backlog as of
September 30, 2006. The 26% decrease in backlog is primarily due to a decline in sales orders and an increase in
cancellation rates as a result of decreased demand. The sales value of backlog decreased 32% to $1.1 billion at
September 30, 2007, from $1.6 billion at September 30, 2006, due to the decrease in the number of homes in backlog
in addition to a decrease in the average selling price of homes in backlog to $320,000 from $350,000 from period to
period. The decrease in the average selling price of homes in backlog was primarily due to increased incentives and a
change in product mix. We expect the average selling price of homes in backlog to decrease in the future as
cancellations remain higher than historical levels and higher incentives are offered to move home inventory.

Net Sales Orders and Homes in Backlog (Unconsolidated Joint Ventures)

For the three months ended September 30, 2007, net sales orders increased by 22% as compared to the three
months ended September 30, 2006. The increase in net sales orders was due to high cancellation rates experienced
during the third quarter of last year by the Transeastern JV. Sales orders at our other joint ventures declined 33% due
to worsening market conditions, decreased demand and higher cancellation rates in the current year. We expect these
factors to continue to negatively impact our combined net sales orders until the markets strengthen. The decrease in
net sales orders at our joint ventures other than the Transeastern JV was also due to a decline in the number of active
communities. We intend to limit the use of joint ventures that build and sell homes.

We had 135 homes in backlog as of September 30, 2007, as compared to 2,476 homes in backlog as of
September 30, 2006. The 95% decrease in backlog primarily is due to a decline in net sales orders due to the factors
described above.

Joint venture revenues are not included in our consolidated financial statements. At September 30, 2007, the sales
value of our joint ventures homes in backlog was $37.0 million compared to $766.5 million at September 30, 2006.
This decrease is due primarily to the decrease in the number of homes in backlog. In addition, the average selling
price of homes in backlog decreased to $274,000 from $310,000 from period to period.

Financial Services

Financial Services revenues decreased to $8.3 million for the three months ended September 30, 2007, from
$15.8 million for the three months ended September 30, 2006. This 48% decrease is due primarily to a decrease in the
number of closings at our title and mortgage operations. For the three months ended September 30, 2007, our mix of
mortgage originations was 5% adjustable rate mortgages (of which approximately 76% were interest only) and 95%
fixed rate mortgages, which is a shift from 22% adjustable rate mortgages (of which approximately 89% were interest
only) and 78% fixed rate mortgages in the comparable period of the prior year. The average FICO score of our
homebuyers during the three months ended September 30, 2007 was 731, and the average loan-to-value ratio on first
mortgages was 80%. For the three months ended September 30, 2007, approximately 10% of our homebuyers paid in
cash while approximately 8% of our homebuyers paid in cash during the three months ended September 30, 2006. Our
combined mortgage operations capture ratio for non-cash homebuyers increased to 72% (excluding the Transeastern
JV) for the three months ended September 30, 2007 from 71% for the three months ended September 30, 2006. The
number of closings at our mortgage operations decreased to 1,087 for the three months ended September 30, 2007,
from 1,622 for the three months ended September 30, 2006. Our combined title operations capture ratio was 98% for
the three months ended September 30, 2007, which is consistent with the comparative prior period. The number of
closings at our title operations decreased to 2,839 for the three months ended September 30, 2007, from 5,745 for the
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same period in 2006. Non-affiliated customers accounted for approximately 61% of our title company revenues for the
three months ended September 30, 2007.

Financial Services expenses decreased to $8.1 million for the three months ended September 30, 2007, from
$10.8 million for the three months ended September 30, 2006. This 25% decrease is a result of reduced staff levels in

response to a more challenging housing market.
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Discontinued Operations

On June 6, 2007, we sold substantially all of our Dallas division to Wall Homes Texas LLC for $56.5 million and
realized a pre-tax loss on disposal of $13.6 million.

In accordance with SFAS 144, results of our Dallas division have been classified as discontinued operations, and
prior periods have been restated to be consistent with the September 30, 2007 presentation. Discontinued operations
include Dallas division revenues of $1.1 million and $34.9 million for the three months ended September 30, 2007 and
2006, respectively. The Dallas division had a net loss of $3.9 million for the three months ended September 30, 2007
as compared to net income of $0.2 million for the three months ended September 30, 2006.

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2007 Compared to Nine Months Ended September 30, 2006

Total revenues from continuing operations decreased 10% to $1,650.6 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2007 from $1,830.0 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2006. This decrease is
attributable to a decrease in Homebuilding revenues of 9%, and a decrease in Financial Services revenues of 36%.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2007, we had a loss from continuing operations before benefit for
income taxes of $835.8 million as compared to income from continuing operations before provision for income taxes
of $71.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2006. This decrease is due primarily to (1) a $151.6 million
increase in the estimated loss contingency related to the settlement of the Transeastern JV litigation, (2) $28.9 million
in impairments related to our unconsolidated joint ventures, (3) $628.4 million in inventory impairments and
write-offs of land deposits and related abandonment costs, and (4) goodwill impairments totaling $40.9 million.

Our effective tax rate was 4.9% and 42%for the nine months ended September 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
The 2007 effective tax rate was impacted primarily due to the recording of a valuation allowance on our deferred tax
asset.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2007, we had a net loss of $817.7 million (or a loss of $13.75 per diluted
share) compared to net income of $42.6 million (or income of $0.72 per diluted share) for the nine months ended
September 30, 2006. For the nine months ended September 30, 2007, we had a loss from continuing operations, net of
taxes, of $800.1 million (or a loss of $13.45 per diluted share) compared to income from continuing operations, net of
taxes, of $41.4 million (or income of $0.70 per diluted share) for the nine months ended September 30, 2006.
Homebuilding

Homebuilding revenues decreased 9% to $1,619.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2007 from
$1,781.6 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2006. This decrease is primarily due to a decrease in
revenues from home sales to $1,542.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2007 from $1,724.8 million
for the nine months ended September 30, 2006, partially offset by an increase in revenue from land sales of
$77.0 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2007 from $56.8 million for the comparable period in 2006.
The decrease in revenue from home sales, which is net of buyer incentives, was due to a 10% decrease in the number
of deliveries to 4,833 from 5,380 for the nine months ended September 30, 2006. The average price of homes
delivered remained relatively stable, decreasing to $319,000 from $321,000 for the nine months ended September 30,
2006. The increase in the average price of homes delivered is primarily a result of changes in geographic and product
mix. We expect our home sales revenues to decrease in 2007 as the number of home deliveries declines and the
average price of homes delivered continues to be impacted by increased incentives as a result of decreased demand for
new homes.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2007, we had a homebuilding gross loss of $339.7 million as compared
to a gross profit of $384.7 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2006. This decrease is primarily due to an
increase in inventory impairments and abandonment costs of $628.4 million for the nine months ended September 30,
2007, in addition to the decrease in revenue from home sales. Excluding impairment charges, our gross profit margin
on revenues from homes sales decreased to 19.0% for the nine months ended September 30, 2007 from 24.9% for the
nine months ended September 30, 2006. The decrease was primarily due to higher incentives on homes delivered in
response to challenging homebuilding market conditions. For the nine months ended September 30, 2007, our
incentives increased to $40,400 per home delivered as compared to $17,900 per home delivered for the nine months
ended September 30, 2006. We expect gross margins, excluding impairment and related charges, to continue to
decline in 2007 due to higher incentives being offered to improve sales velocity. Excluding impairment charges, we
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had a gross loss on land sales of $8.6 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2007.

SG&A expenses decreased to $262.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2007, from $274.1 million
for the nine months ended September 30, 2006. The decrease in SG&A expenses is due primarily to a reduction in
overhead and related expenses, including decreases in compensation and severance in addition to a decrease of $4.6
million in stock-based compensation expense, as
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we continue to improve our operating efficiencies, reduce costs, and streamline our operations. The decrease in
expenses has been partially offset by the following: (1) an increase of $7.7 million in direct selling and advertising
expenses, which include commissions, closing costs, advertising and sales associate compensation, increased in efforts
to spur additional sales; and (2) $14.7 million in professional and consultant fees related to the Transeastern JV and

the evaluation of the company s restructuring options. Excluding the costs of professionals retained in connection with
the development of a long term business plan and evaluation of restructuring options, our SG&A expenses decreased
to $247.8 million for the three months ended September 30, 2007, from $274.1 million for the three months ended
September 30, 2006.

SG&A expenses as a percentage of revenues from home sales for the nine months ended September 30, 2007
increased to 17.0%, as compared to 15.9% for the nine months ended September 30, 2006. The 130 basis point
increase in SG&A expenses as a percentage of home sales revenues is due to the factors discussed above. We expect
our selling expenses as a percentage of our revenue from home sales to continue to increase in 2007 due to the
competition for homebuyers. Our ratio of SG&A expenses as a percentage of revenues from home sales is also
affected by the fact that our consolidated revenues from home sales do not include revenues recognized by our
unconsolidated joint ventures; however, the compensation and other expenses capitalized by us in connection with
certain of these joint ventures are included in our consolidated SG&A expenses.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2007, we had a loss from unconsolidated joint ventures of $8.8 million
compared to income from unconsolidated joint ventures of $94.7 million for the nine months ended September 30,
2006. The decrease in our earnings from unconsolidated joint ventures is primarily due to reduced earnings in the joint
ventures as our joint ventures are experiencing similar challenging market conditions as our consolidated operations.
Additionally, during the nine months ended September 30, 2007 we recognized impairments of $28.9 million on
certain joint venture investments. For the nine months ended September 30, 2007, our unconsolidated joint ventures
delivered 1,569 homes as compared to 3,105 homes delivered during the comparable period in the prior year.

Net Sales Orders (Consolidated)

For the nine months ended September 30, 2007, net sales orders decreased by 17% as compared to the nine months
ended September 30, 2006. The decrease in net sales orders is due to decreased demand for new homes and higher
cancellation rates. We expect these factors to continue to negatively impact our net sales orders until the markets
recover.

Our cancellation rate increased to 34% for the nine months ended September 30, 2007 from 28% for the nine
months ended September 30, 2006. Except for our West region, all of our regions experienced increases in
cancellation rates for the nine months ended September 30, 2007 when compared with the same period in 2006. Our
Florida region had the largest increase in cancellation rate to 38% for the nine months ended September 30, 2007 from
26% for the nine months ended September 30, 2006. Our cancellation rate for our Texas region was 33% for the nine
months ended September 30, 2007 from 24% for the nine months ended September 30, 2006. The cancellation rate for
our Mid-Atlantic region was 26% for the nine months ended September 30, 2007, which represents a 5% increase
over the comparative period in the prior year. The cancellation rate for our West region was 36% for the nine months
ended September 30, 2007, which represents a 2% decrease over the comparative period in the prior year.

Net Sales Orders (Unconsolidated Joint Ventures)

For the nine months ended September 30, 2007, net sales orders decreased by 14% as compared to the nine months
ended September 30, 2006. The decrease in net sales orders is due to challenging market conditions, decreased
demand and higher cancellation rates. We expect these factors to continue to negatively impact our net sales orders
until the markets recover. The decrease in net sales orders is also due to a decline in the number of active communities
in our joint ventures. We intend to limit the use of joint ventures that build and sell homes.

Financial Services

Financial Services revenues decreased to $31.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2007 from
$48.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2006. This 36% decrease is due primarily to a decrease in the
number of closings at our title and mortgage operations. For the nine months ended September 30, 2007, our mix of
mortgage originations was 8% adjustable rate mortgages (of which approximately 91% were interest only) and 92%
fixed rate mortgages, which is a shift from 20% adjustable rate mortgages (of which approximately 89% were interest
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only) and 80% fixed rate mortgages in the comparable period of the prior year. The average FICO score of our
homebuyers during the nine months ended September 30, 2007 was 731, and the average loan-to-value ratio on first
mortgages was 79%. For both the nine months ended September 30, 2007 and 2006, approximately 10% of our
homebuyers paid in cash. Our combined mortgage operations capture ratio for non-cash homebuyers increased to 69%
(excluding the Transeastern JV) for the nine months ended September 30, 2007 from 68% for the nine months ended
September 30, 2006. The number of closings at our mortgage operations decreased to 3,955 for the nine months ended
September 30, 2007 from 4,665 for the nine months ended September 30, 2006. Our combined title operations capture
ratio was 97% for the nine months ended September
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30, 2007 compared to 98% for the nine months ended September 30, 2006. The number of closings at our title
operations decreased to 11,218 for the nine months ended September 30, 2007 from 18,082 for the same period in
2006. Non-affiliated customers accounted for approximately 58% of our title company revenues for the nine months
ended September 30, 2007.

Financial Services expenses decreased to $26.1 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2007 from
$32.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2006. This 20% decrease is a result of reduced staff levels in
response to the decline in business levels.

Discontinued Operations

On June 6, 2007, we sold substantially all of our Dallas division to Wall Homes Texas LLC for $56.5 million and
realized a pre-tax loss on disposal of $13.6 million.

During the three months ended March 31, 2007, we determined that the pending sale of our Dallas division at a
price below the carrying value was an indicator of impairment. We performed an interim goodwill impairment test as
of March 31, 2007 and, at that time, determined that the goodwill recorded in our Dallas division was impaired;
accordingly, we wrote off $3.1 million of goodwill which is included in loss from discontinued operations for the nine
months ended September 30, 2007.

In accordance with SFAS 144, results of our Dallas division have been classified as discontinued operations and
prior periods have been restated to be consistent with the September 30, 2007 presentation. Discontinued operations
include Dallas division revenues of $44.7 million and $104.0 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2007
and 2006, respectively. For the nine months ended September 30, 2007, the Dallas division had a net loss of
$17.6 million as compared to net income of $1.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2006.

Reportable Segments

Our operating segments are aggregated into reportable segments in accordance with SFAS No. 131, Disclosures
About Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information, based primarily upon similar economic characteristics,
product type, geographic area and information used by the chief operating decision maker to allocate resources and
assess performance. Our reportable segments consist of our four major Homebuilding geographic regions (Florida,
Mid-Atlantic, Texas and the West) and our Financial Services operations.

Homebuilding Operations

We have historically aggregated our Homebuilding operations into a single reportable segment, but we have
restated our segment disclosures to present four homebuilding reportable segments for the three and nine months
ended September 30, 2007 and 2006 as follows:

Florida: Jacksonville, Central Florida, Southeast Florida, Southwest Florida, Tampa/St. Petersburg
Mid-Atlantic: Baltimore/Southern Pennsylvania, Delaware, Nashville, Northern Virginia
Texas: Austin, Houston, San Antonio
West: Colorado, Las Vegas, Phoenix
51
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Selected Homebuilding Operations and Financial Data

The following tables set forth selected operational and financial data for our Homebuilding operations for the
periods indicated (dollars in millions, except average price in thousands):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2007 2006 2007 2006

Homebuilding revenues:
Florida:
Sales of homes $ 188.3 $ 214.0 $ 6374 $ 7589
Sales of land 7.3 4.1 33.7 14.0
Total Florida 195.6 218.1 671.1 772.9
Mid-Atlantic:
Sales of homes 49.9 70.0 164.5 204.7
Sales of land 31.5 0.2 31.6 6.7
Total Mid-Atlantic 81.4 70.2 196.1 211.4
Texas:
Sales of homes* 147.8 150.4 461.7 429.1
Sales of land* 1.2 6.3 7.3 94
Total Texas* 149.0 156.7 469.0 438.5
West:
Sales of homes 63.6 128.6 278.7 332.1
Sales of land 33 3.2 4.4 26.7
Total West 66.9 131.8 283.1 358.8
Total homebuilding revenues $ 4929 $ 576.8 $1,619.3 $1,781.6
*  The Texas

region excludes

the Dallas

division, which

is now classified

asa

discontinued

operation.

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2007 2006 2007 2006

Results of Operations:
Homebuilding:
Florida $(299.4) $(116.0) $(290.3) $ (5.5
Mid-Atlantic (52.0) (9.9) 97.7) 2.3
Texas* 14.6 15.1 433 43.2
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is now classified
asa
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52

(199.4)

(536.2)
0.2

(73.8)

$(609.8)

34

(114.2)
5.0

(12.1)

$(121.3)

(276.2)

(620.9)
52

(220.1)

$(835.8)

72.9
112.9

15.9
(57.4)

$ 714

Table of Contents

97



Edgar Filing: TOUSA INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2007 2006 2007 2006
Impairment charges on active communities:
Florida $ 157 $ 45 $ 444 $ 52
Mid-Atlantic 4.4 10.4 11.0 13.5
Texas* 0.5 0.6 0.5
West 43.2 14.4 56.7 16.1
63.3 29.8 112.7 353
Write-offs of deposits and abandonment costs:
Florida 274.5 0.2 287.3 1.3
Mid-Atlantic 33.9 7.5 47.8 8.0
Texas* 0.3 0.1
West 132.8 12.3 180.3 12.7
441.2 20.0 515.7 22.1
Inventory impairments and abandonment costs $ 504.5 $ 4938 $628.4 $ 574
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2007 2006 2007
Deliveries: Homes $ Homes $ Homes $ Homes $
Consolidated:
Florida 551 $188.2 580  $214.0 1,780 $ 6374 2,079 758.9
Mid-Atlantic 138 49.9 189 70.0 458 164.5 522 204.7
Texas* 563 147.8 605 150.4 1,784 461.7 1,721 429.2
West 207 63.7 395 128.6 811 278.7 1,058 332.1
Continuing operations 1,459 449.6 1,769 563.0 4,833 1,542.3 5,380 1,724.9
Discontinued
operations* 7 1.1 152 34.9 189 44.7 449 101.0
Total 1,466 450.7 1,921 597.9 5,022 1,587.0 5,829 1,825.9
Unconsolidated joint
ventures:
Florida (excluding
Transeastern) 40 11.3
Transeastern 132 28.5 586 180.2 739 174.8 1,647 501.2
Mid-Atlantic 6 1.1 12 3.1 16 4.0 100 28.9
West 136 36.5 422 141.9 774 230.9 1,358 485.6
Total unconsolidated
joint ventures 274 66.1 1,020 325.2 1,569 421.0 3,105 1,015.7
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Combined total 1,740 $516.8 2,941 $923.1 6,591 $2,008.0 8,934 $2,841.6
*  The Texas

Region excludes

the Dallas

division, which
is classified as a
discontinued
operation.
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Net Sales Orders(V:
Consolidated:
Florida
Mid-Atlantic

Texas*

West

Continuing operations
Discontinued
operations*

Total
Unconsolidated joint
ventures:

Florida (excluding
Transeastern)
Transeastern
Mid-Atlantic

West

Total unconsolidated
joint ventures

Combined total

(M Net of
cancellations.

*  The Texas
Region excludes
the Dallas

division, which
is now classified
asa
discontinued
operation.

Sales Backlog:
Consolidated:
Florida
Mid-Atlantic
Texas*
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Three Months Ended
September 30,
2007 2006
Homes $ Homes $ Homes
226 $ 436 377 $150.4 1,263
57 17.4 146 53.5 485
376 99.2 601 152.0 1,658
233 59.5 206 63.7 789
892 219.6 1,330 419.6 4,195
(0.5) 140 34.2 70
892 219.1 1,470 453.8 4,265
1 0.5 12
54 9.2 (23) (13.0) 248
6 1.0 13 2.7 19
93 21.5 134 28.7 480
153 31.7 125 18.9 759
1,045 $250.8 1,595 $472.7 5,024
September 30, 2007
Average
Homes $ Price

1,935 $ 6644 $ 343

239 87.1 $ 365

848 229.2 $ 270
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Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2007 2006
$ Homes $
$ 3989 1,627 $ 6423
170.0 480 190.8
417.3 1,936 491.3
219.4 982 334.4
1,205.6 5,025 1,658.8
18.9 448 106.9
1,224.5 5,473 1,765.7
1.7 13 5.2
27.1 85 50.6
3.8 71 17.5
116.8 718 214.1
149.4 887 287.4
$1,373.9 6,360 $2,053.1
September 30, 2006
Average
Homes $ Price
2,485 $ 920.1 $ 370
259 98.5 $ 380
1,165 316.4 $ 272
100



West

Continuing operations
Discontinued operations™

Total

Unconsolidated joint ventures:

Florida (excluding
Transeastern)
Transeastern
Mid-Atlantic
West

Total unconsolidated joint
ventures

Combined total

*  The Texas
Region excludes
the Dallas

division, which
is now classified
asa
discontinued
operation.
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463

3,485
14

3,499

135

135

3,634

135.3

1,116.0
43

1,120.3

37.0

37.0

$1,157.3
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4,684
287

4,971
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1,516

903

2,476

7,447

306.1

1,641.1
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Three Months Ended September 30, Nine Months Ended September 30,
2007 2006 2007 2006
Sales Sales Sales Sales

Average Price: Deliveries Orders Deliveries Orders Deliveries Orders Deliveries Orders
Consolidated:
Florida $342 $193 $369 $399 $358 $316 $365 $395
Mid-Atlantic $362 $305 $370 $366 $359 $350 $392 $398
Texas* $262 $264 $249 $253 $259 $252 $249 $254
West $308 $255 $326 $309 $344 $278 $314 $341
Continuing operations  $308 $246 $318 $315 $319 $287 $321 $330
Discontinued
operations $158 $ $230 $244 $237 $270 $225 $239
Total $307 $246 $311 $309 $316 $287 $313 $323
Unconsolidated joint
ventures:
Florida (excluding
Transeastern) $ $ $ $456 $282 $142 $ $400
Transeastern $216 $171 $307 $564 $237 $109 $304 $596
Mid-Atlantic $193 $172 $254 $210 $249 $202 $289 $247
West $268 $231 $336 $214 $298 $243 $358 $298
Total unconsolidated
joint ventures $241 $207 $319 $152 $268 $197 $327 $324
Combined total $297 $240 $314 $296 $305 $273 $318 $323
*  The Texas

Region excludes

the Dallas

division, which
is classified as a
discontinued
operation.
Three Months Ended September 30, 2007 compared to Three Months Ended September 30, 2006

Florida: Homebuilding revenues decreased 10% for the three months ended September 30, 2007 to $195.6 million
from $218.1 million for the three months ended September 30, 2006. The decrease in revenues was primarily due to a
7% decrease in average sales price to $342,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2007, compared to
$369,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2006. Additionally, there was a 5% decrease in the number of
homes delivered to 551 homes delivered for the three months ended September 30, 2007, compared to 580 homes
delivered for the three months ended September 30, 2006. Gross margin on home sales, excluding impairments, was
18.5% for the three months ended September 30, 2007, compared to 25.4% for the three months ended September 30,
2006. The decrease in gross margin was due to an increase in sales incentives offered to home buyers. The average
sales incentive per home delivered increased 168% to $74,500 per home for the three months ended September 30,
2007, from $27,800 for the comparable period last year.

During the three months ended September 30, 2007, we generated a loss of $275.1 million on our revenues from
land sales, which included write-offs of deposits and abandonment costs of $274.5 million, as compared to gross
profit on land sales of $2.2 million during the three months ended September 30, 2006.

Mid-Atlantic: Homebuilding revenues increased 16% to $81.4 million for the three months ended September 30,
2007 from $70.2 million for the three months ended September 30, 2006. The increase in revenues was due to a
$31.3 million increase land sales. The increase in revenues was partially offset by a 27% decrease in homes delivered
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to 138 homes delivered for the three months ended September 30, 2007, compared to 189 homes delivered for the
three months ended September 30, 2006. Gross margin on home sales, excluding impairments, was 11.2% for the
three months ended September 30, 2007, compared to 18.5% for the three months ended September 30, 2006. The
decrease was due to a land sale which had a loss of $13.2 million.

For the three months ended September 30, 2007, we generated a loss of $45.8 million on our revenues from land
sales, which included write-offs of deposits and abandonment costs of $33.9 million, as compared to a loss on land
sales of $7.4 million during the three months ended September 30, 2006.

Texas: Homebuilding revenues decreased 5% for the three months ended September 30, 2007 to $149.0 million
from $156.7 million for the three months ended September 30, 2006. The decrease in revenues was primarily due to a
$5.0 million (or 81%) decrease in land sale revenues. Additionally there was a 7% decrease in the number of homes
delivered to 563 for the three months

55

Table of Contents 103



Edgar Filing: TOUSA INC - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents

ended September 30, 2007, compared to 605 homes delivered for the three months ended September 30, 2006. This
was partially offset by a 5% increase in the average sales price to $262,000 from $249,000 for the same respective
periods. Gross margin on home sales, excluding impairments, was 22.6% for the three months ended September 30,
2007, compared to 22.2% for three months ended September 30, 2006. Incentives per home delivered increased 68%
to $18,300 from $10,900 for the three months ended September 30, 2006.

For the three months ended September 30, 2007, we generated a gross profit of $0.3 million on our revenues from
land sales, as compared to gross profit of $0.4 million during the three months ended September 30, 2006.

West: Homebuilding revenues decreased 49% for the three months ended September 30, 2007 to $66.9 million
from $131.8 million for the three months ended September 30, 2006. The decrease was primarily due to a 48%
decrease in the number of home deliveries to 207 homes delivered for the three months ended September 30, 2007,
compared to 395 homes delivered for the three months ended September 30, 2006. Additionally, there was a 6%
decrease in the average sales price to $308,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2007, compared to $326,000
for the for the three months ended September 30, 2006. For the three months ended September 30, 2007, gross margin
on home sales, excluding impairments, was 9.2% compared to 21.7% for the three months ended September 30, 2006.
The decrease in gross margin on home sales, excluding impairments, was due primarily to an increase in sales
incentives offered to home buyers. The average sales incentive per home delivered increased 54% to $52,400 per
home for the three months ended September 30, 2007, from $34,000 for the comparable period last year.

For the three months ended September 30, 2007, we generated a loss of $132.0 million on our revenues from land
sales, which included write-offs of deposits and abandonment costs of $132.8 million, as compared to a loss on land
sales of $12.7 million during three months ended September 30, 2006.

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2007 compared to Nine Months Ended September 30, 2006

Florida: Homebuilding revenues decreased 13% for the nine months ended September 30, 2007 to $671.1 million
from $772.9 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2006. The decrease in revenues was due to a 14%
decrease in the number of home deliveries to 1,780 homes delivered for the nine months ended September 30, 2007,
compared to 2,079 homes delivered for the nine months ended September 30, 2006. Gross margin on home sales,
excluding impairments, was 21.3% for the nine months ended September 30, 2007, compared to 27.9% for the nine
months ended September 30, 2006. The decrease in gross margin was primarily due to an increase in sales incentives
offered to home buyers. The average sales incentive per home delivered increased 250% to $59,600 per home for the
nine months ended September 30, 2007, from $17,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2006.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2007, we generated a loss of $284.5 million on our revenues from
land sales, which included write-offs of deposits and abandonment costs of $287.3 million, as compared to gross
profit on land sales of $4.7 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2006.

Mid-Atlantic: Homebuilding revenues decreased 7% to $196.1 million for the nine months ended September 30,
2007 from $211.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2006. The decrease in revenues was due to a 12%
decrease in homes delivered to 458 homes compared to 522 homes delivered and a decrease in the average selling
price to $359,000 for the nine months ended September 30, 2007, from $392,000 for the nine months ended
September 30, 2006. Gross margin on home sales, excluding impairments, was 13.5% for the nine months ended
September 30, 2007, compared to 20.8% for the nine months ended September 30, 2006. Gross margin on home sales,
excluding impairments decreased for the nine months ended September 30, 2007 primarily due to a land sale which
had a loss of $13.2 million and was partially due to a 14% increase in the average sales incentives offered to
homebuyers to $27,300 per home delivered for the nine months ended September 30, 2007, from $24,000 per home
delivered for the nine months ended September 30, 2006.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2007, we generated a loss of $61.0 million on our revenues from land
sales, which included write-offs of deposits and abandonment costs of $47.8 million, as compared to a loss on land
sales of $6.3 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2006.

Texas: Homebuilding revenues increased 7% for the nine months ended September 30, 2007 to $469.0 million
from $438.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2006. The increase in revenues was primarily due to a
4% increase in the number of home deliveries to 1,784 homes delivered for the nine months ended September 30,
2007, compared to 1,721 homes delivered for the nine months ended September 30, 2006. Additionally, we
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experienced an increase in average sales price on homes delivered to $259,000 during the nine months ended
September 30, 2007, as compared to $249,000 during the comparable period in the prior year. Gross margin on home
sales, excluding impairments, was 21.8% for the nine months ended September 30, 2007,
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compared to 22.1% for nine months ended September 30, 2006. Incentives per home delivered increased 46.0% to
$17,100 for the nine months ended September 30, 2007, from $11,700 for the nine months ended September 30, 2006.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2007, we generated a gross profit of $0.7 million on our revenues from
land sales, and $0.8 million in the nine months ended September 30, 2006.

West: Homebuilding revenues decreased 21% for the nine months ended September 30, 2007 to $283.1 million
from $358.8 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2006. The decrease in revenues was primarily due to a
23% decrease in the number of home deliveries to 811 homes delivered for the nine months ended September 30,
2007, compared to 1,058 homes delivered for the nine months ended September 30, 2006. Additionally there was a
$22.3 million (or 84%) decrease in revenues from land sales between the same respective periods. These decreases in
homebuilding revenues were partially offset by a 10% increase in average sales price to $344,000 from $314,000 for
the same periods. The increase in the average sales price in our West region was primarily due to a change in product
mix. Gross margin on home sales, excluding impairments, was 11.8% for the nine months ended September 30, 2007,
compared to 25.2% for the nine months ended September 30, 2006. The decrease in gross margin was due primarily to
an increase in sales incentives offered to home buyers. The average sales incentive per home delivered increased
131% to $57,100 per home for the nine months ended September 30, 2007, from $24,700 for the nine months ended
September 30, 2006.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2007, we generated a loss of $174.6 million on our revenues from land
sales, which included write-offs of deposits and abandonment costs of $180.3 million, as compared to a loss on land
sales of $8.2 million during nine months ended September 30, 2006.

Financial Services Operations

The following table presents selected financial data related to our Financial Services reportable segment for the

periods indicated (dollars in millions):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 30, September 30,
2007 2006 2007 2006
Revenues $ 83 $ 158 $ 313 $ 484
Expenses 8.1 10.8 26.1 32.5
Financial services pretax income $ 02 $ 5.0 $ 52 $ 159

FINANCIAL CONDITION, LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Sources and Uses of Cash

Our Homebuilding operations primary uses of cash have been for land acquisitions, construction and development
expenditures, joint venture investments, and SG&A expenditures. Our sources of cash to finance these uses have been
primarily cash generated from operations and cash from our financing activities.

Our Financial Services operations primarily use cash to fund mortgages, prior to their sale, and SG&A
expenditures. We rely primarily on internally generated funds, which include the proceeds generated from the sale of
mortgages, and the mortgage operations warehouse lines of credit to fund these operations.

At September 30, 2007, we had unrestricted cash and cash equivalents of $75.6 million as compared to
$54.2 million at December 31, 2006.

The additional borrowings arising from the settlement of the Transeastern JV disputes and the continuing
deterioration of the housing market, including the worsening since late July 2007 due to the mortgage and credit
market crisis, has had, and will continue to have for an extended period of time, a negative impact on our liquidity and
our ability to comply with financial and other covenants under our bank loans and indentures, including interest
coverage, total leverage, and tangible net worth covenants. All of these factors, and others which may arise in the
future, will adversely impact our financial condition and results of operations.

Our income before non-cash charges generally is our most significant source of operating cash flow. In past years,
because of our rapid growth, our operations had generally used more cash than they have generated. However, due to
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the continuing significant deterioration in the housing market, we have taken, and are continuing to take, actions to
maximize cash receipts and minimize cash expenditures. As part of these initiatives, we have increased our review of
general and administrative expenses and operations to
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increase efficiencies by reducing costs and streamlining our activities. However, some of our efforts on reducing
general and administrative expenses are being offset by professional and consulting fees associated with the settlement
of our Transeastern joint venture (the Transeastern JV ) and our current restructuring efforts. In addition, we are
working with our suppliers and seeking new suppliers, through competitive bid processes, to reduce construction
material and labor costs. We are analyzing each community based on profit and sales absorption goals that include
current market factors in the homebuilding industry such as the oversupply of homes available for sale in most of our
markets, less demand, decreased consumer confidence, tighter mortgage loan underwriting criteria and higher
foreclosures. We continue to review the size, geographic allocations and components of our inventory to better align
these assets with estimated future deliveries. We have established inventory targets based on current market
conditions, existing inventory levels and our historical and projected results. If our inventory exceeds these targeted
levels, which is currently the case, we are and will continue to take necessary actions to reduce our inventory level to
these targeted levels. These actions include, to the extent possible: limiting new arrangements to acquire land;
engaging in bulk sales of land and unsold homes; reducing the number of homes under construction and limiting
development activities; re-negotiating terms or abandoning our rights under option contracts; considering other asset
dispositions including the possible sale of underperforming assets, communities, divisions, and joint venture interests;
further reducing inventory target levels; and other initiatives designed to monetize our assets including our deferred
tax assets.

As a result of worsening market conditions since late July and our liquidity constraints, during the three months
ended September 30, 2007, we abandoned our rights under certain option agreements which resulted in a 9,400 unit
decline in our controlled homesites. Abandonment decisions were made following in depth community by community
analyses of all option contracts based on projected returns, amount and timing of incremental cash flow, and owned
homesites. In connection with the abandonment of our rights under these option contracts, we forfeited cash deposits
of $166.9 million and had letters of credit of $91.2 million drawn, subsequent to September 30, 3007, which increased
our outstanding borrowings. We have entered into development contracts associated with our option contracts (which
development contracts include obligations of ours to develop property even if we abandon the option contract). As of
September 30, 2007 we recorded a $22.7 million loss accrual with respect thereto. See note 3 to our financial
statements included herein. As challenging market conditions continue, we expect to continue to reduce inventory in
an attempt to further align our inventory levels to housing demand in those markets we serve, reduce our cost of sales
relating to construction and labor costs for the homes we build, and reduce our selling, general and administrative
costs to levels consistent with fewer home deliveries to operate within our liquidity constraints. These or future
actions may not be sufficient to allow us to continue our operations.

Our financial statements are presented on a going concern basis, which contemplates the realization of assets and
satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. We have $1.7 billion in borrowings, have experienced
significant losses for the year ended December 31, 2006, and the nine months ended September 30, 2007, and
continue to generate negative cash flows from operations. For the nine months ended September 30, 2007, we
incurred a net loss of $817.7 million and had stockholders equity of $48.3 million, which was a significant decrease
when compared to $774.9 million at December 31, 2006. This raises substantial doubt about our ability to continue as
a going concern. Our ability to continue as a going concern will depend upon our ability to restructure our capital
structure including our attempt to exchange a large portion of our outstanding indebtedness for equity. We have asked
our bondholders to organize as a group in order to discuss such restructuring and reorganization alternatives. Failure
to restructure our capital structure would result in, among other things, depleting our available funds and not being
able to pay our obligations when they become due, as well as possible defaults under our debt obligations. The
accompanying consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments to reflect the possible future effects
on the recoverability and classification of assets.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2007, cash used in operating activities was $95.6 million, as compared to
$179.3 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2006. The improvement in the use of cash by our
operating activities is primarily a result of a reduction in the growth of our inventory during the nine months ended
September 30, 2007. On June 6, 2007, we sold substantially all of our Dallas division for approximately $52.3 million
in net cash proceeds and on September 25, 2007 we sold in bulk, homesites in our Mid-Atlantic and Virginia division
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for $26.1 million in net cash proceeds. Both of these transactions helped to offset a portion of the cash used by our
operating activities during the nine months ended September 30, 2007.

Cash used in investing activities was $25.1 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2007, as compared
to $7.1 million during the nine months ended September 30, 2006. The decrease in cash used in investing activities is
primarily due to an increase in investments in unconsolidated joint ventures to $28.0 million and reductions in the
receipt of capital distributions from the unconsolidated joint ventures to $12.4 million during the nine months ended
September 30, 2007 from $32.3 million for the prior year period. This increase was partially offset by a decrease in
net additions to property and equipment to $9.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2007 compared to
$13.4 million for the prior year period.

Refunds of Federal & State Income Taxes

The Company anticipates receiving refunds of previously paid income taxes for 2005 and 2006 through the
carryback of its taxable loss from 2007, refunds of both federal and state income taxes as the result of recently filed
returns for 2006, and refunds of 2007 estimated taxes totaling approximately $240.2 million.
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Seasonality

The homebuilding industry tends to be seasonal, as generally there are more homes sold in the spring and summer
months. Because new home deliveries trail new home contracts by a number of months, we typically have the greatest
percentage of home deliveries in the fall and winter. Accordingly, during the first half of the year we typically have a
higher use of our revolving credit facility.

Financing Activities

Our consolidated borrowings at September 30, 2007 were $1.7 billion, an increase of $0.6 billion as compared to
December 31, 2006. At September 30, 2007, our Homebuilding borrowings of $1.7 billion included: (i)
$150.3 million of borrowings under the revolving loan facility which bear interest at the reserve-adjusted Eurodollar
base rate plus 1.90%; (ii) $199.5 million under the First Lien Term Loan Facility due 2012; (iii) $300.0 million of 9%
senior notes due 2010; (iv) $250.0 million of 8-1/4% senior notes due 2011; (v) $125.0 million of 7-1/2% senior
subordinated notes due 2011; (vi) $185.0 million of 10-3/8% senior subordinated notes due 2012; (vii) $200.0 million
of 7-1/2% senior subordinated notes due 2015; (viii) $306.8 million under the Second Lien Term Loan Facility due
2013 and (ix) $20.5 million of Senior Sub PIK Notes of 14-3/4% due 2015. Our weighted average debt to maturity is
4.5 years, while our average inventory turnover is 1.0 times per year.

To effect the TE Acquisition, on July 31, 2007, we entered into the (i) $200.0 million aggregate principal amount
first lien term loan facility (the First Lien Term Loan Facility ) and (ii) $300.0 million aggregate principal amount
second lien term loan facility (the Second Lien Term Loan Facility ), (First and Second Lien Term Loan Facilities
taken together, the Facilities ) with Citicorp North America, Inc. as Administrative Agent. The proceeds from the
credit facilities were used to satisfy claims of the senior lenders against the Transeastern JV. Our existing $800.0
million revolving loan facility (the Revolving Loan Facility ) was amended and restated to (i) reduce the revolving
commitments thereunder by $100.0 million and (ii) permit the incurrence of the Facilities (and make other conforming
changes relating to the Facilities). Collectively, these transactions are referred to as the Financing. Net proceeds from
the Financing at closing were $470.6 million which is net of a 1% discount and transaction costs. The Revolving Loan
Facility expires on March 9, 2010. The First Lien Term Loan Facility expires on July 31, 2012 and the Second Lien
Term Loan Facility expires on July 31, 2013.

On October 25, 2007, our Revolving Loan Facility was amended by Amendment No. 1 to the Second Amended
and Restated Revolving Credit Agreement. Among other things, the existing agreement was amended with respect to
(i) the pricing of loans, (ii) limiting the amounts which may be borrowed prior to December 31, 2007, (iii) modifying
the definition of a Material Adverse Effect, (iv) waiving compliance with certain representations and financial
covenants, (v) establishing minimum operating cash flow requirements, (vi) requiring compliance with weekly
budgets, (vii) inclusion of a five week operating cash flow covenant at the end of November, (viii) requiring the
payment of certain fees, and (ix) reducing the Lenders commitments by $50,000,000.

On October 25, 2007, the First Lien Term Loan Credit Agreement was also amended by Amendment No. 1 to the
First Lien Term Loan Credit Agreement to amend certain terms including (i) the pricing of loans, (ii) the definition of

Material Adverse Effect, and (iii) waiving compliance with certain financial covenants.
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While the amendments provide us with temporary relief from certain credit agreement covenants, we face many
challenges including, among other things, our current level of indebtedness, which challenge has become much further
intensified based on market conditions that have become materially worse for all homebuilders since late July 2007. In
connection therewith, and as noted above, we are pursuing a number of initiatives including asset sales, the wind
down of divisions, abandoning our rights under option contracts that no longer provide acceptable returns based on
changing conditions, further reductions in selling, general and administrative expenses and are considering all
available in and out of court restructuring and reorganization alternatives (including a potential Chapter 11 filing) and
processes including, among other things, restructuring our capital structure including attempting to exchange some or
all of our outstanding indebtedness for equity. We may not be successful in achieving these alternatives and the
alternatives, if achieved, may not be successful.

We have been notified by the New York Stock Exchange that our stock is below the minimum average trading
price required for continued listing. We may receive additional notices of non-compliance with certain other standards
including market capitalization shortly. If our shares are delisted from the NYSE, this will constitute a change of
control under our credit agreements, which is an event of default. The lenders may terminate our right to borrow and
declare the loans to be due and payable.

In addition, our indentures also limit our ability to incur new indebtedness. Any new borrowings (other than certain
refinancing indebtedness) are limited to $415.7 million. We may be unable to meet the conditions necessary for us to
be able to incur such additional indebtedness.

The interest rates on the Facilities and the Revolving Loan Facility are based on LIBOR plus a margin or an
alternate base rate plus a margin, at our option. For the Revolving Loan Facility, the LIBOR rates are increased by
between 2.50% and 5.25% depending on our leverage ratio (as defined in the Agreement) and credit ratings. Loans
bearing interest at the base rate (the rate announced by Citibank as its base rate or 0.50% above the Federal Funds
Rate) increase between 1.00% and 4.25% in accordance with the same criteria. Based on our current leverage ratio
and credit ratings, our LIBOR loans bear interest at LIBOR plus 5.25% and our base rate loans bear interest at the
Federal Funds Rate plus 4.25%. For the First Lien Term Loan Facility, the interest rate is LIBOR plus 5.00% or base
rate plus 4.00%. For the Second Lien Term Loan Facility, the interest rate is LIBOR plus 7.25% or base rate plus
6.25%. The Second Lien Term Loan Facility allows us to pay interest, at our option, (i) in cash, (ii) entirely by
increasing the principal amount of the Second Lien Term Loan Facility, or (iii) a combination thereof. The Facilities
and the New Revolving Loan Facility are guaranteed by substantially all of our domestic subsidiaries (the

Guarantors ). The obligations are secured by substantially all of our assets, including those of our Guarantors. Our
mortgage and title subsidiaries are not Guarantors. The loans under the Facilities may be prepaid at certain times (the
Second Lien Term Loan Facility may not be prepaid prior to its first anniversary), subject to certain premiums upon
repayment. The Facilities and the Revolving Loan Facility impose certain limitations on us, including with respect to:
(1) dividends on, redemptions and repurchases of, equity interests; (ii) prepayments of junior indebtedness,
redemptions and repurchases of debt; (iii) the incurrence of liens and sale-leaseback transactions; (iv) loans and
investments including joint ventures; and (v) incurrence of debt. The Facilities and Revolving Loan Facility also
contain events of default and have financial covenants, including but not limited to the following covenants:

(1) minimum adjusted consolidated tangible net worth; (ii) maximum ratio of debt to adjusted consolidated tangible
net worth; (iii) minimum ratio of EBITDA to interest capitalized; (iv) maximum ratio of units owned to units closed;
(v) maximum ratio of land to adjusted consolidated tangible net worth; and (vi) maximum ratio of unsold units to units
closed. As noted above, on October 25, 2007, the Revolving Loan Facility and the First Lien Term Loan Facility were
amended to waive the financial covenants through December 31, 2007. The Revolving Loan Facility is subject to a
borrowing base, which includes a reserve for amounts outstanding under the Facilities. The Second Lien Term Loan
Facility contains a limitation on amounts outstanding under the Revolving Loan Facility and the Facilities based on a
percentage of inventory.

Interest on the PIK Notes is payable semi-annually. The Notes are unsecured senior subordinated obligations of
ours, and are guaranteed on an unsecured senior subordinated basis by each of our existing and future subsidiaries that
guarantee our 7.5% Senior Subordinated Notes due 2015 (the Existing Notes ). We are required to pay 1% of the
interest in cash and the remaining 13.75%, at our option, (i) in cash, (ii) entirely by increasing the principal amount of
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the Notes or issuing new notes, or (iii) a combination thereof. The Notes will mature on July 1, 2015. The indenture
governing the Notes contains the same covenants as contained in the indenture governing the Existing Notes and is
subject, in most cases, to any change to such covenants made to the indenture governing the Existing Notes. The
Notes are redeemable by us at redemption prices greater than their principal amount.

As of September 30, 2007, we had $150.3 million outstanding under the Revolving Loan Facility, had issued
letters of credit totaling $213.9 million and had $130.0 million in availability, all of which we could have borrowed
without violating any of our debt covenants considering the amendment to these covenants made October 25, 2007. In
order to fund our future operations we may have to draw additional amounts under our Revolving Loan Facility. Such
amounts may not be available to us if we are unable to satisfy our covenants and may be further restricted based on
the fact that our October 25, 2007 amendments extend only to December 31, 2007. Therefore, if we are not able to
successfully renegotiate new acceptable terms or refinance our current borrowings, we will be in default.
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On April 12, 2006, we issued $250.0 million of 8-1/4% senior notes due 2011. In connection with the issuance of
the 8-1/4% senior notes, we filed within 90 days of the issuance a registration statement with the SEC covering a
registered offer to exchange the notes for exchange notes of ours having terms substantially identical in all material
respects to the notes (except that the exchange notes will not contain terms with respect to special interest or transfer
restrictions). The registration statement has not been declared effective within the required 180 days of issuance and,
as a result, on October 9, 2006 in accordance with the terms of the notes became subject to special interest which
accrues at a rate of 0.25% per annum during the 90-day period immediately following the occurrence of such default,
and shall increase by 0.25% per annum at the end of each 90-day period, up to a maximum of 1.0% per annum. For
the nine months ended September 30, 2007, we incurred an additional $1.8 million of additional interest expense as a
result of such default.

Our outstanding senior notes are guaranteed, on a joint and several basis, by the Guarantor Subsidiaries, which are
all of our material domestic subsidiaries, other than our mortgage and title subsidiaries (the Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries). Our outstanding senior subordinated notes are guaranteed on a senior subordinated basis by all of the
Guarantor Subsidiaries. The senior notes rank pari passu in right of payment with all of our existing and future
unsecured senior debt and senior in right of payment to our senior subordinated notes and any future subordinated
debt. The senior subordinated notes rank pari passu in right of payment with all of our existing and future unsecured
senior subordinated debt. The indentures governing the senior notes and senior subordinated notes generally require us
to maintain a minimum consolidated net worth and place certain restrictions on our ability, among other things, to
incur additional debt, pay or declare dividends or other restricted payments, sell assets, enter into transactions with
affiliates, invest in joint ventures above specified amounts, and merge or consolidate with other entities. Interest on
our outstanding senior notes and senior subordinated notes is payable semi-annually.

Our financial leverage, as measured by the ratio of Homebuilding net debt to capital, increased to 97.2% at
September 30, 2007 from 56.7% at December 31, 2006, due to the loss for the nine months ended September 30, 2007
and an increase in our Homebuilding borrowings. Our stated goal has been to maintain our net debt to capital within a
range of 45% to 55% and, as of September 30, 2007, we are outside of this range. In connection with the Transeastern
JV settlement, we have capitalized additional debt, and therefore further exceed our stated net debt to capital range.
For these reasons, as well as continued challenging market conditions, pursuing asset sales and are considering all
available restructuring and reorganization alternatives and processes including, among other things, restructuring our
capital structure including attempting to exchange some or all of our outstanding indebtedness for equity. We may not
be successful in achieving these alternatives and the alternatives, if achieved, may not be successful.

Our homebuilding net debt to capital is calculated as follows (dollars in millions):

September December
30, 31,
2007 2006

Notes payable $ 1,574.1 $ 1,060.7
Bank borrowings 150.3
Homebuilding borrowings* 1,724.4 1,060.7
Less: unrestricted cash 73.6 474
Homebuilding net debt 1,650.8 1,013.3
Stockholders equity 48.3 774.9
Total capital** $ 1,699.1 $ 11,7882
Ratio 97.2% 56.7%
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credit facility.

**  Does not
include
Financial
Services bank
borrowings of
$22.4 million at
September 30,
2007 and
$35.4 million at
December 31,
2006.

Homebuilding net debt to capital is not a financial measure required by generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) and other companies may calculate it differently. We have included this information as we believe that the
ratio of Homebuilding net debt
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to capital provides comparability among other publicly-traded homebuilders. In addition, management uses this
information in measuring the financial leverage of our homebuilding operations, which is our primary business.
Homebuilding net debt to capital has limitations as a measure of financial leverage because it excludes Financial
Services bank borrowings and it reduces our Homebuilding debt by the amount of our unrestricted cash. Management
compensates for these limitations by using Homebuilding net debt to capital as only one of several comparative tools,
together with GAAP measurements, to assist in the evaluation of our financial leverage. It should not be construed as
an indication of our operating performance or as a measure of our liquidity.

Our mortgage subsidiary has two warehouse lines of credit in place to fund the origination of residential mortgage
loans. The primary revolving warehouse line of credit (the Primary Warehouse Line of Credit ), which was amended
on December 9, 2006, provides for revolving loans of up to $100.0 million. The Primary Warehouse Line of Credit, as
amended, expires on December 8, 2007. The Primary Warehouse Line of Credit, as amended, bears interest at the
30 day LIBOR rate plus a margin of 1.0% to 3.0%, except for certain specialty mortgage loans, determined based
upon the type of mortgage loans being financed. The Primary Warehouse Line of Credit, as amended, also places
certain restrictions on, among other things, our mortgage subsidiary s ability to incur additional debt, create liens, pay
or declare dividends or other restricted payments, make equity investments, enter into transactions with affiliates, and
merge or consolidate with other entities.

On August 7, 2007, we amended our mortgage subsidiary s other $50.0 million warehouse line of credit to reduce
the size of the facility to $35.0 million (the Secondary Warehouse Line of Credit ). The Secondary Warehouse Line of
Credit is comprised of (1) a credit facility providing for revolving loans of up to $20.0 million, subject to meeting
borrowing base requirements based on the value of collateral provided, and (2) a mortgage loan purchase and sale
agreement which provides for the purchase by the lender of up to $15.0 million in mortgage loans generated by our
mortgage subsidiary. On September 18, 2007 the purchase and sale agreement was expanded from $15.0 million to
$30.0 million. At no time may the amount outstanding under this Secondary Warehouse Line of Credit, plus the
amount of purchased loans pursuant to the purchase and sale agreement exceed $50.0 million. The Secondary
Warehouse Line of Credit bears interest at the 30 day LIBOR rate plus a margin of 1.125%. The Secondary
Warehouse Line of Credit expires on August 8, 2008.

As a result of the Company breaching certain covenants in its Second Amended and Restated Revolving Credit
Agreement and First Lien Term Loan Credit Agreement as of September 30, 2007, an event of default occurred under
the $20.0 million credit facility within the Secondary Warehouse Line of Credit. Under an amendment dated
October 25, 2007 granting waiver of default, the lender has no obligation to make any loans through the waiver period
which ends December 31, 2007.

Both lines of credit are secured by funded mortgages, which are pledged as collateral, and require our mortgage
subsidiary to maintain certain financial ratios and minimums. At September 30, 2007, we had $13.1 million in
borrowings under our Primary Warehouse Line of Credit, with the capacity to borrow an additional $86.9 million,
subject to satisfying the relevant borrowing conditions. At September 30, 2007, we had $9.3 million in borrowings
under our Secondary Warehouse Line of Credit. In accordance with the waiver obtained, we currently have no
borrowings outstanding under the Secondary Warehouse Line of Credit.

At September 30, 2007, the amount of our annual debt service payments was $171.5 million. This amount included
annual debt service payments on the senior and senior subordinated notes of $91.2 million, interest payments on the
revolving credit facility of $15.2 million, on the First Lien Term Loan Facility of $19.1 million, on the Second Lien
Term Loan Facility of $41.6 million and on the Senior Subordinated PIK Notes of $3.0 million, and on the warehouse
lines of credit of $1.4 million, based on the balances outstanding as of September 30, 2007. The amount of our annual
debt service payments on warehouse lines of credit fluctuates based on the principal outstanding under the facility and
the interest rate. An increase or decrease of 1% in interest rates will change our annual debt service payment by
$6.8 million per year.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Land and Homesite Option Contracts

In the ordinary course of business, we enter into option contracts to purchase homesites and land held for
development. At September 30, 2007 we had refundable and non-refundable cash deposits aggregating $82.0 million.
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Under these option contracts, we have the right to buy homesites at predetermined prices on a predetermined
takedown schedule anticipated to be commensurate with home starts. Option contracts generally require the payment
of a cash deposit or the posting of a letter of credit, which is typically less than 20% of the underlying purchase price,
and may require monthly maintenance payments. These option contracts are either with land sellers or third party
financial entities who have acquired the land to enter into the option contract with us. Homesite option contracts are
generally non-recourse, thereby limiting our financial exposure for non-performance to our cash deposits and/or letters
of credit. In certain instances, we have entered into development agreements in connection with option contracts
which require us to complete the development of the land, at a fixed reimbursable amount, even if we choose not to
exercise our option and forfeit our deposit and even if our costs exceed the reimbursable amount. As of September 30,
2007, we have abandoned our rights under option contracts that require us to complete the development of land for a
fixed reimbursable amount. At September 30, 2007, we recorded a
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loss accrual of $22.7 million, in connection with the abandonment of these option contracts, for our obligations under
the development agreements, based on our estimate of the excess of costs to complete the development of the land
over the fixed reimbursable amounts.

In addition, certain of these option contracts give the other party the right to require us to purchase homesites or
guarantee certain minimum returns. As of September 30, 2007, we have abandoned our rights under option contracts
that give the other party the right to require us to purchase the homesites. On some of these option contracts, we have
received notices in which the other party is exercising their right to require us to purchase the homesites under this
provision of the option contracts. We do not have the ability to comply with these notices due to liquidity constraints.
These option contracts were previously consolidated and the inventory was included in inventory not owned and the
corresponding liability was included in obligations for inventory not owned. As we do not have the intent or the
ability to comply with the requirement to purchase the property, we have deconsolidated these option contracts at
September 30, 2007. Capitalized pre-acquisition costs associated with these option contracts are impaired and
$33.3 million was written off during the three months ended September 30, 2007. In addition, at September 30, 2007,
we recorded a loss accrual of $12.6 million, including $19.3 million for letters of credit which we anticipated would
be drawn due to nonperformance under such contracts, in connection with the abandonment of these option contracts,
for our obligations under these option contracts, based on our estimate of the deficiency of the fair value of the
underlying inventory evaluated as available for sale under SFAS No.144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal
of Long-Lived Assets ( SFAS 144 ) compared to our required purchase price under the option contract. As of
September 30, 2007, the total required purchase price under these option contracts was $52.3 million.

We are subject to the normal obligations associated with entering into contracts for the purchase, development and
sale of real estate in the routine conduct of our business. Additionally, at September 30, 2007, we had letters of credit
outstanding of approximately $67.2 million primarily related to land development activities. We are committed under
various letters of credit and performance bonds which are required for certain development activities, deposits on land
and deposits on homesite purchase contracts. Under these arrangements, we had total outstanding letters of credit of
$213.9 million. As a result of abandoning our rights under option contracts, as of September 30, 2007, we accrued
$99.7 million for letters of credits which we anticipated would be drawn due to nonperformance under such contracts.
Of this amount, $91.2 million of letters of credit have been drawn and have increased our borrowings outstanding
under our Revolving Loan Facility. We have entered into development contracts associated with our option contracts
(which development contracts include obligations of ours to develop property even if we abandon the option contract).
As of September 30, 2007 we recorded a $22.7 million loss accrual with respect thereto. See note 3 to our financial
statements included herein.

At September 30, 2007, we have total outstanding performance / surety bonds of $233.5 million related to land
development activities and have estimated our exposure on our outstanding surety bonds to be $151.5 million based
on land development remaining to be completed. We have been experiencing a reduction in availability of security
bond capacity. In addition to increasing cost of surety bond premiums there have been, and may continue to be, some
cases where we have to obtain a letter of credit or provide other collateral to secure necessary surety bonds. If we are
unable to secure such bonds, may elect to post alternative forms of collateral with government entities or escrow
agents.

Investments in Unconsolidated Joint Ventures

We have entered into joint ventures that acquire and develop land for our Homebuilding operations and/or that also
build and market homes for sale to third parties. In the future, we intend to limit the number of homebuilding joint
ventures into which we enter. Through joint ventures, we reduce and share our risk associated with land ownership
and development and extend our capital resources. Our partners in these joint ventures generally are unrelated
homebuilders, land sellers, financial investors or other real estate entities. In joint ventures where the assets are being
financed with debt, the borrowings are non-recourse to us except that we have agreed to complete certain property
development commitments in the event the joint ventures default and to indemnify the lenders for losses resulting
from fraud, misappropriation and similar acts. Our obligations become full recourse in the event of voluntary
bankruptcy of the joint venture. At September 30, 2007, we had investments in unconsolidated joint ventures of
$80.9 million. We account for these investments under the equity method of accounting. These unconsolidated joint
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ventures are limited liability companies or limited partnerships in which we have a limited partnership interest and a
minority interest in the general partner. At September 30, 2007, we had receivables of $42.2 million from these joint
ventures due to loans and advances, unpaid management fees and other items. The debt covenants under our new
revolving credit facility contain limitations on the amount of our direct cash investments in joint ventures.

We believe that the use of off-balance sheet arrangements enables us to acquire rights in land which we may not
have otherwise been able to acquire at favorable terms. As a result, we view the use of off-balance sheet arrangements
as beneficial to our Homebuilding activities.

Engle/Sunbelt Joint Venture

In December 2004, we entered into a joint venture agreement with Suntous Investors, LLC ( Suntous ) to form
Engle/Sunbelt Holdings, LLC ( Engle/Sunbelt ). Engle/Sunbelt was formed to develop finished homesites and deliver
homes in the Phoenix, Arizona market, and upon its inception, the partnership acquired eight of our existing
communities in Phoenix, Arizona. The borrowings by Engle/Sunbelt are non-recourse to us; however, through our
subsidiary Engle Homes Residential, LLC, we have agreed
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to complete any property development commitments in the event Engle/Sunbelt defaults. Additionally, we agreed to
indemnify the lenders for potential losses resulting from fraud, misappropriation and similar acts by Engle/Sunbelt.

Engle/Sunbelt is unable to borrow under its credit facilities due to certain events with respect to us which are
treated as a material adverse change. The joint venture is currently engaged in negotiations with its lenders to obtain a
waiver. As a result, we are likely to fund critical cash needs to the extent permitted under our credit agreements, and
anticipate being repaid when the joint venture is again able to borrow.

TOUSA / Kolter Joint Venture

In January 2005, we entered into a joint venture with Kolter Real Estate Group LLC to form TOUSA/Kolter
Holdings, LLC ( TOUSA/Kolter ) for the purpose of acquiring, developing and selling approximately 1,900 homesites
and commercial property in a master planned community in South Florida. The joint venture obtained senior and
senior subordinated term loans (the term loans ) of which $47.0 million and $7.0 million, respectively, were
outstanding as of September 30, 2007. We entered into a Performance and Completion Agreement in favor of the
lenders under which we agreed, among other things, to construct and complete the horizontal development of the lots
and commercial property and related infrastructure in accordance with certain agreed plans. The term loans required,
among other things, TOUSA/Kolter to have completed the development of certain lots by January 7, 2007. Due to
unforeseen and unanticipated delays in the entitlement process and additional development requests by the county and
water management district, TOUSA/Kolter was unable to complete the development of these certain lots by the
required deadline. On June 21, 2007, and in response to missing the development deadline, TOUSA/Kolter amended
the existing term loan agreements and we amended the Performance and Completion Agreement which remedied the
situation by extending the Performance and Completion Agreement development deadline to May 31, 2008. The
amendment to the term loan agreements increased the interest rate on the senior term loan by 100 basis points to
LIBOR plus 3.25% and by 50 basis points to LIBOR plus 8.5% for the senior subordinated term loan. As a condition
to the amendment, we have agreed to be responsible for the additional 150 basis points; accordingly, this will be paid
by us and will be a cost of the lots we acquire from TOUSA/Kolter. The amendment also required us to increase the
existing letter of credit by an additional $1.8 million for a total letter of credit deposit of $12.1 million and place an
additional $3.0 million cash deposit on the remaining lots under option which was used by TOUSA/Kolter to pay
down a portion of the senior term loan.

We evaluated the recoverability of our investment in and receivables from TOUSA/Kolter at September 30, 2007
for impairment under APB 18, and recorded an impairment of $16.9 million, which was offset by a deferred gain of
$12.8 million, resulting in a net charge to earnings of $4.1 million.

Centex/ TOUSA at Wellington, LLC

In December 2005, we entered into a joint venture with Centex Corporation to form Centex/TOUSA at Wellington,
LLC ( Centex/TOUSA at Wellington ) for the purpose of acquiring, developing and selling approximately 264
homesites in a community in South Florida. The joint venture obtained a term loan of which $30.1 million was
outstanding as of September 30, 2007. The credit agreement requires the joint venture to construct and complete the
horizontal development of the lots and related infrastructure in accordance with certain agreed plans. On August 31,
2007, Centex/TOUSA at Wellington received a notice requiring the joint venture partners to contribute approximately
$10.0 million to the joint venture to paydown the term loan in order to be in compliance with the 60% loan to value
ratio covenant. Neither us nor our joint venture partner have made the required equity contribution; however,
discussions with the lenders, joint venture partners and potential buyers are ongoing.

We evaluated the recoverability of our investment in and receivables from Centex/TOUSA at Wellington, LL.C at
September 30, 2007 for impairment under APB 18, and recorded an impairment of $11.6 million based on our current
negotiations with our joint venture partner, lenders and potential third party buyers that would allow us to assign our
equity ownership in return for a release of all of our obligations. Additionally, as part of the negotiations, we have
agreed to relinquish title to certain homesites previously acquired in the amount of $14.7 million. Accordingly, we
have recorded an impairment of such amount at September 30, 2007 that is included in inventory impairments and
abandonment costs in the accompanying statement of operations for the three and nine months ended September 30,
2007.

Layton Lakes Joint Venture
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In connection with our joint venture with Lennar corporation to develop, construct and sell single family homes,
townhome properties and commercial property in Arizona, we entered into a Completion and Limited Indemnity
Agreement for the benefit of the lender to the joint venture. The agreement required us to maintain a tangible net
worth of $400.0 million. As a result of the decrease in our tangible net worth, this covenant has been breached and the
outstanding $60.0 million loan to the joint venture is in default. If the default is not cured within thirty days of notice,
the lender, in its discretion, may accelerate the loan, foreclose on its liens, and exercise all other contractual remedies,
including our completion guaranty. In addition, the operating agreement of the joint venture states that a breach by a
member of any covenant of such member contained in any loan agreement entered into in connection with the
financing of the property is an event of default. Under the operating agreement, a defaulting member does not have the
right to vote or otherwise participate in the management of the joint venture until the default is cured. A defaulting
member can not take down any lots from the joint venture. At September 30, 2007, our investment in the Layton
Lakes joint venture is $23.5 million.

Transeastern JV

We acquired our 50% interest in the Transeastern JV on August 1, 2005, when the Transeastern JV acquired
substantially all of the homebuilding assets and operations of Transeastern Properties including work in process,
finished lots and certain land option rights. The Transeastern JV paid approximately $826.2 million for these assets
and operations (which included the assumption of $127.1 million of liabilities and certain transaction costs, net of
$30.1 million of cash). The other member of the joint venture was an entity controlled by the former majority owners
of Transeastern Properties, Inc. We continued to function as the managing member of the Transeastern JV through our
wholly-owned subsidiary, TOUSA Homes L.P.
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When the Transeastern JV was initially formed, it had more than 3,000 homes in backlog and projected 2006
deliveries of approximately 3,500 homes. While management of the Transeastern JV began to curtail sales in its
communities at the end of 2005, these actions were taken not in anticipation of a declining home sales market but
rather in an attempt to address the Transeastern JV s backlog until there was a balance among sales, construction and
deliveries. Both our management and the management of the Transeastern JV anticipated increased sales by the close
of the summer of 2006.

After experiencing several months of continuous declines in deliveries as compared to forecasted amounts due to
higher than expected cancellations and lower than expected gross sales, in early September 2006, management of the
Transeastern JV finalized and distributed to its members six-year financial projections based on the build-out and sale
of its current controlled land positions. These revised projections from the Transeastern JV indicated that the joint
venture would report a loss in the fourth quarter and would not have the liquidity to meet its debt obligations under the
capital structure that was in place at that time. As a result of these and other factors, in September 2006, we evaluated
the recoverability of our investment in the joint venture under Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 18, The
Equity Method of Accounting for Investments in Common Stock ( APB 18 ), and determined our investment to be fully
impaired. As of September 30, 2006, we wrote off $143.6 million related to our investment in the Transeastern JV,
which included $35.0 million of our member loans receivable and $16.2 million of receivables for management fees,
advances and interest due to us from the joint venture.

On October 31, 2006 and November 1, 2006, we received demand letters from the administrative agent for the
lenders to the Transeastern JV demanding payment under certain guarantees. The demand letters allege that potential
defaults and events of default had occurred under the credit agreements and that such potential defaults or events of
default had triggered our obligations under the guarantees. The lenders claimed that our guarantee obligations equaled
or exceeded all of the outstanding obligations under each of the credit agreements and that we were liable for default
interest, costs and expenses.

On July 31, 2007, we consummated transactions to settle the disputes regarding the Transeastern Joint Venture (the

Transeastern JV ) with the lenders to the Transeastern JV, its land bankers and our joint venture partner in the
Transeastern JV. Pursuant to the settlement, among other things, (i) the Transeastern JV became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of ours and by merger into one of the our subsidiaries became a guarantor on our credit facilities and note
indentures, (ii) the senior secured lenders of the Transeastern JV were repaid in full, including accrued interest, and
(iii) the junior and senior mezzanine lenders received securities of the Company in satisfaction of the obligations of
the Transeastern JV. In connection with the settlement, we entered into Settlement and Release Agreements with the
senior mezzanine lenders (the Senior Mezzanine Lenders ) and the junior mezzanine lenders (the Junior Mezzanine
Lenders ) to the Transeastern JV (collectively, the Mezz Settlement Agreements ) which released us from our potential
obligations to them. The TE Acquisition is being accounted for using the purchase method of accounting.

In accordance with SFAS No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies ( SFAS 5 ) and other authoritative guidance, through
June 30, 2007 we accrued $385.9 million for settlement of loss contingency (determined by computing the difference
between the estimated fair market value of the consideration paid in connection with the global settlement less the
estimated fair market value of the business we acquired) of which, $275.0 million was accrued at December 31, 2006
and $110.9 million was accrued during the six months ended June 30, 2007 based on the final settlement terms.

During the three months ended September 30, 2007 we recorded an additional $40.7 million upon completion of the
purchase price allocation based on the estimated fair market of the consideration paid and the net assets acquired. For
the three and nine months ended September 30, 2007, the provision for settlement of loss contingency of $40.7 million
and $151.6 million is presented as a separate line item in our consolidated statements of operations. The accrual of
$275.0 million is included in accounts payable and other liabilities in our consolidated statement of financial condition
as of December 31, 2006.

In connection with the acquisition of the Transeastern JV, on June 29, 2007, we entered into the Mezz Settlement
Agreements which released us from our potential obligations to the Transeastern JV s mezzanine lenders. Pursuant to
the Mezz Settlement Agreements, we issued to the Senior Mezzanine Lenders the following securities: (i)
$20.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 14.75% Senior Subordinated PIK Election Notes due 2015 (the Notes );
and (ii) $117.5 million in initial aggregate liquidation preference of 8% Series A Convertible Preferred PIK Preferred
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Stock (the Preferred Stock ). We issued to the Junior Mezzanine Lenders, warrants to purchase shares of our common
stock (the Common Stock ). The warrants had an estimated fair value of $16.3 million at issuance (based on the
Black-Scholes option pricing model and certain agreed upon inputs).

Pursuant to the previously announced settlement and mutual release agreement with Falcone/Ritchie LLC and
certain of its affiliates (the Falcone Entities ) concerning the Transeastern JV, one of which owned 50% of the equity
interests in the Transeastern JV, we became the sole owner of the Transeastern JV and have, among other things,
released the Falcone Entities from claims under the asset purchase agreement pursuant to which we acquired our
interest in the Transeastern JV. The Transeastern JV and we remain obligated on certain indemnification obligations,
including, without limitation, related to certain land bank arrangements. At closing, we agreed to purchase
$50.2 million in inventory that was controlled by the Transeastern JV through existing land bank arrangements with
an affiliate of our former JV partner.
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To effect the TE Acquisition, on July 31, 2007, we entered into a (i) new $200.0 million aggregate principal
amount first lien term loan facility (the First Lien Term Loan Facility ) and (ii) a new $300.0 million aggregate
principal amount second lien term loan facility (the Second Lien Term Loan Facility ), (First and Second Lien Term
Loan Facilities taken together, the Facilities ) with Citicorp North America, Inc. as Administrative Agent, Sole Lead
Arranger and Book Running Manager. The proceeds from the credit facilities were used to satisfy claims of the senior
lenders against the Transeastern JV, and to pay related expenses. Our existing $800.0 million revolving loan facility
(the Revolving Loan Facility ) was amended and restated to (i) reduce the revolving commitments thereunder by
$100.0 million and (ii) permit the incurrence of the Facilities (and make other conforming changes relating to the
Facilities). Collectively, these transactions are referred to as the Financing. Net proceeds from the Financing at closing
were $470.6 million which is net of a 1% discount and transaction costs.

DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended,
including in the material set forth in the sections entitled Business and Management s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations. These statements concern expectations, beliefs, projections, future
plans and strategies, anticipated events or trends and similar expressions concerning matters that are not historical
facts, and typically include the words anticipate , believe , expect , estimate , project ,and future. Specifically, tl
report contains forward-looking statements including with respect to:

our expectations regarding population growth and median income growth trends and their impact
on future housing demand in our markets;

our expectation regarding the impact of geographic and customer diversification;

our expectations regarding our successful implementation of our asset management strategy and its
impact on our business;

our expectations regarding future land sales;
our belief regarding growth opportunities within our financial services business;

our estimate that we have adequate financial resources to meet our current and anticipated working
capital, including our debt service payments, and land acquisition and development needs;

the impact of inflation on our future results of operations;
our expectations regarding our ability to pass through to our customers any increases in our costs;
our expectations regarding our option contracts, investments in land development joint ventures;
our expectations regarding the housing market in 2007 and beyond; and
our expectations regarding our use of cash in operations;
our expectations of receiving federal and state income tax refunds; and
We do not undertake any obligation to update any forward-looking statements.
These forward-looking statements reflect our current views about future events and are subject to risks,
uncertainties and assumptions. As a result, actual results may differ significantly from those expressed in any

forward-looking statement. The most important factors that could prevent us from achieving our goals, and cause the
assumptions underlying forward-looking statements and the actual results to differ materially from those expressed in
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or implied by those forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, the following:
our ability to exchange some or all of our outstanding indebtedness for equity;

our belief that our ability to continue as a going concern will depend upon our ability to restructure our capital
structure

our belief that failure to restructure our capital structure would result in depleting our available funds and not
being able to pay our obligations when they become due;

our significant level of debt and the impact of the restrictions imposed on us by the terms of this debt;
our ability to borrow or otherwise finance our business in the future;
our ability to identify and acquire, at anticipated prices, additional homebuilding opportunities and/or to effect

our growth strategies in our homebuilding operations and financial services business;
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our relationship with Technical Olympic S.A. and its control over our business activities;
economic or other business conditions that affect the desire or ability of our customers to purchase new homes
in markets in which we conduct our business, such as increases in interest rates, inflation, or unemployment

rates or declines in median income growth, consumer confidence or the demand for, or the price of, housing;

events which would impede our ability to open new communities and/or deliver homes within anticipated time
frames and/or within anticipated budgets;

our ability to successfully enter into, utilize, and recognize the anticipated benefits of, joint ventures and option
contracts;

a decline in the value of the land and home inventories we maintain;
an increase in the cost of, or shortages in the availability of, qualified labor and materials;

our ability to successfully dispose of developed properties or undeveloped land or homesites at expected prices
and within anticipated time frames;

our ability to compete in our existing and future markets;

the impact of hurricanes, tornadoes or other natural disasters or weather conditions on our business, including
the potential for shortages and increased costs of materials and qualified labor and the potential for delays in
construction and obtaining government approvals;

an increase or change in government regulations, or in the interpretation and/or enforcement of existing
government regulations;

the impact of any or all of the above risks on the operations or financial results of our unconsolidated joint
ventures;

a change in ownership of our stock, as defined in Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code, which would limit
our ability to receive anticipated income tax refunds; and

the restructuring of our indebtedness either pursuant to an out-of-court transaction on through a Chapter 11
proceeding.
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

As a result of our senior and senior subordinated notes offerings, as of September 30, 2007, $1.1 billion of our
outstanding borrowings are based on fixed interest rates. We are exposed to market risk primarily related to potential
adverse changes in interest rates on our warehouse lines of credit and our revolving credit facility. The interest rates
relative to these borrowings fluctuate with the prime, Federal Funds, LIBOR, and Eurodollar lending rates. We have
not entered into derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes. As of September 30, 2007, we
had an aggregate of approximately $679.0 million drawn under our revolving credit facility, term loans and warehouse
lines of credit that are subject to changes in interest rates. An increase or decrease of 1% in interest rates will change
our annual debt service payments by $6.8 million per year as a result of our bank loan arrangements that are subject to
changes in interest rates.

On July 31, 2007, as part of the global settlement related to the Transeastern JV, we entered into (i) a new
$200.0 million aggregate principal amount first lien term loan facility which expires on July 31, 2012 and (ii) a new
$300.0 million aggregate principal amount second lien term loan facility which expires on July 31, 2013. The interest
rates relative to these borrowings fluctuate with the LIBOR or Federal Funds lending rate.

Our operations are interest rate sensitive as overall housing demand is adversely affected by increases in interest
rates. If mortgage interest rates increase significantly, this may negatively affect the ability of homebuyers to secure
adequate financing. Higher interest rates also increase our borrowing costs because, as indicated above, our bank loans
will fluctuate with the prime, Federal Funds, LIBOR, and Eurodollar lending rates.

The following table presents the future principal payment obligations and weighted average interest rates
associated with our long-term debt instruments assuming our actual level of long-term debt indebtedness as of
September 30, 2007:

Expected Maturity Date
(in millions)
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Thereafter Fair Value
Liabilities
Long-term debt
Fixed rate (71/2%) $125.0 $ 200.0 $ 774
Fixed rate (81/4%) $250.0 $ 150.0
Fixed rate (9.0%) $300.0 $ 184.5
Fixed rate (103/8%) $ 185.0 $ 555
Fixed rate, Senior Subordinated
PIK Note (143/4%) $ 205 $ 116

Variable rate, First Lien Term

Loan Facility (9.6% at

September 30, 2007) $ 199.5 $ 199.5
Variable rate, Second Lien

Term Loan Facility (13.6% at

September 30, 2007) $ 306.8 $ 306.8
Variable rate, credit facility
(10.1% at September 30, 2007) $ 150.3 $ 1503

Variable rate, warehouse lines
of credit (6.3% at September 30,
2007) $ 224 $ 224
Our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006 contains further information regarding
our market risk.
ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
To ensure that the information we must disclose in our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission is
recorded, processed, summarized, and reported on a timely basis, we have formulized our disclosure controls and
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procedures. Our principal executive officer and principal financial officer have reviewed and evaluated the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e), as
of September 30, 2007. Based on such evaluation, such officers have concluded that, as of September 30, 2007, our
disclosure controls and procedures were effective. There has been no change in our internal control over financial
reporting during the quarter ended September 30, 2007 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Deutsche Bank Trust Co. Americas v. Technical Olympic USA, Inc. and TOUSA Homes L.P., Supreme Court of the
State of New York, County of New York, No. 06/604118.

Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. v. Technical Olympic USA, Inc., EH/Transeastern, LLC, and TE/TOUSA Senior,
LLC, Supreme Court of the State of New York, County of New York, No. 600974/07.

These cases were voluntarily dismissed with prejudice on August 2, 2007.
Class Action Lawsuit

Durgin, et al., v. TOUSA, Inc., et al., USDC for the Southern District of Florida, No. 06-61844-CIV. Beginning in
December 2006, various stockholder plaintiffs brought lawsuits seeking class action status in the U.S. District Court
for the Southern District of Florida. At a hearing held March 29, 2007, the Court consolidated the actions and heard
arguments on the appointment of lead plaintiff and counsel. On September 7, 2007, the Court appointed
Diamondback Capital Management, L.L.C. as the lead plaintiff and approved Diamondback s selection of counsel.
Pursuant to a scheduling order, the lead plaintiff filed a Consolidated Complaint on November 2, 2007. The
Consolidated Complaint names TOUSA, all of TOUSA s directors, David Keller, Randy Kotler, Beatriz Koltis, Lonnie
Fedrick, Technical Olympic, S.A., UBS Securities LLC, Citigroup Global Markets Inc., Deutsche Bank Securities Inc.
and JMP Securities LLC as defendants. The alleged class period is August 1, 2005 to March 19, 2007. The plaintiffs
allege that TOUSA s public filings and other public statements that described the financing for the Transeastern Joint
Venture as non-recourse to TOUSA were false and misleading. Plaintiffs also allege that certain public filings and
statements were misleading or suffered from material omissions in failing to fully disclose or describe the Completion
and Carve-Out Guaranties that TOUSA executed in support of the Transeastern Joint Venture financing. Plaintiffs
assert claims under Section 11 of the Securities Act against all defendants other than Ms. Koltis for strict liability and
negligence regarding the registration statements and prospectus associated with the September 2005 offering of
4 million shares of stock. As explained above, plaintiffs contend that the registration statements and prospectus
contained material misrepresentations and suffered from material omissions in the description of the Transeastern
Joint Venture financing and TOUSA s related obligations. Plaintiffs assert related claims against Technical Olympic,
S.A. and Messrs. K. Stengos, Mon, Keller and McAden as controlling persons responsible for the statements in the
registration statements and prospectus. Plaintiffs also allege claims under Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act for
fraud with respect to various public statements about the non-recourse nature of the Transeastern debt and alleged
omissions in disclosing or describing the Guaranties. These claims are alleged against TOUSA, Messrs. Mon,
McAden, Keller and Kotler and Ms. Koltis. Finally, plaintiffs assert related claims against Messrs. Mon, Keller,
Kotler and McAden as controlling persons responsible for the various alleged false disclosures. Plaintiffs seek
compensatory damages, plus fees and costs, on behalf of themselves and the putative class of purchasers of TOUSA
common stock and purchasers and sellers of options on TOUSA common stock. TOUSA s response to the
Consolidated Complaint is due on January 2, 2008. No trial date has been set in these consolidated actions.
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Set forth below is a discussion of the material changes in our risk factors as previously disclosed in Item 1A of
Part 1 of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 ( 2006 Form 10-K ).
The information presented below updates, and should be read in conjunction with, the risk factors and other
information disclosed in our 2006 Form 10-K.
Our ability to continue as a going concern.

Our financial statements are presented on a going concern basis, which contemplates the realization of assets
and satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. We have $1.7 billion in borrowings and have
experienced significant losses for the year ended December 31, 2006 and the nine months ended September 30, 2007.
We continue to generate negative cash flows from operations. For the nine months ended September 30, 2007, we
incurred a net loss of $817.7 million and as of September 30, 2007, had stockholders equity of $48.3 million. Based
on the foregoing, we believe there is substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern. Our ability to
continue as a going concern will depend upon our ability to restructure our capital structure including exchanging a
large portion of our outstanding indebtedness for equity. We have asked our bondholders to organize as a group in
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order to discuss such restructuring and reorganization alternatives and we have commenced discussions with their
representatives, though these discussions are at a very early stage. In connection therewith, we are actively pursuing
asset sales and all available restructuring and reorganization alternatives and processes including, among other things,
restructuring our capital structure including attempting to exchange a large portion of our outstanding indebtedness for
equity.
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Failure to restructure our capital structure would result in depleting our available funds and not being able to
pay our obligations when they become due. No assurances can be made regarding our ability to satisfy our liquidity
and working capital requirements or our ability to restructure our capital structure. The accompanying consolidated
financial statements do not include any adjustments to reflect the possible future effects on the recoverability and
classification of assets.

Our substantial indebtedness has adversely affected our financial health.

We have a significant amount of indebtedness. In connection with the global settlement with respect to the
Transeastern JV, we incurred an additional $500.0 million of secured debt and another $20.0 million of unsecured
debt. Our substantial indebtedness will have important consequences to you. For example, it has:

increased our vulnerability to general adverse economic, industry and competitive conditions;

required us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to payments on our indebtedness,
thereby reducing the availability of our cash flow to fund working capital, capital expenditures, acquisition of
property and other general corporate purposes;

limited our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and the industry in which we
operate;

placed us at a competitive disadvantage compared to our competitors that have less debt; and

limited our ability to borrow additional funds.
If the price of our shares remains low or our financial condition further deteriorates, we may be delisted by the
New York Stock Exchange and our stockholders could find it difficult to sell our common stock.

Our common stock currently trades on the New York Stock Exchange, or NYSE. The NYSE requires
companies to fulfill specific requirements in order for their shares to continue to be listed.

Under an NYSE rule that became effective on March 5, 2007, the NYSE has halted trading our common stock
when trades were reported at a price of below $1.05. Trading will not be resumed on the NYSE until our common
stock has traded on another market for at least one entire trading day at a price at or above $1.10. While our common
stock has continued to trade on other markets pursuant to unlisted trading privileges, such unlisted trading may not
continue and may not reach $1.10 per share.

The NYSE has minimum continuing listing standards that it requires of its listed companies including
thresholds regarding stock price, market capitalization combined with minimum stockholders equity and total market
value. On November 12, 2007, we received notice from the NYSE that we were not in compliance with NYSE
continued listing requirements because the average closing share price of our common stock over a consecutive
30-trading day period was less than $1.00. The NYSE also noted that our absolute market value was, based on a
closing price of $0.35 on November 9, 2007, only $20.9 million and that it would immediately initiate suspension and
delisting procedures if the 30-trading day average was below $25.0 million. A third continued listing standard requires
a 30 average trading day market capitalization of not less than $75 million and stockholders equity of at least
$75 million. We are now below this standard and we anticipate being notified by the NYSE of such failure.

Finally we have been notified by the NYSE that delisting procedures may be instituted if out stock trades at an

abnormally low price.

We intend to take actions to re-attain compliance or request a review of the delisting decision by the NYSE. We
may not be successful with our efforts.

If our common stock is delisted from the NYSE, we may apply to have our shares quoted on NASDAQ s
Bulletin Board or in the pink sheets maintained by the National Quotations Bureau, Inc. The Bulletin Board and the
pink sheets are generally considered to be less efficient markets than the NYSE. In addition, if our shares are no
longer listed on the NYSE or another national securities exchange in the United States, our shares may be subject to
the penny stock regulations. If our common stock were to become subject to the penny stock regulations, it is likely
that the price of our common stock would decline and that our stockholders would find it difficult to sell their shares.
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If our stock is delisted from the NYSE, we will be in default under our credit agreements.
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We have been notified by the New York Stock Exchange that our stock is below the minimum average trading
price required for continued listing. We may receive additional notices of non-compliance with certain other standards
including market capitalization shortly. If our shares are delisted from the NYSE, this will constitute a change of
control under our credit agreements, which is an event of default. The lenders may terminate our right to borrow and
declare the loans to be due and payable.

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

Exhibit
Number Description
3.1 Amendment No. 1 to the Bylaws of TOUSA, Inc.
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
322 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

TOUSA, Inc.

Date: November 14, 2007 By: /s/ STEPHEN M. WAGMAN
Name: Stephen M. Wagman
Title: Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer

Date: November 14, 2007 By: /s/ ANGELA F. VALDES
Name: Angela F. Valdes
Title: Vice President, Chief Accounting
Officer and
Corporate Controller
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